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Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2018
June 30, 2018 - Mahoning Adult Services Company Inc.

Primary Government

Mahoning Adult Mahoning County
Governmental Business-Type Services Land Reutilization 

Activities Activities Total Company, Inc. Corporation

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $122,814,264 $19,228,316 $142,042,580 $0 $1,745,907
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
  In Segregated Accounts 1,030,360 0 1,030,360 0 0
  With Fiscal Agents 170,602 0 170,602 510,258 0
Investments in Segregated Accounts 0 0 0 321,578 0
Accounts Receivable 978,553 3,728,608 4,707,161 95,339 28,698
Internal Balances (507,381) 507,381 0 0 0
Intergovernmental Receivable 16,885,864 2,705,984 19,591,848 0 546,307
Prepaid Items 446,082 0 446,082 1,302 12,117
Permissive Sales Taxes Receivable 11,094,967 0 11,094,967 0 0
Property Taxes Receivable 45,028,686 0 45,028,686 0 0
Payments in Lieu of Taxes Receivable 723,326 0 723,326 0 0
Special Assessments Receivable 466,362 317,054 783,416 0 0
Assets Held for Resale 0 0 0 0 989,370
Other Assets 0 0 0 0 86
Restricted Assets:
  Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 0 1,049,274 1,049,274 0 50,798
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
    with Fiscal and Escrow Agents 0 10,323,528 10,323,528 0 0
Net Pension Asset 452,687 36,009 488,696 0 0
Net OPEB Asset 93,272 0 93,272 0 0
Nondepreciable Capital Assets 16,752,569 17,294,117 34,046,686 0 0
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 127,914,415 77,260,513 205,174,928 16,232 24,235

Total Assets 344,344,628 132,450,784 476,795,412 944,709 3,397,518

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension 19,124,310 1,493,435 20,617,745 0 0
OPEB 3,888,433 307,641 4,196,074 0 0
Deferred Charge on Refunding 810,374 67,385 877,759 0 0

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 23,823,117 1,868,461 25,691,578 0 0

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 2,476,929 420,856 2,897,785 33,439 228,623
Accrued Wages 3,991,717 443,197 4,434,914 27,158 16,648
Contracts Payable 63,179 516,671 579,850 0 0
Intergovernmental Payable 1,712,426 512,119 2,224,545 0 1,729
Accrued Expenses 0 0 0 0 31,980
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 56,788 0 56,788 0 0
Accrued Interest Payable 142,790 324,530 467,320 0 0
Claims Payable 2,359,920 0 2,359,920 0 0
Notes Payable 14,528,119 3,239,763 17,767,882 0 0
Unearned Revenue 0 0 0 0 628,920
Due to Others 0 0 0 0 50,798
Long-Term Liabilities:
  Due Within One Year 7,671,534 1,649,199 9,320,733 0 23,994
  Due In More Than One Year
      Net Pension Liability (See Note 14)   78,697,473 6,158,505 84,855,978 0 0
      Net OPEB Liability (See Note 15)   51,803,899 4,120,765 55,924,664 0 0
      Other Amounts 37,015,298 38,966,853 75,982,151 0 25,695

Total Liabilities 200,520,072 56,352,458 256,872,530 60,597 1,008,387

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 39,500,211 0 39,500,211 0 0
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 723,326 0 723,326 0 0
Pension 19,728,056 1,547,341 21,275,397 0 0
OPEB 4,433,981 341,313 4,775,294 0 0

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 64,385,574 1,888,654 66,274,228 0 0

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 102,921,806 61,129,538 164,051,344 16,232 10,725
Restricted for:
  Capital Projects 8,027,790 0 8,027,790 0 0
  Debt Service 461,813 11,372,802 11,834,615 0 0
  Public Safety 13,238,257 0 13,238,257 0 0
  Public Works 9,916,793 0 9,916,793 0 0
  Health Services 43,875,308 0 43,875,308 0 0
  Human Services 13,490,901 0 13,490,901 0 0
  General Government 19,589,796 0 19,589,796 5,720 0
  Unclaimed Monies 545,910 0 545,910 0 0
Unrestricted (Deficit)  (108,806,275) 3,575,793 (105,230,482) 862,160 2,378,406

Total Net Position $103,262,099 $76,078,133 $179,340,232 $884,112 $2,389,131

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Component Units
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 - Mahoning Adult Services Company Inc.

Program Revenues

Charges
for Services Operating Grants Capital Grants

Expenses and Assessments and Contributions and Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General Government:
  Legislative and Executive $26,663,721 $7,004,603 $4,506,641 $0
  Judicial 26,180,753 7,279,352 2,429,228 0
Public Safety 37,253,625 3,442,226 3,450,527 0
Public Works 14,824,344 134,257 11,493,507 2,053,371
Health 39,762,049 4,260,875 14,724,824 0
Human Services 45,823,401 2,009,219 25,948,124 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,502,582 0 0 0

Total Governmental Activities 192,010,475 24,130,532 62,552,851 2,053,371

Business-Type Activities:
Water 1,718,843 842,419 0 113,253
Sewer 28,182,735 27,539,325 0 309,453

Total Business-Type Activities 29,901,578 28,381,744 0 422,706

Total - Primary Government $221,912,053 $52,512,276 $62,552,851 $2,476,077

Component Units
Mahoning Adult Services Company, Inc. $822,736 $992,807 $0 $0
Mahoning County Land Reutilization Corporation 6,120,828 0 5,558,141 0

Total - Component Units $6,943,564 $992,807 $5,558,141 $0

General Revenues
Property Taxes Levied for:
    General Purposes
    General Obligation Bond Retirement
    Children Services Board
    Board of Developmental Disabilities
    Board of Mental Health
    Senior Citizens
    Self-funded Hospitalization 
Sales Tax Levied for: 
    General Purposes
    Criminal and Administrative Justice  
    General Obligation Bond Retirement
    Buildings and Equipment
Hotel/Lodging Taxes
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted to Specific Programs
Conveyance Taxes
Interest
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Gain on Sale of Assets Held for Resale
Other

Total General Revenues

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position Beginning of Year - Restated (See Note 23)

Net Position End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Mahoning Adult Mahoning County
Governmental Business-Type Services Land Reutilization 

Activities Activities Total Company, Inc. Corporation

($15,152,477) $0 ($15,152,477) $0 $0
(16,472,173) 0 (16,472,173) 0 0
(30,360,872) 0 (30,360,872) 0 0

(1,143,209) 0 (1,143,209) 0 0
(20,776,350) 0 (20,776,350) 0 0
(17,866,058) 0 (17,866,058) 0 0

(1,502,582) 0 (1,502,582) 0 0

(103,273,721) 0 (103,273,721) 0 0

0 (763,171) (763,171) 0 0
0 (333,957) (333,957) 0 0

0 (1,097,128) (1,097,128) 0 0

(103,273,721) (1,097,128) (104,370,849) 0 0

0 0 0 170,071 0
0 0 0 0 (562,687)

0 0 0 170,071 (562,687)

4,877,357 0 4,877,357 0 0
2,339,418 0 2,339,418 0 0
8,138,126 0 8,138,126 0 0

14,616,935 0 14,616,935 0 0
3,665,774 0 3,665,774 0 0
3,800,912 0 3,800,912 0 0

266,105 0 266,105 0 0

15,081,000 0 15,081,000 0 0
25,277,996 0 25,277,996 0 0

1,105,022 0 1,105,022 0 0
668,567 0 668,567 0 0

1,716,294 0 1,716,294 0 0
6,529,551 0 6,529,551 0 481,976
2,448,831 0 2,448,831 0 0
1,664,451 206,384 1,870,835 11,910 0

702,957 0 702,957 0 0
0 0 0 0 159,595

3,282,115 2,184,949 5,467,064 17,995 48,165

96,181,411 2,391,333 98,572,744 29,905 689,736

212,000 (212,000) 0 0 0

96,393,411 2,179,333 98,572,744 29,905 689,736

(6,880,310) 1,082,205 (5,798,105) 199,976 127,049

110,142,409 74,995,928 185,138,337 684,136 2,262,082

$103,262,099 $76,078,133 $179,340,232 $884,112 $2,389,131

Component Units
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Criminal and Department Children Developmental
Administrative of Human Services Disabilities Debt 

General Justice Services Board Board Service

Assets   
Equity in Pooled Cash and  
  Cash Equivalents   $16,213,806 $6,260,867 $678,790 $12,474,846 $32,931,557 $1,077,751
Cash and Cash Equivalents:   
  In Segregated Accounts   161,554 601,772 0 76,608 16,551 0
  With Fiscal Agents   0 0 0 0 170,602 0
Accounts Receivable   169,925 78,937 0 0 66,127 0
Interfund Receivable   626,913 0 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental Receivable   2,631,088 488,333 0 223,734 1,530,386 156,215
Permissive Sales Taxes Receivable   3,971,002 6,657,039 0 0 0 466,926
Property Taxes Receivable   6,053,904 0 0 10,410,904 16,972,029 2,575,511
Payments in Lieu of Taxes Receivable 0 0 0 0 0 0
Special Assessments Receivable   0 0 0 0 0 8,555
Restricted Assets:   
  Equity in Pooled Cash and   
    Cash Equivalents   545,910 0 0 0 0 0

Total Assets  $30,374,102 $14,086,948 $678,790 $23,186,092 $51,687,252 $4,284,958

Liabilities   
Accounts Payable   $406,985 $352,983 $330,328 $167,957 $235,530 $0
Accrued Wages   944,874 893,067 520,283 295,853 495,119 0
Contracts Payable   0 0 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental Payable   265,259 295,732 129,752 139,784 161,308 0
Matured Compensated Absences Payable   21,286 0 6,266 6,915 1,891 0
Interfund Payable   0 0 0 0 0 0
Accrued Interest Payable   0 0 0 0 0 15,713
Notes Payable   0 0 0 0 0 6,422,318

Total Liabilities   1,638,404 1,541,782 986,629 610,509 893,848 6,438,031

Deferred Inflows of Resources   
Property Taxes   5,327,728 0 0 9,269,513 14,790,223 2,172,203
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unavailable Revenue    3,876,718 2,468,402 0 1,365,125 3,213,397 723,720

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources   9,204,446 2,468,402 0 10,634,638 18,003,620 2,895,923

Fund Balances   
Nonspendable   545,910 0 0 0 0 0
Restricted   2,209,847 10,076,764 0 11,940,945 32,789,784 0
Committed   505,345 0 0 0 0 0
Assigned   691,539 0 0 0 0 0
Unassigned (Deficit)   15,578,611 0 (307,839) 0 0 (5,048,996)

Total Fund Balances (Deficit)   19,531,252 10,076,764 (307,839) 11,940,945 32,789,784 (5,048,996)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of    
  Resources and Fund Balances   $30,374,102 $14,086,948 $678,790 $23,186,092 $51,687,252 $4,284,958

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements   

Mahoning County, Ohio
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2018
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to

Net Position of Governmental Activities
December 31, 2018

Total Governmental Fund Balances   $102,474,431
Other Total

Buildings and Governmental Governmental Amounts reported for governmental activities in the   
Equipment Funds Funds statement of net position are different because   

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not    
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the   

$8,814,211 $30,934,802 $109,386,630 funds.   144,666,984

0 173,875 1,030,360 Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-   
0 0 170,602 period expenditures and therefore are reported as   
0 661,289 976,278 unavailable revenue in the funds.   
0 0 626,913 Intergovernmental   11,021,459
0 11,817,768 16,847,524 Special Assessments   466,362
0 0 11,094,967 Permissive Sales Tax   4,114,927
0 8,746,227 44,758,575 Delinquent Property Taxes   5,528,475

723,326 0 723,326
0 457,807 466,362 Total   21,131,223

Internal service funds are used by management to charge   
0 0 545,910 the costs of insurance  and materials and supplies to individual   

funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds   
$9,537,537 $52,791,768 $186,627,447 are included as part of governmental activities in the statement    

of net position.   
Net Position 6,545,980
General Obligation Bonds   3,335,000

$984 $917,904 $2,412,671 Claims Payable   925,199
0 833,172 3,982,368 Deferred Charge on Refunding (246,349)

57,092 6,087 63,179 Internal Balances   (507,381)
0 352,481 1,344,316
0 20,430 56,788 Total   10,052,449

215,510 411,403 626,913
37,546 754 54,013 In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on   

7,798,238 307,563 14,528,119 outstanding bonds and notes, whereas in governmental   
funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due.   (81,823)

8,109,370 2,849,794 23,068,367
The net pension asset, net OPEB asset, net pension liability and net OPEB liability 

are not due and payable in the current period; therefore, the liability and related 
0 7,670,433 39,230,100 deferred inflows/outflows are not reported in governmental funds.

723,326 0 723,326 Net Pension Asset 452,687
0 9,483,861 21,131,223 Net OPEB Asset 93,272

Deferred Outflows - Pension 19,124,310
723,326 17,154,294 61,084,649 Deferred Outflows - OPEB 3,888,433

Deferred Inflows - Pension (19,728,056)
Deferred Inflows - OPEB (4,433,981)

0 0 545,910 Net Pension Liability (78,697,473)
704,841 32,843,598 90,565,779 Net OPEB Liability (51,803,899)

0 0 505,345
0 0 691,539 Total (131,104,707)
0 (55,918) 10,165,858

Deferred outflows of resources represent the deferred amount 
704,841 32,787,680 102,474,431 on refundings which are not reported in the funds. 810,374

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current   
$9,537,537 $52,791,768 $186,627,447 period and therefore are not reported in the funds.   

General Obligation Bonds   (31,976,467)
OPWC Loan Payable   (1,418,716)
Claims Payable   (925,199)
Compensated Absences   (10,366,450)

Total   (44,686,832)

Net Position of Governmental Activities   $103,262,099
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Criminal and Department Children Developmental
Administrative of Human Services Disabilities Debt 

General Justice Services Board Board Service

Revenues   
Property Taxes   $4,907,464 $0 $0 $8,411,330 $14,951,221 $2,450,418
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Permissive Sales Tax   15,032,695 25,281,034 0 0 0 1,160,333
Hotel/Lodging Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental   6,237,170 2,273,442 15,009,719 7,160,858 9,457,861 376,578
Conveyance Taxes   2,448,831 0 0 0 0 0
Interest   1,438,221 0 0 0 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits   5,302,704 316,249 0 0 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures   1,512,724 19,125 0 0 0 0
Rentals and Royalties   1,581,615 324,805 0 0 75,162 0
Charges for Services   1,345,788 724,636 812,182 0 905,476 0
Contributions and Donations  0 0 0 0 50 0
Special Assessments  0 0 0 0 0 0
Other  674,851 324,011 215,214 100,867 758,258 281,990

Total Revenues  40,482,063 29,263,302 16,037,115 15,673,055 26,148,028 4,269,319

Expenditures  
Current:  
  General Government:  
    Legislative and Executive  13,534,611 0 0 0 0 53,119
    Judicial  20,246,657 0 0 0 0 0
  Public Safety  703,375 28,651,772 0 0 0 0
  Public Works  0 0 0 0 0 0
  Health  0 0 0 0 25,626,326 0
  Human Services  2,215,245 0 16,387,605 14,477,526 0 0
Capital Outlay  0 0 0 0 0 0
Debt Service:  
  Principal Retirement  0 0 0 0 0 2,414,999
  Interest and Fiscal Charges  0 0 0 0 0 1,177,601
  Issuance Costs  0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures  36,699,888 28,651,772 16,387,605 14,477,526 25,626,326 3,645,719

Excess of Revenues Over  
  (Under) Expenditures  3,782,175 611,530 (350,490) 1,195,529 521,702 623,600

Other Financing Sources (Uses)  
Sale of Capital Assets  0 0 0 0 10,005 0
Transfers In  50,268 0 854,386 0 0 333,332
Transfers Out  (1,394,278) (134,982) (612,119) 0 0 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)  (1,344,010) (134,982) 242,267 0 10,005 333,332

Net Change in Fund Balances  2,438,165 476,548 (108,223) 1,195,529 531,707 956,932

Fund Balances (Deficit)   
   Beginning of Year - Restated (See Note 23) 17,093,087 9,600,216 (199,616) 10,745,416 32,258,077 (6,005,928)

Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year  $19,531,252 $10,076,764 ($307,839) $11,940,945 $32,789,784 ($5,048,996)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements  

Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $5,241,994
Other Total

Buildings and Governmental Governmental Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Equipment Funds Funds statement of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of   
$0 $7,686,708 $38,407,141 activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as   

702,957 0 702,957 depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay 
668,567 0 42,142,629 in the current period.

0 1,716,294 1,716,294 Current Year Additions 7,191,966
423,707 32,212,759 73,152,094 Current Year Depreciation (9,996,235)

0 0 2,448,831 Total (2,804,269)
113,917 112,313 1,664,451

0 8,372,817 13,991,770 Governmental funds only report the disposal of capital assets to the extent proceeds are received
0 892,625 2,424,474 from the sale.  In the statement of activities, a gain or loss is reported for each disposal. (138,395)
0 18,629 2,000,211
0 1,664,022 5,452,104 Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are   

93 6,729 6,872 not reported as revenue in the funds.
0 284,806 284,806 Intergovernmental (2,061,533)
0 802,155 3,157,346 Fees, Licenses and Permits   (360)

Charges for Services (21,440)
1,909,241 53,769,857 187,551,980 Special Assessments (1,033)

Permissive Sales Tax (10,044)
Delinquent Property Taxes (968,619)
Total (3,063,029)

0 10,634,894 24,222,624 Repayment of long-term obligations is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the 
0 3,919,784 24,166,441 repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 2,831,699
0 3,135,814 32,490,961
0 9,312,269 9,312,269 Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, do not require the use of current   
0 12,702,808 38,329,134 financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.   
0 9,540,131 42,620,507 Accrued Interest 10,358

1,755,352 5,294,897 7,050,249 Amortization of Bond Premium 64,090
Amortization of Deferred Charge on Refunding (39,223)

15,000 401,700 2,831,699 Total 35,225
143,232 110,886 1,431,719

76,388 0 76,388 Some expenses like compensated absences are reported in the statement of activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore 

1,989,972 55,053,183 182,531,991 are not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. (316,830)

Internal service funds used to charge costs to individual funds are not reported in the
(80,731) (1,283,326) 5,019,989 County-wide statement of activities. Governmental fund expenditures and related internal 

service funds revenues are eliminated. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service 
funds are allocated among the governmental and business-type activities.

0 0 10,005 Change in Net Position 1,751,387
97,104 2,945,356 4,280,446 Internal Balances (83,268)

(333,332) (1,593,735) (4,068,446) Total 1,668,119

(236,228) 1,351,621 222,005 Contractually required contributions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds; 
however, the statement of net position reports these amounts as deferred outflows.

(316,959) 68,295 5,241,994 Pension 9,410,039
OPEB 55,259
Total 9,465,298

1,021,800 32,719,385 97,232,437
Except for amounts reported as deferred inflows/outflows, changes in the net pension/OPEB

$704,841 $32,787,680 $102,474,431 liability are reported as pension expense in the statement of activities.
Pension (15,844,178)
OPEB (3,955,944)
Total (19,800,122)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities ($6,880,310)

- 23 -



in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final   Actual  (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $4,917,629 $4,917,629 $4,931,853 $14,224
Permissive Sales Tax 14,581,219 14,581,219 14,901,452 320,233
Intergovernmental 5,441,167 5,441,167 6,531,787 1,090,620
Conveyance Fees 1,901,485 1,901,485 2,461,953 560,468
Interest 800,000 800,000 1,330,706 530,706
Fees, Licenses and Permits 2,922,000 2,922,000 3,625,508 703,508
Fines and Forfeitures 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,514,018 (85,982)
Rentals and Royalties 1,506,000 1,506,000 1,571,356 65,356
Charges for Services 895,000 895,000 1,153,211 258,211
Other 500 500 668,068 667,568

Total Revenues 34,565,000 34,565,000 38,689,912 4,124,912

Expenditures
Current: 

General Government: 
Legislative and Executive 12,545,158 13,706,796 13,326,852 379,944
Judicial 18,770,656 19,611,131 19,156,153 454,978

Public Safety 834,401 825,295 708,404 116,891
Human Services 2,182,328 2,167,443 2,149,299 18,144

Total Expenditures 34,332,543 36,310,665 35,340,708 969,957

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 232,457 (1,745,665) 3,349,204 5,094,869

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Advance In 0 0 617,626 617,626
Advance Out 0 (700,000) (544,570) 155,430
Transfers In 100,000 100,000 350,268 250,268
Transfers Out (1,461,104) (1,786,104) (1,657,437) 128,667

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,361,104) (2,386,104) (1,234,113) 1,151,991

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,128,647) (4,131,769) 2,115,091 6,246,860

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 11,706,898 11,706,898 11,706,898 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 303,647 303,647 303,647 0

Fund Balance End of Year $10,881,898 $7,878,776 $14,125,636 $6,246,860

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Criminal and Administrative Justice Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Permissive Sales Tax $24,674,000 $24,674,000 $25,116,517 $442,517
Intergovernmental 2,462,000 2,462,000 3,088,787 626,787
Fees, Licenses and Permits 260,000 260,000 308,320 48,320
Fines and Forfeitures 30,000 30,000 19,571 (10,429)
Rentals and Royalties 275,000 275,000 298,743 23,743
Charges for Services 448,500 448,500 729,170 280,670
Other 0 0 323,857 323,857

Total Revenues 28,149,500 28,149,500 29,884,965 1,735,465

Expenditures
Current:
    Public Safety 28,236,163 29,362,758 28,929,094 433,664

 
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (86,663) (1,213,258)  955,871  2,169,129

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (80,000) (134,982) (134,982) 0

Net Change in Fund Balance (166,663) (1,348,240) 820,889 2,169,129

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,411,745 1,411,745 1,411,745 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 166,663 166,663 166,663 0

Fund Balance End of Year $1,411,745 $230,168 $2,399,297 $2,169,129

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Department of Human Services Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $15,398,000 $15,238,000 $15,009,719 ($228,281)
Charges for Services 858,205 858,205 812,182 (46,023)
Other 85,700 85,700 215,214 129,514

Total Revenues 16,341,905 16,181,905 16,037,115 (144,790)

Expenditures
Current:
    Human Services 16,368,057 16,927,037 16,444,789 482,248

 
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (26,152) (745,132)  (407,674)  337,458

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 853,795 853,795 854,386 591
Transfers Out (800,780) (640,780) (612,119) 28,661

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 53,015 213,015 242,267 29,252

Net Change in Fund Balance 26,863 (532,117) (165,407) 366,710

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 567,837 567,837 567,837 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 55,247 55,247 55,247 0

Fund Balance End of Year $649,947 $90,967 $457,677 $366,710

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Children Services Board Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $8,388,093 $8,388,093 $8,454,543 $66,450
Intergovernmental 6,291,866 6,291,866 7,160,858 868,992
Other 10,000 10,000 100,867 90,867

Total Revenues 14,689,959 14,689,959 15,716,268 1,026,309

Expenditures
Current:
    Human Services 14,689,959 15,389,959 14,947,915 442,044

 
Net Change in Fund Balance 0 (700,000) 768,353 1,468,353

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 11,410,697 11,410,697 11,410,697 0

Fund Balance End of Year $11,410,697 $10,710,697 $12,179,050 $1,468,353

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Developmental Disabilities Board Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $14,939,044 $14,939,044 $15,063,076 $124,032
Intergovernmental 8,848,120 8,848,120 9,648,224 800,104
Rentals and Royalties 5,160 5,160 10,162 5,002
Charges for Services 861,760 861,760 858,855 (2,905)
Contributions and Donations 250 250 50 (200)
Other 278,010 278,010 796,393 518,383

Total Revenues 24,932,344 24,932,344 26,376,760 1,444,416

Expenditures
Current:
    Health 26,327,922 27,360,098 26,735,159 624,939

 
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,395,578) (2,427,754)  (358,399)  2,069,355

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 10,005 10,005

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,395,578) (2,427,754) (348,394) 2,079,360

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 31,245,939 31,245,939 31,245,939 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 814,118 814,118 814,118 0

Fund Balance End of Year $30,664,479 $29,632,303 $31,711,663 $2,079,360

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Budgeted Amounts

- 28 -



Internal
Water Sewer Total Service

Assets  
Current Assets:  
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents  $1,270,789 $17,957,527 $19,228,316 $12,881,724
Receivables:  
  Property Taxes 0 0 0 270,111
  Intergovernmental  15,232 2,690,752 2,705,984 38,340
  Accounts  2,121,003 1,607,605 3,728,608 2,275
Prepaid Items 0 0 0 446,082

Total Current Assets  3,407,024 22,255,884 25,662,908 13,638,532

Noncurrent Assets:  
Restricted Assets:  
  Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents  0 1,049,274 1,049,274 0
  Cash and Cash Equivalents  
   with Fiscal and Escrow Agents  0 10,323,528 10,323,528 0
Special Assessments Receivable  16,972 300,082 317,054 0
Net Pension Asset 0 36,009 36,009 0
Capital Assets:  
  Nondepreciable Capital Assets  2,298,009 14,996,108 17,294,117 0
  Depreciable Capital Assets, Net  10,445,920 66,814,593 77,260,513 0

Total Noncurrent Assets  12,760,901 93,519,594 106,280,495 0
 
Total Assets  16,167,925 115,775,478 131,943,403 13,638,532

Deferred Outflows of Resources  
Pension 0 1,493,435 1,493,435 0
OPEB 0 307,641 307,641 0
Deferred Charge on Refunding  67,385 0 67,385 246,349

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $67,385 $1,801,076 $1,868,461 $246,349

(continued)

Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2018

Enterprise
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Internal
Water Sewer Total Service

Liabilities  
Current Liabilities:  
Accounts Payable  $6,493 $414,363 $420,856 $64,258
Accrued Wages  0 443,197 443,197 9,349
Contracts Payable  9,111 507,560 516,671 0
Intergovernmental Payable     78,053 434,066 512,119 368,110
Compensated Absences Payable   0 545,182 545,182 0
Accrued Interest Payable   112,568 211,962 324,530 6,954
Notes Payable  347,657 2,892,106 3,239,763 0
Revenue Bonds Payable  47,500 451,800 499,300 0
General Obligation Bonds Payable    130,000 0 130,000 225,000
Special Assessment Bonds Payable   0 5,000 5,000 0
OWDA Loans Payable  10,725 230,597 241,322 0
OPWC Loans Payable  27,682 200,713 228,395 0
Claims Payable  0 0 0 2,978,485

Total Current Liabilities  769,789 6,336,546 7,106,335 3,652,156

Long-Term Liabilities (net of current portion):  
Compensated Absences Payable   0 599,071 599,071 0
Revenue Bonds Payable   2,852,300 27,642,671 30,494,971 0
General Obligation Bonds Payable   3,063,278 0 3,063,278 3,110,000
Special Assessment Bonds Payable   0 40,000 40,000 0
OWDA Loans Payable   112,617 293,049 405,666 0
OPWC Loans Payable   330,350 4,033,517 4,363,867 0
Net Pension Liability 0 6,158,505 6,158,505 0
Net OPEB Liability 0 4,120,765 4,120,765 0
Claims Payable   0 0 0 306,634

Total Long-Term Liabilities   6,358,545 42,887,578 49,246,123 3,416,634

Total Liabilities   7,128,334 49,224,124 56,352,458 7,068,790

Deferred Inflows of Resources  
Property Taxes   0 0 0 270,111
Pension 0 1,547,341 1,547,341 0
OPEB 0 341,313 341,313 0

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources   0 1,888,654 1,888,654 270,111

Net Position   
Net Investment in Capital Assets   6,121,722 55,007,816 61,129,538 0
Restricted for Debt Service   0 11,372,802 11,372,802 0
Unrestricted 2,985,254 83,158 3,068,412 6,545,980

Total Net Position $9,106,976 $66,463,776 75,570,752 $6,545,980

Net position reported for business-type activities in the statement of net position are different   
because they include accumulated overpayments to the internal service funds:   507,381

Net position of business-type activities   $76,078,133

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements   

Enterprise

Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds (continued)

December 31, 2018
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Internal
Water Sewer Total Service

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $800,515 $26,830,037 $27,630,552 $27,567,614
Fees, Licenses and Permits 41,904 476,446 518,350 0
Special Assessments 0 214,784 214,784 0
Rentals 0 18,058 18,058 0
Other 2,028,284 156,665 2,184,949 124,769

Total Operating Revenues 2,870,703 27,695,990 30,566,693 27,692,383

Operating Expenses
Personal Services 0 10,633,709 10,633,709 208,874
Materials and Supplies 44,068 1,306,843 1,350,911 416,598
Contractual Services 970,244 11,227,081 12,197,325 2,642,385
Depreciation 407,442 3,668,977 4,076,419 0
Claims 0 0 0 22,834,587
Change in Worker's Compensation Estimate 0 0 0 21,641
Other 4,055 366,508 370,563 15,268

Total Operating Expenses 1,425,809 27,203,118 28,628,927 26,139,353

Operating Income (Loss) 1,444,894 492,872 1,937,766 1,553,030

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest 15,760 190,624 206,384 0
Property Taxes 0 0 0 266,105
Grants 0 0 0 38,340
Interest and Fiscal Charges (230,991) (971,598) (1,202,589) (106,088)
Loss on Sale of Capital Assets 0 (41,812) (41,812) 0
Issuance Costs (62,043) (49,475) (111,518) 0

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (277,274) (872,261) (1,149,535) 198,357

Income (Loss) before
   Capital Contributions and Transfers 1,167,620 (379,389) 788,231 1,751,387

Capital Contributions 113,253 309,453 422,706 0
Transfers In 500,000 0 500,000 0
Transfers Out 0 (712,000) (712,000) 0

Change in Net Position 1,780,873 (781,936) 998,937 1,751,387

Net Position Beginning of Year -
  Restated (See Note 23) 7,326,103 67,245,712 4,794,593

Net Position End of Year $9,106,976 $66,463,776 $6,545,980

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities 
  are different because a portion of the net revenue of the internal service funds 
  reduces expenses in the business-type activities. 83,268

Change in net position of business-type activities $1,082,205

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Enterprise
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Internal
Water Sewer Total Service

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $843,445 $27,155,642 $27,999,087 $0
Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided 0 0 0 27,568,711
Special Assessments 6,919 205,378 212,297 0
Other Cash Receipts 146,184 167,712 313,896 137,798
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 0 (8,120,489) (8,120,489) (208,734)
Cash Payments for Goods and Services (939,921) (12,313,534) (13,253,455) (2,477,563)
Cash Payments for Claims 0 0 0 (22,379,782)
Cash Payments for Workers' Compensation Premiums 0 0 0 (506,013)
Cash Payments to State Bureau of Workers' 
   Compensation for Claims 0 0 0 (355,849)
Cash Payments for Interfund Services Provided 0 (1,607,192) (1,607,192) 0
Other Cash Payments (4,055) (367,308) (371,363) (15,268)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 52,572 5,120,209 5,172,781 1,763,300

Cash Flows from Noncapital and
  Related Financing Activities
Property Taxes 0 0 0 266,105
Grants 0 0 0 39,166
Principal Paid on Bonds 0 0 0 (215,000)
Interest Paid on Bonds 0 0 0 (90,271)
Transfers In 500,000 0 500,000 0
Transfers Out 0 (712,000) (712,000) 0

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Noncapital Financing Activities 500,000 (712,000) (212,000) 0

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital Contributions 153,313 310,371 463,684 0
OPWC Loans Issued 0 512,674 512,674 0
General Obligation Notes Issued 345,000 2,870,000 3,215,000 0
Premium on Notes Issued 3,543 29,475 33,018 0
General Obligation Bonds Issued 2,020,000 0 2,020,000 0
Revenue Bonds Issued 0 2,382,068 2,382,068 0
Principal Paid on Notes (2,260,000) (3,005,000) (5,265,000) 0
Interest Paid on Notes (60,815) (18,062) (78,877) 0
Principal Paid on General Obligation Bonds (45,000) 0 (45,000) 0
Interest Paid on General Obligation Bonds (25,125) 0 (25,125) 0
Principal Paid on Special Assessment Bonds 0 (5,000) (5,000) 0
Interest Paid on Special Assessment Bonds 0 (899) (899) 0
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds (45,600) (1,132,700) (1,178,300) 0
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds (132,659) (936,307) (1,068,966) 0
Principal Paid on OPWC Loans (27,683) (200,712) (228,395) 0
Principal Paid on OWDA Loans (10,726) (237,990) (248,716) 0
Interest Paid on OWDA Loans 0 (9,455) (9,455) 0
Issuance Costs (62,043) (49,475) (111,518) 0
Payments for Capital Acquisitions (497,509) (6,728,064) (7,225,573) 0

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
     Capital and Related Financing Activities (645,304) (6,219,076) (6,864,380) 0

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on Investments 15,760 190,624 206,384 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (76,972) (1,620,243) (1,697,215) 1,763,300

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year 1,347,761 30,950,572 32,298,333 11,118,424

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year $1,270,789 $29,330,329 $30,601,118 $12,881,724

(continued)
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Internal
Water Sewer Total Service

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to 
 Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) $1,444,894 $492,872 $1,937,766 $1,553,030

Adjustments:
  Depreciation 407,442 3,668,977 4,076,419 0

  (Increase) Decrease in Assets and Deferred Outflows:
    Accounts Receivable (1,881,074) (63,660) (1,944,734) 1,097
    Intergovernmental Receivable 0 (94,192) (94,192) 13,029
    Prepaid Items 0 0 0 55,663
    Special Assessments 6,919 (9,406) (2,487) 0
    Net Pension Asset 0 (36,009) (36,009) 0
    Deferred Outflow - Pension 0 1,150,240 1,150,240 0
    Deferred Outflow - OPEB 0 194,806 194,806 0
  Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities and Deferred Inflows:
    Accounts Payable (3,593) 15,849 12,256 19,744
    Contracts Payable (69) 304,275 304,206 0
    Accrued Wages 0 48,349 48,349 (82)
    Compensated Absences Payable 0 18,091 18,091 0
    Net Pension Liability 0 148,097 148,097 0
    Net OPEB Liability 0 223,473 223,473 0
    Deferred Inflow - Pension 0 (746,645) (746,645) 0
    Deferred Inflow - OPEB 0 (93,162) (93,162) 0
    Intergovernmental Payable 78,053 (101,746) (23,693) 9,999
    Claims Payable 0 0 0 110,820

Total Adjustments (1,392,322) 4,627,337 3,235,015 210,270

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $52,572 $5,120,209 $5,172,781 $1,763,300

Noncash Capital Financing Activities
At December 31, 2017, the County had intergovernmental receivables related to capital contributions of $55,292 in the water fund.

At December 31, 2018, the County had intergovernmental receivables related to capital contributions of $15,232 in the water fund.

At December 31, 2017, the County had intergovernmental receivables related to capital contributions of $918 in the sewer fund.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $10,593,906
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Segregated Accounts 3,575,362 
Property Taxes Receivable 218,568,171 
Intergovernmental Receivable 8,099,316 
Special Assessments Receivable 16,626,866 

Total Assets 257,463,621

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 890,327
Intergovernmental Payable 16,564,526 

Total Liabilities 17,454,853

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 191,754,831 

Net Position
Restricted for Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments $48,253,937

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Additions
Intergovernmental $24,624,232
Amounts Received as Fiscal Agent 7,494,230 
Licenses, Permits and Fees for Other Governments 28,341,571 
Fines and Forfeitures for Other Governments 6,676,553 
Amounts Held for Employees 19,437,952 
Property Tax Collections for Other Governments 207,744,760 
Special Assessment Collections for Other Governments 6,070,483 
Sheriff Sales Collections for Others 3,071,262 
Miscellaneous 2,535,649 

Total Additions 305,996,692

Deductions
Distributions of State Funds to Other Governments 24,619,526
Licenses, Permits and Fees Distributions to Other Governments 28,326,832
Fines and Forfeitures Distributions to Other Governments 6,568,920
Property Tax Distributions to Other Governments 210,774,197
Special Assessment Distributions to Other Governments 1,537,370
Sheriff Sales Distributions to Others 3,071,262
Distributions on Behalf of Employees 19,437,952
Distributions as Fiscal Agent 7,734,129
Miscellaneous 2,071,620 

Total Deductions 304,141,808

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position 1,854,884

Net Position Beginning of Year - Restated (See Note 23) 46,399,053 

Net Position End of Year $48,253,937

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Mahoning County, Ohio
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Custodial Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
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Mahoning Adult Services Company, Inc
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Mahoning County Land Reutilization Corporation

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements  



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Fund Financial Statements

Fund Accounting

Governmental Funds  

General Fund

Criminal and Administrative Justice Fund

Department of Human Services Fund

Children Services Board Fund

Developmental Disabilities Board Fund
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Debt Service Fund

Buildings and Equipment Fund  

Proprietary Funds  

Enterprise Funds

Water Fund

Sewer Fund

Internal Service Funds

Fiduciary Fund Types  

Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements  

Fund Financial Statements
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Basis of Accounting

Revenues - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions
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Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Expenses/Expenditures

Pensions/Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
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Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants

Prepaid Items 

Restricted Assets 
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Capital Assets

Interfund Balances

Compensated Absences
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Bond Premiums 

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 

Fund Balance 
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Nonspendable  

Restricted  

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Net Position 

Operating Revenues and Expenses
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Contributions of Capital  

Interfund Activity

Estimates

Budgetary Process 
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Deferred Charge on Refunding
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Nonspendable

Restricted for

Total Restricted
Committed for

Total Committed
Assigned to

Total Assigned
Unassigned (Deficit)
Total Fund Balances (Deficit)

Nonspendable

Restricted for

Total Restricted
Committed for

Total Committed
Assigned to

Total Assigned
Unassigned (Deficit)
Total Fund Balances (Deficit)
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Stabilization arrangement
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Deposits

Custodial credit risk
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Investments 
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Interest Rate Risk

Credit Risk

Concentration of Credit Risk
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Governmental Funds

Total General Fund

Major

Nonmajor

Total Special Revenue Funds

Total Governmental Funds

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 
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Grants 

Litigation 
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Net Pension Liability (Asset)/Net OPEB Liability (Asset)
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net pension/OPEB asset
net pension/OPEB liability 

intergovernmental payable

Plan Description – Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
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Plan Description - State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions
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Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS 
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Discount Rate 
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Sensitivity of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the 
Discount Rate

Changes between Measurement Date and Report Date  

Actuarial Assumptions – STRS 
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Discount Rate

Sensitivity of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
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Plan Description – Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
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Plan Description - State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB
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Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS 
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Discount Rate 

Sensitivity of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
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Sensitivity of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost 
Trend Rate

Changes between Measurement Date and Report Date  

Actuarial Assumptions – STRS 
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Statement No. 
74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans (OPEB)

Discount Rate

Sensitivity of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount and Health 
Care Cost Trend Rate
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General Obligation Bonds:

OPWC Loan:

Revenue Bonds:

General Obligation Bonds:

Special Assessment Bonds:

OWDA Loans:
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OPWC Loans:
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Total General Obligation Bonds

Total Net Pension Liability

Total Net OPEB Liability

Total Other Long-Term Obligations
Total Governmental Activities
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Total Revenue Bonds

Total General Obligation Bonds

Total OWDA Loans
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Total OPWC Loans

Total Business Type Activities
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Stated Maturity 12/1/2033 12/1/2035



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Stated Maturity 12/1/2033 12/1/2035 12/1/2037
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Stated Maturity 12/1/2022 12/1/2025 12/1/2030 12/1/2035



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Conduit Debt Obligations 

Contractual Commitments 
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Encumbrances 

Total Enterprise Funds

Total Governmental Funds

Interfund Balances 

Interfund Transfers 
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Western Reserve Port Authority (Port Authority)

Mahoning and Columbiana Training Association, Inc. 
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Mahoning County Family and Children First Council 

EASTGATE Regional Council of Governments 

North East Ohio Network (N.E.O.N.)
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Joint Communications District Regional Council of Governments 

Change in Accounting Principles 

Fiduciary Activities Omnibus Accounting for Interest Cost 
Incurred before the End of a Construction Period Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other Than Pensions (and Certain 
Issues Related to OPEB Plan Reporting).

Implementation Guide No. 2017-1
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Restatement of Fund Balances and Net Position 
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Community Reinvestment Areas:

Enterprise Zone Agreements:



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Activities 

Program Services 

Method of Accounting

Estimates



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Basis of Presentation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Items

Capital Assets

Restriction Policy 
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Income Taxes 

Expense Allocations 

Investments 

Equipment 

In-Kind

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Activities 

Method of Accounting

Basis of Presentation
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Prepaid Items

Assets Held for Resale

Capital Assets

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 

Compensated Absences
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Equipment 

Line of Credit 

Long-Term Obligations 
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

County's Proportion of the Net Pension
  Liability 0.53276000% 0.54060890% 0.54885395% 0.54228565% 0.54885395%

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  Pension Liability $83,579,714 $122,763,088 $95,068,423 $65,405,710 $63,928,413

County's Covered Payroll $66,997,657 $66,275,992 $65,030,756 $63,353,929 $61,879,075

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  Pension Liability as a Percentage
  of its Covered Payroll 124.75% 185.23% 146.19% 103.24% 103.31%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
  Percentage of the Total Pension
  Liability 84.66% 77.25% 81.08% 86.45% 86.36%

(1) Although this schedule is intended to reflect information for ten years, information prior to 2014 is not available.
     An additional column will be added each year.

     Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the County's measurement date which is the prior year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Mahoning County, Ohio

Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Traditional Plan
Last Five Years (1)

Required Supplementary Information

- 103 -



2018

County's Proportion of the Net 
  Pension Asset 0.35898505%

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  Pension Asset $488,696

County's Covered Payroll $1,471,654

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  Pension Asset as a Percentage
  of its Covered Payroll -33.21%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
  Percentage of the Total Pension
  Liability 137.28%

(1) Amounts for the combined plan are not presented prior to 2018 as the County's 
     participation in this plan was considered immaterial in previous years.

      Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the County's
      measurement date which is the prior year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

2018 (1)

Mahoning County, Ohio
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Asset

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Combined Plan
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2018 2017

County's Proportion of the Net OPEB
  Liability 0.51499500% 0.52181600%

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  OPEB Liability $55,924,664 $52,705,188

County's Covered Payroll $69,703,936 $68,800,025

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  OPEB Liability as a Percentage
  of its Covered Payroll 80.23% 76.61%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
  Percentage of the Total OPEB
  Liability 54.14% 54.04%

(1) Although this schedule is intended to reflect information for ten years, information prior to 
     2017 is not available.  An additional column will be added each year.

     Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the County's measurement date which is
     the prior year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Last Two Years (1)

Mahoning County, Ohio
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - OPEB Plan
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2018 2017 2016

County's Proportion of the Net Pension
  Liability 0.00580443% 0.00552237% 0.00622789%

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  Pension Liability $1,276,264 $1,311,851 $2,084,663

County's Covered Payroll $659,864 $607,114 $655,293

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  Pension Liability as a Percentage
  of its Covered Payroll 193.41% 216.08% 318.13%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
  Percentage of the Total Pension
  Liability 77.30% 75.30% 66.80%

(1) Although this schedule is intended to reflect information for ten years, information prior to
      2013 is not available. An additional column will be added each year.

      *Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30th.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Mahoning County, Ohio
Required Supplementary Information

Net Pension Liability
State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio

Last Six Fiscal Years (1) 

Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the

- 106 -



2015 2014 2013

0.00662730% 0.00696685% 0.00696685%

$1,831,592 $1,694,577 $2,018,571

$691,450 $724,169 $732,231

264.89% 234.00% 275.67%

72.10% 74.70% 69.30%
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2018 2017

County's Proportion of the Net OPEB
  Liability 0.00580443% 0.00552237%

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  OPEB (Asset)/Liability ($93,272) $215,463

County's Covered Payroll $659,864 $607,114

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
  OPEB Liability as a Percentage
  of its Covered Payroll -14.14% 35.49%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
  Percentage of the Total OPEB
  Liability 176.00% 47.10%

(1) Information prior to 2017 is not available.

      *Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30th.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Mahoning County, Ohio
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the

State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio
Last Two Fiscal Years (1)

Net OPEB Asset/Liability
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2018 2017 2016
Net Pension Liability - Traditional Plan

Contractually Required Contribution $9,909,325 $9,167,973 $8,384,524

Contributions in Relation to the
  Contractually Required Contribution (9,909,325) (9,167,973) (8,384,524)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0

County Covered Payroll $67,407,454 $66,997,657 $66,275,992

Pension Contributions as a Percentage of 
  Covered Payroll 14.70% 13.68% 12.65%

Net Pension Asset - Combined Plan

Contractually Required Contribution $190,916 $191,315 $178,333

Contributions in Relation to the
  Contractually Required Contribution (190,916) (191,315) (178,333)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0

County Covered Payroll $1,363,686 $1,471,654 $1,486,108

Pension Contributions as a Percentage of 
  Covered Payroll 14.00% 13.00% 0.00%

Net OPEB Liability - OPEB Plan (2)

Contractually Required Contribution $59,655 $735,841 $1,396,760

Contributions in Relation to the
  Contractually Required Contribution (59,655) (735,841) (1,396,760)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0

County Covered Payroll (3) $70,262,515 $69,703,936 $68,800,025

OPEB Contributions as a Percentage of 
  Covered Payroll 0.08% 1.06% 2.03%

(1)  Information prior to 2013 is not available for the Traditional and Combined plans.
(2)  Information prior to 2016 is not available for the OPEB plan.
(3)  The OPEB plan includes the members from the traditional plan, the combined plan and the member 
       directed plan.  The member directed pension plan is a defined contribution pension plan; therefore,
       the pension side is not included above.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Mahoning County, Ohio
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the County's Contributions
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 

Last Six Years (1) 
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2015 2014 2013

$8,219,027 $7,999,052 $8,428,233

(8,219,027) (7,999,052) (8,428,233)

$0 $0 $0

$65,030,756 $63,353,929 $61,879,075

12.64% 12.63% 13.62%

$164,775 $147,610 $153,411

(164,775) (147,610) (153,411)

$0 $0 $0

$1,373,125 $1,230,083 $1,180,085

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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2018 2017 2016 2015
Net Pension Liability

Contractually Required Contribution $95,321 $89,536 $84,529 $90,918

Contributions in Relation to the 
  Contractually Required Contribution (95,321) (89,536) (84,529) (90,918)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

County Covered Payroll (1) $680,864 $639,543 $603,779 $649,414

Pension Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00%

Net OPEB Liability

Contractually Required Contribution $0 $0 $0 $0

Contributions in Relation to the 
  Contractually Required Contribution 0 0 0 0

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

OPEB Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Total Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00%

(1) The County's covered payroll is the same for Pension and OPEB.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information  

Required Supplementary Information
Mahoning County, Ohio

Schedule of the County's Contributions
State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio

Last Ten Years
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$94,142 $95,190 $96,238 $94,557 $103,290 $117,941

(94,142) (95,190) (96,238) (94,557) (103,290) (117,941)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$692,145 $732,231 $740,292 $727,362 $794,538 $907,238

13.60% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00%

$2,758 $7,322 $7,403 $7,274 $7,945 $9,072

(2,758) (7,322) (7,403) (7,274) (7,945) (9,072)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

0.40% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00%
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Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Fund 

County Engineer Fund 

Child Support Enforcement Fund

Real Estate Assessment Fund

Dog and Kennel Fund

Delinquent Tax and Assessment Collection Fund

Solid Waste Management Fund

Board of Mental Health Fund

Drug Law Enforcement Fund

Indigent Drivers Alcohol Treatment Fund

Clerk Fund

911 Operations Fund



Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued) 

County Probation Services Fund

Coroner Lab Equipment Fund

County Courts Fund

Grants Fund

Law Library Resources Fund

Geographic Information System Fund

Convention and Visitors Bureau Fund

Western Reserve Port Authority Fund

Area Agency on Aging

Concealed Handgun License Fund

Tax Administration Negotiated Lien Fund

Sheriff’s Policing Revenue Fund

Ohio Peace Officer Training Fund

Sheriff’s Office Foreclosure Fund



Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued) 

HAZMAT Fund

Certificate of Title Administration Fund

Recorder Equipment Fund

Revolving Loans Fund

Tax Certificate Administration Fund

Community and Economic Development Fund 

Adult Protective Services Fund 

Swanston Donations Fund

Probate Court Security Fund

Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund 

Roads and Bridges Fund 



Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2018

Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Capital Nonmajor

Revenue Projects Governmental
Funds Fund Funds

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and
  Cash Equivalents $30,810,833 $123,969 $30,934,802
Cash and Cash Equivalents
   In Segregated Accounts 173,875 0 173,875
Accounts Receivable 661,289 0 661,289
Intergovernmental Receivable 11,684,492 133,276 11,817,768
Property Taxes Receivable 8,746,227 0 8,746,227
Special Assessments Receivable 457,807 0 457,807

Total Assets $52,534,523 $257,245 $52,791,768

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $917,904 $0 $917,904
Accrued Wages 833,172 0 833,172
Contracts Payable 0 6,087 6,087
Intergovernmental Payable 352,481 0 352,481
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 20,430 0 20,430
Interfund Payable 411,403 0 411,403
Accrued Interest Payable 754 0 754
Notes Payable 307,563 0 307,563

Total Liabilities 2,843,707 6,087 2,849,794

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 7,670,433 0 7,670,433
Unavailable Revenue 9,483,861 0 9,483,861

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 17,154,294 0 17,154,294

Fund Balances
Restricted 32,592,440 251,158 32,843,598
Unassigned (Deficit) (55,918) 0 (55,918)

Total Fund Balances 32,536,522 251,158 32,787,680

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
  Resources and Fund Balances $52,534,523 $257,245 $52,791,768
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Capital Nonmajor

Revenue Projects Governmental
Funds Fund Funds

Revenues
Property Taxes $7,686,708 $0 $7,686,708
Hotel/Lodging Taxes 1,716,294 0 1,716,294
Intergovernmental 30,583,188 1,629,571 32,212,759
Interest 96,614 15,699 112,313
Fees, Licenses and Permits 8,372,817 0 8,372,817
Fines and Forfeitures 892,625 0 892,625
Rentals and Royalties 18,629 0 18,629
Charges for Services 1,664,022 0 1,664,022
Contributions and Donations 6,729 0 6,729
Special Assessments 284,806 0 284,806
Other 752,243 49,912 802,155

Total Revenues 52,074,675 1,695,182 53,769,857

Expenditures
Current:
  General Government:
    Legislative and Executive 10,634,894 0 10,634,894
    Judicial 3,919,784 0 3,919,784
  Public Safety 3,135,814 0 3,135,814
  Public Works 9,312,269 0 9,312,269
  Health 12,702,808 0 12,702,808
  Human Services 9,540,131 0 9,540,131
Capital Outlay 0 5,294,897 5,294,897
Debt Service:
  Principal Retirement 401,700 0 401,700
  Interest and Fiscal Charges 110,886 0 110,886

Total Expenditures 49,758,286 5,294,897 55,053,183

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 2,316,389 (3,599,715) (1,283,326)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 2,032,889 912,467 2,945,356
Transfers Out (1,593,735) 0 (1,593,735)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 439,154 912,467 1,351,621

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,755,543 (2,687,248) 68,295

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 29,780,979 2,938,406 32,719,385

Fund Balances End of Year $32,536,522 $251,158 $32,787,680
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Child Real
Motor Vehicle County Support Estate

Gas Tax Engineer Enforcement Assessment

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and
  Cash Equivalents $5,778,959 $146,202 $91,306 $3,326,528
Cash and Cash Equivalents
   In Segregated Accounts 6,850 0 3,693 0
Accounts Receivable 0 0 285,298 0
Intergovernmental Receivable 5,358,094 0 0 0
Property Taxes Receivable 0 0 0 0
Special Assessments Receivable 0 0 0 0

Total Assets $11,143,903 $146,202 $380,297 $3,326,528

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $154,912 $0 $773 $3,612
Accrued Wages 257,340 0 182,929 47,520
Intergovernmental Payable 66,036 0 54,462 11,787
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 20,430 0 0 0
Interfund Payable 0 0 0 0
Accrued Interest Payable 754 0 0 0
Notes Payable 307,563 0 0 0

Total Liabilities 807,035 0 238,164 62,919

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 0 0 0 0
Unavailable Revenue 3,637,551 0 0 0

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,637,551 0 0 0

Fund Balances
Restricted 6,699,317 146,202 142,133 3,263,609
Unassigned (Deficit) 0 0 0 0

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 6,699,317 146,202 142,133 3,263,609

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
  Resources and Fund Balances $11,143,903 $146,202 $380,297 $3,326,528

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2018
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Delinquent
Tax and Solid Board of

Dog and Assessment Waste Mental Drug Law
Kennel Collection Management Health Enforcement

$154,180 $275,354 $1,048,201 $7,230,689 $84,006

325 0 0 0 0
0 70,675 198,330 0 0
0 0 0 253,888 0
0 0 0 4,194,613 0
0 0 0 0 0

$154,505 $346,029 $1,246,531 $11,679,190 $84,006

$7,671 $3,156 $45,015 $193,579 $0
24,809 26,461 22,615 37,062 0

6,315 27,205 5,446 8,852 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

38,795 56,822 73,076 239,493 0

0 0 0 3,650,950 0
0 0 0 797,551 0

0 0 0 4,448,501 0

115,710 289,207 1,173,455 6,991,196 84,006
0 0 0 0 0

115,710 289,207 1,173,455 6,991,196 84,006

$154,505 $346,029 $1,246,531 $11,679,190 $84,006

(continued)
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Indigent County
Drivers Alcohol 911 Probation

Treatment Clerk Operations Services

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and
  Cash Equivalents $593,978 $445,010 $1,983,307 $2,129,059
Cash and Cash Equivalents
   In Segregated Accounts 1,865 17,784 0 14,148
Accounts Receivable 216 0 0 0
Intergovernmental Receivable 0 0 32,124 0
Property Taxes Receivable 0 0 0 0
Special Assessments Receivable 0 0 457,807 0

Total Assets $596,059 $462,794 $2,473,238 $2,143,207

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $0 $0 $6,930 $365
Accrued Wages 0 0 3,709 3,523
Intergovernmental Payable 0 0 895 910
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 0 0 0 0
Interfund Payable 0 0 0 0
Accrued Interest Payable 0 0 0 0
Notes Payable 0 0 0 0

Total Liabilities 0 0 11,534 4,798

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 0 0 0 0
Unavailable Revenue 0 0 457,807 0

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0 0 457,807 0

Fund Balances
Restricted 596,059 462,794 2,003,897 2,138,409
Unassigned (Deficit) 0 0 0 0

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 596,059 462,794 2,003,897 2,138,409

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
  Resources and Fund Balances $596,059 $462,794 $2,473,238 $2,143,207

December 31, 2018

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)
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Coroner Law Geographic
Lab County Library Information

Equipment Courts Grants Resources System

$57,773 $3,497,263 $2,221,028 $96,677 $108,943

0 98,531 0 27,979 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 5,956,105 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

$57,773 $3,595,794 $8,177,133 $124,656 $108,943

$0 $14,121 $434,077 $35,151 $891
0 7,558 142,855 5,696 14,679
0 2,000 33,383 1,361 3,631
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 367,970 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 23,679 978,285 42,208 19,201

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 3,977,836 0 0

0 0 3,977,836 0 0

57,773 3,572,115 3,221,012 82,448 89,742
0 0 0 0 0

57,773 3,572,115 3,221,012 82,448 89,742

$57,773 $3,595,794 $8,177,133 $124,656 $108,943

(continued)
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Convention Western Concealed
and Visitors Reserve Area Agency Handgun

Bureau Port Authority on Aging License

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and
  Cash Equivalents $677,357 $96,335 $427,719 $400
Cash and Cash Equivalents
   In Segregated Accounts 0 0 0 0
Accounts Receivable 31,878 73,512 0 1,380
Intergovernmental Receivable 0 0 80,985 0
Property Taxes Receivable 0 0 4,551,614 0
Special Assessments Receivable 0 0 0 0

Total Assets $709,235 $169,847 $5,060,318 $1,780

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $13,678 $0 $0 $0
Accrued Wages 7,035 0 0 4,690
Intergovernmental Payable 1,699 82,503 19,800 9,575
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 0 0 0 0
Interfund Payable 0 0 0 43,433
Accrued Interest Payable 0 0 0 0
Notes Payable 0 0 0 0

Total Liabilities 22,412 82,503 19,800 57,698

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 0 0 4,019,483 0
Unavailable Revenue 0 0 613,116 0

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0 0 4,632,599 0

Fund Balances
Restricted 686,823 87,344 407,919 0
Unassigned (Deficit) 0 0 0 (55,918)

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 686,823 87,344 407,919 (55,918)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
  Resources and Fund Balances $709,235 $169,847 $5,060,318 $1,780

December 31, 2018

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)
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Tax Total
Administration Sheriff's Ohio Peace Sheriff's Nonmajor

Negotiated Policing  Officer Office Special Revenue
Lien Revenue Training Foreclosure HAZMAT Funds

$22,459 $62,008 $88,818 $52,536 $114,738 $30,810,833

0 0 0 2,700 0 173,875
0 0 0 0 0 661,289
0 3,296 0 0 0 11,684,492
0 0 0 0 0 8,746,227
0 0 0 0 0 457,807

$22,459 $65,304 $88,818 $55,236 $114,738 $52,534,523

$0 $0 $0 $0 $3,973 $917,904
0 42,365 0 2,326 0 833,172
0 15,947 0 674 0 352,481
0 0 0 0 0 20,430
0 0 0 0 0 411,403
0 0 0 0 0 754
0 0 0 0 0 307,563

0 58,312 0 3,000 3,973 2,843,707

0 0 0 0 0 7,670,433
0 0 0 0 0 9,483,861

0 0 0 0 0 17,154,294

22,459 6,992 88,818 52,236 110,765 32,592,440
0 0 0 0 0 (55,918)

22,459 6,992 88,818 52,236 110,765 32,536,522

$22,459 $65,304 $88,818 $55,236 $114,738 $52,534,523
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Child
Motor Vehicle County Support

Gas Tax Engineer Enforcement

Revenues
Property Taxes $0 $0 $0
Hotel/Lodging Taxes 0 0 0
Intergovernmental 11,060,500 0 3,626,254
Interest 91,736 2,402 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 40,150 0 684,513
Fines and Forfeitures 94,060 0 0
Rentals and Royalties 47 0 0
Charges for Services 0 0 0
Contributions and Donations 0 0 4,055
Special Assessments 0 0 0
Other 230,033 0 140,165

Total Revenues 11,516,526 2,402 4,454,987

Expenditures
Current:
  General Government:
    Legislative and Executive 0 0 0
    Judicial 0 0 0
  Public Safety 0 0 0
  Public Works 9,312,269 0 0
  Health 0 0 0
  Human Services 0 0 5,530,741
Debt Service:
  Principal Retirement 401,700 0 0
  Interest and Fiscal Charges 110,886 0 0

Total Expenditures 9,824,855 0 5,530,741

Excess of Revenues Over 
  (Under) Expenditures 1,691,671 2,402 (1,075,754)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 0 0 1,062,119
Transfers Out (1,062,467) 0 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,062,467) 0 1,062,119

Net Change in Fund Balances 629,204 2,402 (13,635)

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 6,070,113 143,800 155,768

Fund Balances End of Year $6,699,317 $146,202 $142,133

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
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Delinquent
Real Tax and Solid

Estate Dog and Assessment Waste
Assessment Kennel Collection Management

$0 $0 $0 $0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

2,429,008 629,966 466,096 2,497,535
0 68,708 0 0
0 18,582 0 0
0 61,122 286,000 0
0 2,574 0 0
0 0 0 0

5,703 20,997 217,406 9,592

2,434,711 801,949 969,502 2,507,127

1,729,847 0 914,342 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 667,001 0 2,146,843
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

1,729,847 667,001 914,342 2,146,843

704,864 134,948 55,160 360,284

0 0 0 0
(150,000) (139,365) 0 (2,000)

(150,000) (139,365) 0 (2,000)

554,864 (4,417) 55,160 358,284

2,708,745 120,127 234,047 815,171

$3,263,609 $115,710 $289,207 $1,173,455

(continued)
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Board of Indigent
Mental Drug Law Drivers Alcohol
Health Enforcement Treatment

Revenues
Property Taxes $3,753,637 $0 $0
Hotel/Lodging Taxes 0 0 0
Intergovernmental 1,965,153 0 0
Interest 0 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 501 43,059
Rentals and Royalties 0 0 0
Charges for Services 0 0 0
Contributions and Donations 0 0 0
Special Assessments 0 0 0
Other 62,047 0 0

Total Revenues 5,780,837 501 43,059

Expenditures
Current:
  General Government:
    Legislative and Executive 0 0 0
    Judicial 0 0 0
  Public Safety 0 0 12,373
  Public Works 0 0 0
  Health 6,020,017 0 0
  Human Services 0 0 0
Debt Service:
  Principal Retirement 0 0 0
  Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 6,020,017 0 12,373

Excess of Revenues Over 
  (Under) Expenditures (239,180) 501 30,686

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 218,129 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 218,129 0 0

Net Change in Fund Balances (21,051) 501 30,686

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 7,012,247 83,505 565,373

Fund Balances End of Year $6,991,196 $84,006 $596,059

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
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County Coroner 
911 Probation Lab

Clerk Operations Services Equipment

$0 $0 $0 $0
0 0 0 0
0 513,233 0 0
0 0 0 0

122,879 0 0 0
0 0 208,616 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 284,806 0 0
0 25,292 532 0

122,879 823,331 209,148 0

0 0 0 0
62,250 0 119,103 0

0 538,112 0 1,642
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

62,250 538,112 119,103 1,642

60,629 285,219 90,045 (1,642)

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

60,629 285,219 90,045 (1,642)

402,165 1,718,678 2,048,364 59,415

$462,794 $2,003,897 $2,138,409 $57,773

(continued)
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Law
County Library
Courts Grants Resources

Revenues
Property Taxes $0 $0 $0
Hotel/Lodging Taxes 0 0 0
Intergovernmental 0 13,217,801 0
Interest 0 2,476 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 973,104 480 3,940
Fines and Forfeitures 40,209 0 437,472
Rentals and Royalties 0 0 0
Charges for Services 0 51,489 1,980
Contributions and Donations 0 0 100
Special Assessments 0 0 0
Other 543 27,148 654

Total Revenues 1,013,856 13,299,394 444,146

Expenditures
Current:
  General Government:
    Legislative and Executive 0 5,231,460 502,842
    Judicial 904,893 2,833,538 0
  Public Safety 0 747,701 0
  Public Works 0 0 0
  Health 0 3,868,947 0
  Human Services 0 0 0
Debt Service:
  Principal Retirement 0 0 0
  Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 904,893 12,681,646 502,842

Excess of Revenues Over 
  (Under) Expenditures 108,963 617,748 (58,696)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 0 214,759 0
Transfers Out (21,774) (218,129) 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (21,774) (3,370) 0

Net Change in Fund Balances 87,189 614,378 (58,696)

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 3,484,926 2,606,634 141,144

Fund Balances End of Year $3,572,115 $3,221,012 $82,448

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
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Geographic Convention Western
Information and Visitors Reserve Area Agency

System Bureau Port Authority on Aging

$0 $0 $0 $3,933,071
0 514,888 1,201,406 0
0 0 0 166,264
0 0 0 0
0 85,177 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

1,678 756 0 0

1,678 600,821 1,201,406 4,099,335

482,616 629,916 1,143,871 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 4,009,390

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

482,616 629,916 1,143,871 4,009,390

(480,938) (29,095) 57,535 89,945

500,000 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

500,000 0 0 0

19,062 (29,095) 57,535 89,945

70,680 715,918 29,809 317,974

$89,742 $686,823 $87,344 $407,919

(continued)
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Tax
Concealed Administration Sheriff's
Handgun Negotiated Policing
License Lien Revenue

Revenues
Property Taxes $0 $0 $0
Hotel/Lodging Taxes 0 0 0
Intergovernmental 0 0 0
Interest 0 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 312,681 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0 0
Rentals and Royalties 0 0 0
Charges for Services 0 0 1,263,431
Contributions and Donations 0 0 0
Special Assessments 0 0 0
Other 1,148 0 5,343

Total Revenues 313,829 0 1,268,774

Expenditures
Current:
  General Government:
    Legislative and Executive 0 0 0
    Judicial 0 0 0
  Public Safety 371,675 0 1,323,018
  Public Works 0 0 0
  Health 0 0 0
  Human Services 0 0 0
Debt Service:
  Principal Retirement 0 0 0
  Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 371,675 0 1,323,018

Excess of Revenues Over 
  (Under) Expenditures (57,846) 0 (54,244)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0

Net Change in Fund Balances (57,846) 0 (54,244)

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 1,928 22,459 61,236

Fund Balances End of Year ($55,918) $22,459 $6,992

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
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Total
Ohio Peace Sheriff's Nonmajor

Officer Office Special Revenue
Training Foreclosure HAZMAT Funds

$0 $0 $0 $7,686,708
0 0 0 1,716,294
0 0 33,983 30,583,188
0 0 0 96,614

88,588 38,700 0 8,372,817
0 0 0 892,625
0 0 0 18,629
0 0 0 1,664,022
0 0 0 6,729
0 0 0 284,806
0 266 2,940 752,243

88,588 38,966 36,923 52,074,675

0 0 0 10,634,894
0 0 0 3,919,784

19,814 72,687 48,792 3,135,814
0 0 0 9,312,269
0 0 0 12,702,808
0 0 0 9,540,131

0 0 0 401,700
0 0 0 110,886

19,814 72,687 48,792 49,758,286

68,774 (33,721) (11,869) 2,316,389

0 0 37,882 2,032,889
0 0 0 (1,593,735)

0 0 37,882 439,154

68,774 (33,721) 26,013 2,755,543

20,044 85,957 84,752 29,780,979

$88,818 $52,236 $110,765 $32,536,522
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Vehicle Maintenance Fund

Workers’ Compensation Fund

Self-funded Hospitalization Fund

Telephone/Data Board Fund



Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Fund Net Position

Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2018

Vehicle Workers' Self-funded Telephone/
Maintenance Compensation Hospitalization Data Board Total

Assets  
Equity in Pooled Cash  
   and Cash Equivalents  $91,946 $3,727,795 $9,018,425 $43,558 $12,881,724
Receivables:
  Property Taxes 0 0 270,111 0 270,111
  Intergovernmental  0 0 38,340 0 38,340
  Accounts  0 0 2,275 0 2,275
Prepaid Items 0 446,082 0 0 446,082

Total Assets  91,946 4,173,877 9,329,151 43,558 13,638,532

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Charge on Refunding 0 0 246,349 0 246,349

Liabilities  
Current Liabilities:  
Accounts Payable  38,066 0 631 25,561 64,258
Accrued Wages  0 4,553 4,796 0 9,349
Intergovernmental Payable  0 366,722 1,388 0 368,110
Accrued Interest Payable  0 0 6,954 0 6,954
General Obligation Bonds Payable  0 0 225,000 0 225,000
Claims Payable  0 618,565 2,359,920 0 2,978,485

Total Current Liabilities  38,066 989,840 2,598,689 25,561 3,652,156

Long-Term Liabilities (net    
  of current portion):  
General Obligation Bonds Payable   0 0 3,110,000 0 3,110,000
Claims Payable  0 306,634 0 0 306,634

Total Long-Term Liabilities  0 306,634 3,110,000 0 3,416,634

Total Liabilities  38,066 1,296,474 5,708,689 25,561 7,068,790

Deferred Inflows of Resources   
Property Taxes   0 0 270,111 0 270,111

Net Position  
Unrestricted $53,880 $2,877,403 $3,596,700 $17,997 $6,545,980
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Vehicle Workers' Self-funded Telephone/
Maintenance Compensation Hospitalization Data Board Total

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $435,159 $1,015,590 $25,672,435 $444,430 $27,567,614
Other 0 67,662 57,107 0 124,769

Total Operating Revenues 435,159 1,083,252 25,729,542 444,430 27,692,383

Operating Expenses
Personal Services 0 108,046 100,828 0 208,874
Materials and Supplies 416,598 0 0 0 416,598
Contractual Services 2,140 560,852 1,672,443 406,950 2,642,385
Claims 0 57,974 22,776,613 0 22,834,587
Change in Worker's 
  Compensation Estimate 0 21,641 0 0 21,641
Other 15,268 0 0 0 15,268

Total Operating Expenses 434,006 748,513 24,549,884 406,950 26,139,353

Operating Income (Loss) 1,153 334,739 1,179,658 37,480 1,553,030

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Property Taxes 0 0 266,105 0 266,105
Grants 0 0 38,340 0 38,340
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 (106,088) 0 (106,088)

Total Non-Operating 
  Revenues (Expenses) 0 0 198,357 0 198,357

Change in Net Position 1,153 334,739 1,378,015 37,480 1,751,387

Net Position (Deficit) 
  Beginning of Year 52,727 2,542,664 2,218,685 (19,483) 4,794,593

Net Position End of Year $53,880 $2,877,403 $3,596,700 $17,997 $6,545,980
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Vehicle Workers' Self-funded Telephone/
Maintenance Compensation Hospitalization Data Board Total

Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
  and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Interfund
   Services Provided $435,159 $1,015,590 $25,673,532 $444,430 $27,568,711
Other Cash Receipts 0 80,691 57,107 0 137,798
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 0 (107,124) (101,610) 0 (208,734)
Cash Payments for Goods and Services (392,777) 0 (1,671,812) (412,974) (2,477,563)
Cash Payments for Claims 0 0 (22,379,782) 0 (22,379,782)
Cash Payments for Workers' 
   Compensation Premiums 0 (506,013) 0 0 (506,013)
Cash Payments to State Bureau of Workers' 
   Compensation for Claims 0 (355,849) 0 0 (355,849)
Other Cash Payments (15,268) 0 0 0 (15,268)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
   Operating Activities 27,114 127,295 1,577,435 31,456 1,763,300

Cash Flows from Noncapital and 
 Related Financing Activities
Property Taxes 0 0 266,105 0 266,105
Grants 0 0 39,166 0 39,166
Principal Paid on Bonds 0 0 (215,000) 0 (215,000)
Interest Paid on Bonds 0 0 (90,271) 0 (90,271)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapital 
 and Related Financing Activities 0 0 0 0 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,114 127,295 1,577,435 31,456 1,763,300

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
   Beginning of Year 64,832 3,600,500 7,440,990 12,102 11,118,424

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year $91,946 $3,727,795 $9,018,425 $43,558 $12,881,724

Reconciliation of Operating
  Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
  by (Used In) Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) $1,153 $334,739 $1,179,658 $37,480 $1,553,030

  (Increase) Decrease in Assets:
    Accounts Receivable 0 0 1,097 0 1,097
    Intergovernmental Receivable 0 13,029 0 0 13,029
    Prepaid Items 0 55,663 0 0 55,663
  Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities  
    Accounts Payable 25,961 (824) 631 (6,024) 19,744
    Accrued Wages 0 726 (808) 0 (82)
    Intergovernmental Payable 0 9,973 26 0 9,999
    Claims Payable 0 (286,011) 396,831 0 110,820

Total Adjustments 25,961 (207,444) 397,777 (6,024) 210,270

Net Cash Provided by (Used In)
  Operating Activities $27,114 $127,295 $1,577,435 $31,456 $1,763,300
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Fiduciary Funds 

Custodial Funds 

Payroll

Undivided Tax 

Board of Health 

Other Custodial 



Payroll Undivided Tax

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $409,766 $5,695,894
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Segregated Accounts 0 0 
Property Taxes Receivable 0 218,568,171 
Intergovernmental Receivable 0 8,099,316 
Special Assessments Receivable 0 16,626,866 

Total Assets 409,766 248,990,247

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 409,766 0
Intergovernmental Payable 0 13,795,160 

Total Liabilities 409,766 13,795,160

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes 0 191,754,831 

Net Position
Restricted for Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments $0 $43,440,256

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Custodial Funds
December 31, 2018
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Total
Board of Health Other Custodial Custodial Funds

$3,082,002 $1,406,244 $10,593,906
0 3,575,362 3,575,362 
0 0 218,568,171 
0 0 8,099,316 
0 0 16,626,866 

3,082,002 4,981,606 257,463,621

0 480,561 890,327
25,180 2,744,186 16,564,526 

25,180 3,224,747 17,454,853

0 0 191,754,831 

$3,056,822 $1,756,859 $48,253,937
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Payroll Undivided Tax

Additions
Intergovernmental $0 $24,624,232
Amounts Received as Fiscal Agent 0 0 
Licenses, Permits and Fees for Other Governments 0 0 
Fines and Forfeitures for Other Governments 0 0 
Amounts Held for Employees 19,437,952 0 
Property Tax Collections for Other Governments 0 207,744,760 
Special Assessment Collections for Other Governments 0 6,070,483 
Sheriff Sales Collections for Others 0 0 
Miscellaneous 0 46,010 

Total Additions 19,437,952 238,485,485

Deductions
Distributions of State Funds to Other Governments 0 24,619,526
Licenses, Permits and Fees Distributions to Other Governments 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures Distributions to Other Governments 0 0
Property Tax Distributions to Other Governments 0 210,774,197
Special Assessment Distributions to Other Governments 0 1,537,370
Sheriff Sales Distributions to Others 0 0
Distributions on Behalf of Employees 19,437,952 0
Distributions as Fiscal Agent 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 46,035 

Total Deductions 19,437,952 236,977,128

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position 0 1,508,357

Net Position Beginning of Year 0 41,931,899 

Net Position End of Year $0 $43,440,256

Mahoning County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Custodial Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
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Total
Board of Health Other Custodial Custodial Funds

$0 $0 $24,624,232
7,494,230 0 7,494,230 

0 28,341,571 28,341,571 
0 6,676,553 6,676,553 
0 0 19,437,952 
0 0 207,744,760 
0 0 6,070,483 
0 3,071,262 3,071,262 
0 2,489,639 2,535,649 

7,494,230 40,579,025 305,996,692

0 0 24,619,526
0 28,326,832 28,326,832
0 6,568,920 6,568,920
0 0 210,774,197
0 0 1,537,370
0 3,071,262 3,071,262
0 0 19,437,952

7,734,129 0 7,734,129
0 2,025,585 2,071,620 

7,734,129 39,992,599 304,141,808

(239,899) 586,426 1,854,884

3,296,721 1,170,433 46,399,053 

$3,056,822 $1,756,859 $48,253,937
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in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final   Actual  (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $4,917,629 $4,917,629 $4,931,853 $14,224
Permissive Sales Tax 14,581,219 14,581,219 14,901,452 320,233
Intergovernmental 5,441,167 5,441,167 6,531,787 1,090,620
Conveyance Fees 1,901,485 1,901,485 2,461,953 560,468
Interest 800,000 800,000 1,330,706 530,706
Fees, Licenses and Permits 2,922,000 2,922,000 3,625,508 703,508
Fines and Forfeitures 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,514,018 (85,982)
Rentals and Royalties 1,506,000 1,506,000 1,571,356 65,356
Charges for Services 895,000 895,000 1,153,211 258,211
Other 500 500 668,068 667,568

Total Revenues 34,565,000 34,565,000 38,689,912 4,124,912

Expenditures
Current:

General Government:
Legislative and Executive

Commissioners
Personal Services 1,045,927 1,104,803 1,083,744 21,059
Materials and Supplies 17,100 17,251 10,216 7,035
Contractual Services 55,960 55,549 38,941 16,608
Capital Outlay 5,000 12,865 11,212 1,653

Total Commissioners 1,123,987 1,190,468 1,144,113 46,355

Microfilm
Personal Services 220,298 231,398 230,781 617
Materials and Supplies 4,500 3,695 1,935 1,760
Contractual Services 30,000 460,423 460,423 0
Capital Outlay 5,000 24,129 24,129 0

Total Microfilm 259,798 719,645 717,268 2,377

Planning Commission
Personal Services 225,833 235,333 231,994 3,339
Materials and Supplies 2,840 4,858 4,858 0
Contractual Services 37,230 41,163 39,954 1,209
Capital Outlay 2,400 1,228 1,228 0

Total Planning Commission 268,303 282,582 278,034 4,548

Facilities Management
Personal Services 1,996,563 2,140,863 2,105,154 35,709
Materials and Supplies 172,641 227,854 186,578 41,276
Contractual Services 1,399,535 1,391,856 1,376,780 15,076
Capital Outlay 30,000 30,000 27,278 2,722
Other 200 200 156 44

Total Facilities Management $3,598,939 $3,790,773 $3,695,946 $94,827

(continued)

Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final   Actual  (Negative)

Auditor
Personal Services $795,057 $823,937 $823,110 $827
Materials and Supplies 31,900 23,126 18,141 4,985
Contractual Services 56,777 45,192 44,377 815
Capital Outlay 1,000 0 0 0
Other 0 12,603 12,603 0

Total Auditor 884,734 904,858 898,231 6,627

Treasurer
Personal Services 650,210 610,210 550,064 60,146
Materials and Supplies 19,687 19,687 17,340 2,347
Contractual Services 184,319 221,966 176,215 45,751
Capital Outlay 0 221 221 0

Total Treasurer 854,216 852,084 743,840 108,244

Recorder
Personal Services 364,540 376,740 356,173 20,567
Materials and Supplies 6,200 8,972 8,487 485
Contractual Services 4,961 5,189 5,189 0

Total Recorder 375,701 390,901 369,849 21,052

Board of Elections
Personal Services 1,435,417 1,695,000 1,659,091 35,909
Materials and Supplies 114,933 108,107 95,929 12,178
Contractual Services 424,811 440,130 418,164 21,966
Capital Outlay 140,133 130,809 112,979 17,830
Other 0 133  133  0

Total Board of Elections 2,115,294 2,374,179 2,286,296 87,883

Data Processing
Personal Services 757,376 821,518 819,509 2,009
Materials and Supplies 2,800 1,470 1,470 0
Contractual Services 442,169 441,922 441,922 0
Capital Outlay 75,000 106,553 106,553 0

Total Data Processing 1,277,345 1,371,463 1,369,454 2,009

Administrative Costs
Personal Services 50,000 25,396 19,374 6,022
Contractual Services 1,266,855 1,374,732 1,374,732 0
Other 469,986 388,362  388,362  0

Total Administrative Costs 1,786,841 1,788,490 1,782,468 6,022

Unclaimed Monies
Other 0 41,353 41,353 0

Total Legislative and Executive $12,545,158 $13,706,796 $13,326,852 $379,944

(continued)

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final   Actual  (Negative)

General Government:
Judicial

Clerk of Courts
Personal Services $2,974,970 $3,089,894 $2,970,723 $119,171
Materials and Supplies 285,860  265,209  239,953 25,256
Contractual Services 527,981 598,081 581,924 16,157
Capital Outlay 18,316 60,469 59,519 950
Other 0 7,284  7,239  45

Total Clerk of Courts 3,807,127 4,020,937 3,859,358 161,579

Judicial General
Contractual Services 2,035,000 2,119,000 2,118,260 740

Common Pleas
Personal Services 2,820,496 2,958,096 2,957,449 647
Materials and Supplies 16,045  16,000  15,769 231
Contractual Services 140,162 152,162 151,519 643

Total Common Pleas 2,976,703 3,126,258 3,124,737 1,521

Domestic Relations
Personal Services 911,584 955,584 952,048 3,536
Materials and Supplies 7,721 9,219 8,846 373
Contractual Services 68,400 67,435 64,282 3,153
Capital Outlay 4,000 3,465 3,139 326

Total Domestic Relations 991,705 1,035,703 1,028,315 7,388

Juvenile Court
Personal Services 5,740,206 5,875,726 5,763,677 112,049
Materials and Supplies 287,300 287,708 278,835 8,873
Contractual Services 527,521 559,659 536,006 23,653
Capital Outlay 2,000 13,286 13,286 0
Other 1,000 1,000 760 240

Total Juvenile Court 6,558,027 6,737,379 6,592,564 144,815

Probate Developmental Disabilities III
Contractual Services 20,000 35,000 24,586 10,414

Probate Court
Personal Services 1,019,770 1,045,630 986,749 58,881
Materials and Supplies 11,992 11,183 10,729 454
Contractual Services 45,933 43,013 41,091 1,922
Capital Outlay 0 2,423 2,244 179

Total Probate Court 1,077,695 1,102,249 1,040,813 61,436

Municipal Courts
Personal Services 345,440 369,040 363,068 5,972
Contractual Services 5,300 61,300 38,073 23,227

Total Municipal Courts $350,740 $430,340 $401,141 $29,199

(continued)

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
General Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final   Actual  (Negative)

Bailiffs
Personal Services $735,228 $768,828 $747,769 $21,059
Contractual Services 11,913 21,913 19,368 2,545

Total Bailiffs 747,141 790,741 767,137 23,604

Probation
Personal Services 206,262 213,262 198,980 14,282
Materials and Supplies 256 262 262 0

Total Probation 206,518 213,524 199,242 14,282

Total Judicial 18,770,656 19,611,131 19,156,153 454,978

Total General Government 31,315,814 33,317,927 32,483,005 834,922

    Public Safety:
Building Regulations Department

Personal Services 723,613 723,613 621,084 102,529
Materials and Supplies 16,620  17,571  17,571 0
Contractual Services 53,740 62,878 62,878 0
Capital Outlay 39,578 20,383 6,352 14,031
Other 850 850  519  331

Total Public Safety 834,401 825,295 708,404 116,891

Human Services:
Veteran Services

Personal Services 977,267 877,267 861,855 15,412
Materials and Supplies 100,376 90,661 87,929 2,732
Contractual Services 947,570 975,303 975,303 0
Capital Outlay 156,115 97,464 97,464 0
Other 1,000 126,748 126,748 0

Total Human Services 2,182,328 2,167,443 2,149,299 18,144

Total Expenditures 34,332,543 36,310,665 35,340,708 969,957

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 232,457 (1,745,665) 3,349,204 5,094,869

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advance In 0 0 617,626 617,626
Advance Out 0 (700,000) (544,570) 155,430
Transfers In 100,000 100,000 350,268 250,268
Transfers Out (1,461,104) (1,786,104) (1,657,437) 128,667

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,361,104) (2,386,104) (1,234,113) 1,151,991

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,128,647) (4,131,769) 2,115,091 6,246,860

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 11,706,898 11,706,898 11,706,898 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 303,647 303,647 303,647 0

Fund Balance End of Year $10,881,898 $7,878,776 $14,125,636 $6,246,860

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Criminal and Administrative Justice Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Final Positive
Original Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Permissive Sales Tax $24,674,000 $24,674,000 $25,116,517 $442,517
Intergovernmental 2,462,000 2,462,000 3,088,787 626,787
Fees, Licenses and Permits 260,000 260,000 308,320 48,320
Fines and Forfeitures 30,000 30,000 19,571 (10,429)
Rentals and Royalties 275,000 275,000 298,743 23,743
Charges for Services 448,500 448,500 729,170 280,670
Other 0 0 323,857 323,857

Total Revenues 28,149,500 28,149,500 29,884,965 1,735,465

Expenditures
Current:
  Public Safety:
      Sheriff and Administration
        Personal Services 17,175,949 17,617,282 17,547,694 69,588
        Materials and Supplies 1,049,526 1,070,289 1,007,721 62,568
        Contractual Services 3,774,144 3,752,901 3,566,400 186,501
        Capital Outlay 255,677 373,152 326,518 46,634
        Other 69,719 69,319 55,441 13,878

      Total Sheriff and Administration 22,325,015 22,882,943 22,503,774 379,169

      Prosecutor
        Personal Services 3,266,339 3,638,319 3,624,417 13,902
        Materials and Supplies 32,139 31,511 30,143 1,368
        Contractual Services 160,945 141,242 139,415 1,827
        Capital Outlay 11,551 4,799 4,799 0
        Other 67,371 83,868 83,734 134

      Total Prosecutor 3,538,345 3,899,739 3,882,508 17,231

      Emergency 9-1-1
        Materials and Supplies 0 11 11 0
        Contractual Services 993,060 1,056,664 1,046,787 9,877

      Total Emergency 9-1-1 $993,060 $1,056,675 $1,046,798 $9,877

(continued)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Criminal and Administrative Justice Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Final Positive
Original Budget Actual (Negative)

      Prosecuter Contracts
        Personal Services $516,244 $631,595 $630,475 $1,120
        Contractual Services 0 639 639 0

      Total Prosecuter Contracts 516,244 632,234 631,114 1,120

      Coroner
        Personal Services 580,238 534,638 531,802 2,836
        Materials and Supplies 15,702 15,645 7,317 8,328
        Contractual Services 262,559 317,365 305,548 11,817
        Capital Outlay 5,000 23,519 20,233 3,286

      Total Coroner 863,499 891,167 864,900 26,267

Total Expenditures 28,236,163 29,362,758 28,929,094 433,664

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (86,663) (1,213,258) 955,871 2,169,129

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (80,000) (134,982) (134,982) 0

Net Change in Fund Balance (166,663) (1,348,240) 820,889 2,169,129

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,411,745 1,411,745 1,411,745 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 166,663 166,663 166,663 0

Fund Balance End of Year $1,411,745 $230,168 $2,399,297 $2,169,129
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Department of Human Services Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Final Positive
Original Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $15,398,000 $15,238,000 $15,009,719 ($228,281)
Charges for Services 858,205 858,205 812,182 (46,023)
Other 85,700 85,700 215,214 129,514

Total Revenues 16,341,905 16,181,905 16,037,115 (144,790)

Expenditures
Current:
  Human Services:
      Administration
        Personal Services 12,410,165 12,210,165 11,929,040 281,125
        Materials and Supplies 197,493 197,414 154,277 43,137
        Contractual Services 3,510,771 4,330,080 4,174,725 155,355
        Capital Outlay 96,304 36,054 33,425 2,629
        Other 153,324 153,324 153,322 2

Total Expenditures 16,368,057 16,927,037 16,444,789 482,248

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (26,152) (745,132) (407,674) 337,458

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 853,795 853,795 854,386 591
Transfers Out (800,780) (640,780) (612,119) 28,661

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 53,015 213,015 242,267 29,252

Net Change in Fund Balance 26,863 (532,117) (165,407) 366,710

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 567,837 567,837 567,837 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 55,247 55,247 55,247 0

Fund Balance End of Year $649,947 $90,967 $457,677 $366,710
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Children Services Board Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Final Positive
Original Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $8,388,093 $8,388,093 $8,454,543 $66,450
Intergovernmental 6,291,866 6,291,866 7,160,858 868,992
Other 10,000 10,000 100,867 90,867

Total Revenues 14,689,959 14,689,959 15,716,268 1,026,309

Expenditures
Current:
   Human Services:
      Security
        Contractual Services 229,209 136,079 115,923 20,156

      Prosecutor
        Contractual Services 216,290 380,420 380,420 0

      Administration
        Personal Services 710,247 629,714 629,714 0
        Materials and Supplies 0 4,008 4,008 0
        Contractual Services 578,300 1,013,512 744,743 268,769
        Other 165,000 211,885 211,885 0

      Total Administration 1,453,547 1,859,119 1,590,350 268,769

      Intake
        Personal Services 1,918,732 1,864,786 1,864,786 0
        Materials and Supplies 0 1,135 1,135 0
        Contractual Services 109,500 141,757 141,757 0
        Other 20,000 0 0 0

      Total Intake 2,048,232 2,007,678 2,007,678 0

      Family Services   
        Personal Services 2,296,417 2,255,485 2,255,485 0
        Materials and Supplies 5,600 27,390 27,390 0
        Contractual Services 970,800 890,026 842,283 47,743
        Other 25,000 83,984 83,984 0

      Total Family Services   $3,297,817 $3,256,885 $3,209,142 $47,743

(continued)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Children Services Board Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Final Positive
Original Budget Actual (Negative)

      Financial
        Personal Services $585,752 $755,159 $755,159 $0
        Materials and Supplies 63,000 60,691 58,547 2,144
        Contractual Services 102,500 59,000 59,000 0
        Capital Outlay 52,500 97,683 97,683 0

      Total Financial 803,752 972,533 970,389 2,144

      Clerical
        Personal Services 767,638 651,816 651,816 0
        Contractual Services 1,500 2,540 2,540 0

      Total Clerical 769,138 654,356 654,356 0

      Residential
        Personal Services 0 457 457 0
        Contractual Services 0 626 626 0

      Total Residential 0 1,083 1,083 0

      Daybreak Services
        Contractual Services 90,000 115,128 115,128 0

      Resource
        Personal Services 1,530,728 1,680,560 1,680,560 0
        Materials and Supplies 7,000 9,365 9,365 0
        Contractual Services 4,239,246 4,311,753 4,213,521 98,232
        Other 5,000 5,000 0 5,000

      Total Resource 5,781,974 6,006,678 5,903,446 103,232

Total Expenditures 14,689,959 15,389,959 14,947,915 442,044

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 (700,000) 768,353 1,468,353

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 11,410,697 11,410,697 11,410,697 0

Fund Balance End of Year $11,410,697 $10,710,697 $12,179,050 $1,468,353
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Developmental Disabilities Board Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $14,939,044 $14,939,044 $15,063,076 $124,032
Intergovernmental 8,848,120 8,848,120 9,648,224 800,104
Rentals and Royalties 5,160 5,160 10,162 5,002
Charges for Services 861,760 861,760 858,855 (2,905)
Contributions and Donations 250 250 50 (200)
Other 278,010 278,010 796,393 518,383

Total Revenues 24,932,344 24,932,344 26,376,760 1,444,416

Expenditures
Current:
   Health:
      Administration
        Personal Services 1,413,291 1,640,707 1,615,359 25,348
        Materials and Supplies 39,633 34,556 29,548 5,008
        Contractual Services 881,627 1,074,721 1,045,087 29,634
        Capital Outlay 16,636 17,048 17,043 5
        Other 293,250 293,250 268,984 24,266

      Total Administration 2,644,437 3,060,282 2,976,021 84,261

      Investigative Agent Service
        Personal Service 279,053 295,379 284,943 10,436
        Materials and Supplies 2,375 2,049 1,259 790
        Contractual Services 8,036 12,526 11,358 1,168
        Capital Outlay 2,460 2,194 2,044 150

      Total Investigative Agent Service 291,924 312,148 299,604 12,544

      Leonard Kirtz
        Personal Service 2,265,774 2,237,706 2,203,443 34,263
        Materials and Supplies 135,983 130,779 110,265 20,514
        Contractual Services 362,865 381,289 358,379 22,910
        Capital Outlay 20,920 18,803 14,853 3,950

      Total Leonard Kirtz 2,785,542 2,768,577 2,686,940 81,637

      Early Intervention
        Personal Services 691,922 691,548 687,031 4,517
        Materials and Supplies 10,938 11,549 5,343 6,206
        Contractual Services 260,807 255,566 251,484 4,082
        Capital Outlay 3,530 3,530 0 3,530

      Total Early Intervention $967,197 $962,193 $943,858 $18,335

(continued)

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Developmental Disabilities Board Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

      Centre at Javit Court
        Personal Services $1,623,802 $1,739,189 $1,703,146 $36,043
        Materials and Supplies 61,925 54,876 35,203 19,673
        Contractual Supplies 303,103 287,644 279,511 8,133
        Capital Outlay 1,000 10,585 6,840 3,745

      Total Centre at Javit Court 1,989,830 2,092,294 2,024,700 67,594

      MASCO
        Personal Services 1,530,505 1,510,145 1,484,190 25,955
        Materials and Supplies 45,066 21,671 17,474 4,197
        Contractual Supplies 935,526 855,450 737,329 118,121
        Capital Outlay 1,160 140 0 140

      Total MASCO 2,512,257 2,387,406 2,238,993 148,413

      Community Services
        Personal Services 3,796,845 3,554,306 3,531,746 22,560
        Materials and Supplies 19,641 23,197 19,067 4,130
        Contractual Services 8,180,770 9,216,432 9,155,879 60,553
        Capital Outlay 95,535 121,509 110,029 11,480
        Other 276,639 155,121 136,725 18,396

      Total Community Services 12,369,430 13,070,565 12,953,446 117,119

      Transportation
        Personal Services 1,986,956 1,971,935 1,925,278 46,657
        Materials and Supplies 342,165 289,101 262,658 26,443
        Contractual Services 80,235 84,605 76,487 8,118
        Capital Outlay 2,750 10,741 10,733 8
 
      Total Transportation 2,412,106 2,356,382 2,275,156 81,226

      Building and Grounds
        Personal Services 97,964 98,784 96,838 1,946
        Materials and Supplies 150 190 190 0
        Contractual Services 1,277 1,501 1,251 250
 
      Total Building and Grounds 99,391 100,475 98,279 2,196

      Community Environment
        Personal Services 1,845 0 0 0
        Contractual Services 1,135 0 0 0
 
      Total Community Environment $2,980 $0 $0 $0

(continued)

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Developmental Disabilities Board Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

      Rayen Avenue
        Contractual Services $0 $2,000 $2,000 $0

      Summer Camp
        Personal Services 228,775 217,811 215,489 2,322
        Materials and Supplies 2,670 2,935 2,079 856
        Contractual Services 21,383 27,030 18,594 8,436
 
      Total Summer Camp 252,828 247,776 236,162 11,614

Total Expenditures 26,327,922 27,360,098 26,735,159 624,939

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures   (1,395,578) (2,427,754) (358,399) 2,069,355

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 10,005 10,005

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,395,578) (2,427,754) (348,394) 2,079,360

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 31,245,939 31,245,939 31,245,939 0
 
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 814,118 814,118 814,118 0

Fund Balance End of Year $30,664,479 $29,632,303 $31,711,663 $2,079,360

Budgeted Amounts
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $2,474,008 $2,474,008 $0
Permissive Sales Tax 1,861,100 1,861,100 0
Intergovernmental 410,218 350,285 (59,933)
Other 159,255 281,990 122,735

Total Revenues 4,904,581 4,967,383 62,802

Expenditures
Current:
    General Government:
      Legislative and Executive
        Contractual Services 3,850 3,850 0
        Other 76,150 49,269 26,881

    Total General Government 80,000 53,119 26,881

Debt Service:
   Principal Retirement 7,034,999 7,034,999 0
   Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,023,314 1,372,511 650,803
   Issuance Costs 61,388 61,388 0

Total Debt Service 9,119,701 8,468,898 650,803

Total Expenditures 9,199,701 8,522,017 677,684

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,295,120) (3,554,634) 740,486

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bond Anticipation Notes Issued 3,180,000 3,180,000 0
Premium on Bond Anticipation Notes 41,388 41,388 0
Transfers In 53,472 333,332 279,860

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,274,860 3,554,720 279,860

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,020,260) 86 1,020,346

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,020,260 1,020,260 0

Fund Balance End of Year $0 $1,020,346 $1,020,346
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Buildings and Equipment Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Payments in Lieu of Taxes $854,247 $704,226 ($150,021)
Intergovernmental 0 450,000 450,000
Interest 11,653 113,917 102,264
Contributions and Donations 0 93 93

Total Revenues 865,900 1,268,236 402,336

Expenditures
Capital Outlay 4,328,958 3,046,616 1,282,342

Debt Service:
   Principal Retirement 16,330 15,000 1,330
   Interest and Fiscal Charges 12,295 12,295 0
   Issuance Costs 15,000 15,000 0

Total Debt Service 43,625 42,295 1,330

Total Expenditures 4,372,583 3,088,911 1,283,672

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3,506,683) (1,820,675) 1,686,008

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bond Anticipation Notes Issued 850,000 850,000 0
Advance In 0 133,167 133,167
Advance Out (39,855) (39,855) 0
Transfers In 7,428 97,104 89,676
Transfers Out (1,098,917) (333,332) 765,585

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (281,344) 707,084 988,428

Net Change in Fund Balance (3,788,027) (1,113,591) 2,674,436

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 8,062,599 8,062,599 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 786,768 786,768 0

Fund Balance End of Year $5,061,340 $7,735,776 $2,674,436
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Water Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Capital Grants $338,495 $153,313 ($185,182)
Charges for Services 843,770 801,565 (42,205)
Fees, Licenses and Permits 26,000 41,904 15,904
Special Assessments 10,000 6,919 (3,081)
Interest 1,750 15,760 14,010
General Obligation Notes Issued 345,000 345,000 0
Premium on General Obligation Notes Issued 3,543 3,543 0
General Obligation Bonds Issued 2,020,000 2,020,000 0
Other 2,252 1,252 (1,000)

Total Revenues 3,590,810 3,389,256 (201,554)

Expenses
Materials and Supplies 62,648 54,253 8,395
Contractual Services 991,334 900,175 91,159
Capital Outlay 763,372 497,509 265,863
Other 6,946 4,055 2,891
Debt Service:
   Principal Retirement 2,394,009 2,389,009 5,000
   Interest and Fiscal Charges 269,195 218,599 50,596
   Issuance Costs 62,043 62,043 0

Total Expenses 4,549,547 4,125,643 423,904

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenses Before Transfers (958,737) (736,387) 222,350

Transfers In 500,269 500,000 (269)

Net Change in Fund Equity (458,468) (236,387) 222,081

Fund Equity Beginning of Year 577,093 577,093 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 770,606 770,606 0

Fund Equity End of Year $889,231 $1,111,312 $222,081
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Sewer Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Capital Grants $789,859 $310,371 ($479,488)
Charges for Services 27,094,813 26,671,909 (422,904)
Fees, Licenses and Permits 450,000 466,687 16,687
Special Assessments 200,000 205,378 5,378
Rentals 18,027 18,058 31
Interest 25,986 190,624 164,638
OPWC Loans Issued 3,674,083 512,674 (3,161,409)
General Obligation Notes Issued 2,870,000 2,870,000 0
Premium on General Obligation Notes Issued 29,475 29,475 0
Revenue Bonds Issued 679,803 2,382,068 1,702,265
Other 23,547 312,644 289,097

Total Revenues 35,855,593 33,969,888 (1,885,705)

Expenses
Personal Services 9,753,675 9,727,935 25,740
Materials and Supplies 1,515,130 1,482,502 32,628
Contractual Services 12,536,650 12,016,653 519,997
Capital Outlay 13,629,430 12,120,263 1,509,167
Other 435,935 375,351 60,584
Debt Service:
   Principal Retirement 4,581,406 4,581,402 4
   Interest and Fiscal Charges 993,788 964,723 29,065
   Issuance Costs 49,475 49,475 0

Total Expenses 43,495,489 41,318,304 2,177,185

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
  Expenses Before Transfers (7,639,896) (7,348,416) 291,480

Transfers Out (1,248,248) (712,000) 536,248

Net Change in Fund Equity (8,888,144) (8,060,416) 827,728

Fund Equity Beginning of Year 26,319,783 26,319,783 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 4,592,136 4,592,136 0

Fund Equity End of Year $22,023,775 $22,851,503 $827,728
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $10,650,000 $11,087,139 $437,139
Interest 0 91,736 91,736
Fees, Licenses and Permits 20,000 40,150 20,150
Fines and Forfeitures 125,000 93,527 (31,473)
Rentals and Royalities 0 47 47
Other 0 230,033 230,033

Total Revenues 10,795,000 11,542,632 747,632

Expenditures
Current:
  Public Works:
    Prosecutor
      Personal Services 121,620 120,143 1,477
      Contractual Services 210 161 49

   Total Prosecutor 121,830 120,304 1,526

    Administration
      Personal Services 543,100 530,166 12,934
      Materials and Supplies 13,201 12,737 464
      Contractual Services 290,323 269,362 20,961
      Capital Outlay 18,663 18,643 20
      Other 2,137 2,137 0

    Total Administration 867,424 833,045 34,379

    Roads
      Personal Services 6,571,488 5,781,816 789,672
      Materials and Supplies 739,450 712,914 26,536
      Contractual Services 359,559 346,781 12,778
      Capital Outlay 605,961 581,284 24,677
      Other 5,600 0 5,600

    Total Roads 8,282,058 7,422,795 859,263

    Traffic
      Materials and Supplies 107,000 69,634 37,366
      Contractual Services 126,805 122,079 4,726
      Capital Outlay 75 75 0

    Total Traffic $233,880 $191,788 $42,092

(continued)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Fund (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

    General Contracts
      Materials and Supplies $952,471 $952,471 $0
      Contractual Services 37,983 37,983 0
      Capital Outlay 166,550 114,344 52,206

    Total General Contracts 1,157,004 1,104,798 52,206

   Total Public Works 10,662,196 9,672,730 989,466

Debt Service
      Principal Retirement 432,348 431,700 648
      Interest and Fiscal Charges 119,127 113,848 5,279

Total Debt Service 551,475 545,548 5,927

Total Expenditures 11,213,671 10,218,278 995,393

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (418,671) 1,324,354 1,743,025

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (1,095,197) (1,062,467) 32,730

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,513,868) 261,887 1,775,755

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 4,480,197 4,480,197 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 665,101 665,101 0

Fund Balance End of Year $3,631,430 $5,407,185 $1,775,755
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
County Engineer Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Interest $0 $2,402 $2,402

Expenditures 0 0 0

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 2,402 2,402

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 143,800 143,800 0

Fund Balance End of Year $143,800 $146,202 $2,402
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Child Support Enforcement Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $3,543,100 $3,626,254 $83,154
Fees, Licenses and Permits 705,132 687,133 (17,999)
Contributions and Donations 3,000 4,055 1,055
Other 78,372 140,165 61,793

Total Revenues 4,329,604 4,457,607 128,003

Expenditures
Current:
   Human Services:
      Administration
        Personal Services 4,293,298 4,271,792 21,506
        Materials and Supplies 17,820 16,177 1,643
        Contractual Services 480,847 379,845 101,002
        Capital Outlay 25,000 24,300 700
        Other 910,074 857,180 52,894

Total Expenditures 5,727,039 5,549,294 177,745
  

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,397,435) (1,091,687) 305,748

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 1,336,593 1,062,119 (274,474)

Net Change in Fund Balance (60,842) (29,568) 31,274

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 35,911 35,911 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 40,257 40,257 0

Fund Balance End of Year $15,326 $46,600 $31,274
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Real Estate Assessment Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $2,400,000 $2,429,008 $29,008
Other 0 5,703 5,703

Total Revenues 2,400,000 2,434,711 34,711

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
     Legislative and Executive
      Auditor
        Personal Services 1,334,408 1,190,479 143,929
        Materials and Supplies 31,000 26,349 4,651
        Contractual Services 1,109,826 690,277 419,549
        Capital Outlay 22,000 3,151 18,849
        Other 60,698 60,698 0

Total Expenditures 2,557,932 1,970,954 586,978

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (157,932) 463,757 621,689

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (150,000) (150,000) 0

Net Change in Fund Balance (307,932) 313,757 621,689

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 2,692,286 2,692,286 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 262,471 262,471 0

Fund Balance End of Year $2,646,825 $3,268,514 $621,689
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Dog and Kennel Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $2,000 $0 ($2,000)
Fees, Licenses and Permits 585,000 629,966 44,966
Fines and Forfeitures 82,500 68,708 (13,792)
Rentals and Royalties 18,000 18,582 582
Charges for Services 50,233 61,122 10,889
Contributions and Donations 1,000 2,574 1,574
Other 20,125 20,997 872

Total Revenues 758,858 801,949 43,091

Expenditures
Current:
   Health:
      Administration
        Personal Services 533,918 533,098 820
        Materials and Supplies 44,374 33,607 10,767
        Contractual Supplies 87,631 79,412 8,219
        Capital Outlay 1,850 775 1,075
        Other 31,899 31,899 0

Total Expenditures 699,672 678,791 20,881

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 59,186 123,158 63,972

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (145,000) (139,365) 5,635

Net Change in Fund Balance (85,814) (16,207) 69,607

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 131,382 131,382 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 19,468 19,468 0

Fund Balance End of Year $65,036 $134,643 $69,607
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Delinquent Tax and Assessment Collection Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $483,800 $466,096 ($17,704)
Charges for Services 200,475 285,450 84,975
Other 197,003 203,381 6,378

Total Revenues 881,278 954,927 73,649

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
     Legislative and Executive
      Deliquent Tax
        Personal Services 713,455 670,014 43,441
        Materials and Supplies 4,688 3,787 901
        Contractual Services 274,842 265,611 9,231
        Other 18,608 18,608 0

Total Expenditures 1,011,593 958,020 53,573

Net Change in Fund Balance (130,315) (3,093) 127,222

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 214,917 214,917 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 50,102 50,102 0

Fund Balance End of Year $134,704 $261,926 $127,222

- 169 -



Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Solid Waste Management Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $2,275,274 $2,485,455 $210,181
Other 7,000 23,912 16,912

Total Revenues 2,282,274 2,509,367 227,093

Expenditures
Current:
   Health:
      Administration
        Personal Services 195,665 195,665 0
        Contractual Supplies 34,415 9,582 24,833
        Other 2,285 2,285 0

      Total Administration 232,365 207,532 24,833

      Plant Implementation
        Personal Services 485,629 450,986 34,643
        Materials and Supplies 27,006 14,312 12,694
        Contractual Services 1,242,289 1,242,289 0
        Capital Outlay 5,287 5,287 0
        Other 36,151 36,151 0

      Total Plant Implementation 1,796,362 1,749,025 47,337

      Health Department Enforcement
        Contractual Services 227,048 227,048 0

      County Assistance
        Contractual Services 114,817 114,817 0

Total Expenditures 2,370,592 2,298,422 72,170

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (88,318) 210,945 299,263

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out 0 (2,000) (2,000)

Net Change in Fund Balance (88,318) 208,945 297,263

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 591,522 591,522 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 96,496 96,496 0

Fund Balance End of Year $599,700 $896,963 $297,263
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Board of Mental Health Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $3,750,740 $3,783,199 $32,459
Intergovernmental 1,875,873 1,965,153 89,280
Other 200,000 62,047 (137,953)

Total Revenues 5,826,613 5,810,399 (16,214)

Expenditures
Current:
   Health:
      Administration
        Personal Services 955,066 850,548 104,518
        Materials and Supplies 8,500 4,032 4,468
        Contractual Services 6,312,243 5,139,096 1,173,147
        Capital Outlay 7,553 7,553 0
        Other 94,947 67,328 27,619

Total Expenditures 7,378,309 6,068,557 1,309,752

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,551,696) (258,158) 1,293,538

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 260,130 218,129 (42,001)

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,291,566) (40,029) 1,251,537

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 7,174,073 7,174,073 0

Fund Balance End of Year $5,882,507 $7,134,044 $1,251,537
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Drug Law Enforcement Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $0 $501 $501

Expenditures 0 0 0

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 501 501

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 83,505 83,505 0

Fund Balance End of Year $83,505 $84,006 $501
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Indigent Drivers Alcohol Treatment Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $39,900 $43,222 $3,322

Expenditures
Current:
   Public Safety:
      County Courts
        Contractual Services 12,373 12,373 0

Net Change in Fund Balance 27,527 30,849 3,322

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 563,129 563,129 0

Fund Balance End of Year $590,656 $593,978 $3,322
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Clerk Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $110,000 $113,322 $3,322

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Judicial
      Computerization Fees
        Materials and Supplies 23,000 13,150 9,850
        Contractual Services 55,032 51,669 3,363
        Capital Outlay 2,500 2,042 458

Total Expenditures 80,532 66,861 13,671

Net Change in Fund Balance 29,468 46,461 16,993

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 393,209 393,209 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 729 729 0

Fund Balance End of Year $423,406 $440,399 $16,993
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
911 Operations Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $450,000 $507,064 $57,064
Special Assessments 285,000 287,330 2,330
Other 0 25,292 25,292

Total Revenues 735,000 819,686 84,686

Expenditures
Current:
  Public Safety:
      Administration
        Personal Services 96,406 84,705 11,701
        Materials and Supplies 3,378 2,672 706
        Contractual Services 525,013 253,786 271,227
        Capital Outlay 1,234,230 936,048 298,182
        Other 32,122 32,093 29

Total Expenditures 1,891,149 1,309,304 581,845

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,156,149) (489,618) 666,531

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,612,456 1,612,456 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 74,431 74,431 0

Fund Balance End of Year $530,738 $1,197,269 $666,531
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
County Probation Services Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fines and Forfeitures $190,000 $212,626 $22,626
Other 0 532 532

Total Revenues 190,000 213,158 23,158

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Judicial
      County Courts
        Personal Services 97,562 87,193 10,369
        Materials and Supplies 13,000 7,504 5,496
        Contractual Services 38,640 25,820 12,820
        Capital Outlay 3,000 219 2,781

Total Expenditures 152,202 120,736 31,466

Net Change in Fund Balance 37,798 92,422 54,624

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 2,035,477 2,035,477 0

Fund Balance End of Year $2,073,275 $2,127,899 $54,624
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Coroner Lab Equipment Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues $0 $0 $0

Expenditures
Current:
    Public Safety:
      Coroner
        Materials and Supplies 10,000 1,642 8,358

Net Change in Fund Balance (10,000) (1,642) 8,358

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 59,415 59,415 0

Fund Balance End of Year $49,415 $57,773 $8,358
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
County Courts Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $889,110 $941,146 $52,036
Fines and Forfeitures 32,900 39,867 6,967
Other 0 543 543

Total Revenues 922,010 981,556 59,546

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Judicial
      County Courts
        Personal Services 216,889 214,952 1,937
        Materials and Supplies 94,934 31,561 63,373
        Contractual Services 671,107 619,424 51,683
        Capital Outlay 95,285 95,285 0

Total Expenditures 1,078,215 961,222 116,993

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (156,205) 20,334 176,539

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (20,000) (21,774) (1,774)

Net Change in Fund Balance (176,205) (1,440) 174,765

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 3,407,855 3,407,855 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 41,727 41,727 0

Fund Balance End of Year $3,273,377 $3,448,142 $174,765
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Grants Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $14,524,074 $12,611,792 ($1,912,282)
Interest 0 2,476 2,476
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 480 480
Charges for Services 25,000 51,489 26,489
Other 30,487 27,148 (3,339)

Total Revenues 14,579,561 12,693,385 (1,886,176)

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive   
      Commissioners
        Personal Services   620,191 577,302 42,889
        Materials and Supplies   9,599 7,350 2,249
        Contractual Services   4,358,659 4,200,470 158,189
        Capital Outlay 222,543 139,304 83,239
        Other 32,959 32,959 0

      Total Commissioners   5,243,951 4,957,385 286,566

      Prosecutor
        Personal Services 358,532 355,878 2,654
        Materials and Supplies 3,701 2,694 1,007
        Contractual Services   6,431 2,571 3,860
        Capital Outlay 5,643 5,643 0
        Other 6 6 0

      Total Prosecutor   374,313 366,792 7,521

      Board of Elections
        Other 18,265 6,390 11,875

    Total Legislative and Executive $5,636,529 $5,330,567 $305,962

  (continued)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Grants Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Final Actual (Negative)

    Judicial:
      Juvenile Justice Court
        Personal Services $2,076,590 $2,068,900 $7,690
        Materials and Supplies 34,067 28,721 5,346
        Contractual Supplies 671,502 495,372 176,130
        Capital Outlay 72,451 72,451 0
        Other 6,069 6,069 0
        
      Total Juvenile Justice Court 2,860,679 2,671,513 189,166

      Domestic Relations Court
        Personal Services 79,999 76,380 3,619
        Materials and Supplies 2,007 1,395 612
        Contractual Supplies 12,377 10,427 1,950
        
      Total Domestic Relations Court 94,383 88,202 6,181

      Common Pleas Court
        Capital Outlay 89,879 89,862 17
        Other 28,116 28,116 0
        
      Total Common Pleas Court 117,995 117,978 17

    Total Judicial 3,073,057 2,877,693 195,364

   Total General Government 8,709,586 8,208,260 501,326

   Public Safety:
      Sheriff Grants
        Personal Services 476,344 400,237 76,107
        Materials and Supplies 6,467 6,467 0
        Contractual Services 208,153 207,212 941
        Capital Outlay 129,150 103,321 25,829
        Other 48,569 48,563 6

    Total Public Safety $868,683 $765,800 $102,883

(continued)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Grants Fund (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Final Actual (Negative)

   Health:
      Solid Waste Grants
        Materials and Supplies $9,655 $9,655 $0
        Contractual Services 11,755 11,755 0
        Other 2,336 2,336 0

      Total Solid Waste Grants 23,746 23,746 0

      Developmental Disabilities Board Grants
        Personal Services 59,894 59,894 0

      Mental Health & Recovery Board
        Contractual Services 5,287,860 3,682,724 1,605,136

   Total Health 5,371,500 3,766,364 1,605,136

Total Expenditures 14,949,769 12,740,424 2,209,345

Excess of Revenues  
     Over (Under) Expenditures (370,208) (47,039) 323,169

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances In 0 367,970 367,970
Advances Out (575,881) (577,373) (1,492)
Transfers In 179,746 214,759 35,013
Transfers Out (809,434) (218,129) 591,305

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,205,569) (212,773) 992,796

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,575,777) (259,812) 1,315,965

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,910,274 1,910,274 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 321,399 321,399 0

Fund Balance End of Year $655,896 $1,971,861 $1,315,965
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Law Library Resources Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $3,900 $3,940 $40
Fines and Forfeitures 431,000 438,750 7,750
Charges for Services 2,000 1,980 (20)
Contributions and Donations 0 100 100
Other 0 654 654

Total Revenues 436,900 445,424 8,524

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive
      Commissioners
        Personal Services 142,069 138,588 3,481
        Materials and Supplies 3,602 1,115 2,487
        Contractual Services 404,129 378,593 25,536
        Capital Outlay 100 0 100

Total Expenditures 549,900 518,296 31,604

Net Change in Fund Balance (113,000) (72,872) 40,128

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 119,933 119,933 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 19,318 19,318 0

Fund Balance End of Year $26,251 $66,379 $40,128
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Geographic Information System Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Other $0 $1,678 $1,678

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive
      GIS Department
        Personal Services 378,215 363,027 15,188
        Materials and Supplies 2,742 2,742 0
        Contractual Services 149,076 60,409 88,667
        Capital Outlay 56,309 56,309 0

Total Expenditures 586,342 482,487 103,855

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (586,342) (480,809) 105,533

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 500,000 500,000 0

Net Change in Fund Balance (86,342) 19,191 105,533

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 77,661 77,661 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 8,791 8,791 0

Fund Balance End of Year $110 $105,643 $105,533
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Convention and Visitors Bureau Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Hotel/Lodging Tax $440,000 $483,383 $43,383
Fees, Licenses and Permits 75,000 84,804 9,804
Other 0 756 756

Total Revenues 515,000 568,943 53,943

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive
      Commissioners
        Personal Services 156,897 155,522 1,375
        Materials and Supplies 16,520 13,467 3,053
        Contractual Services 576,495 550,831 25,664
        Capital Outlay 5,311 5,308 3
        Other 31,578 31,011 567

Total Expenditures 786,801 756,139 30,662

Net Change in Fund Balance (271,801) (187,196) 84,605

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 628,303 628,303 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 105,347 105,347 0

Fund Balance End of Year $461,849 $546,454 $84,605
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Western Reserve Port Authority Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Hotel/Lodging Tax $0 $1,127,894 $1,127,894

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive
      Hotel/Lodging Tax
        Other 0 1,061,368 (1,061,368)

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 66,526 66,526

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 29,809 29,809 0

Fund Balance End of Year $29,809 $96,335 $66,526
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Area Agency on Aging Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $4,021,848 $3,963,262 ($58,586)
Intergovernmental 88,624 166,264 77,640

Total Revenues 4,110,472 4,129,526 19,054

Expenditures
Current:
   Human Services:
      Senior Citizen Services
        Contractual Services 4,070,472 3,950,472 120,000
        Other 80,000 65,018 14,982

Total Expenditures 4,150,472 4,015,490 134,982

Net Change in Fund Balance (40,000) 114,036 154,036

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 186,334 186,334 0

Fund Balance End of Year $146,334 $300,370 $154,036
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Concealed Handgun License Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $371,258 $320,045 ($51,213)
Other 0 1,148 $1,148

Total Revenues 371,258 321,193 (50,065)

Expenditures
Current:
    Public Safety:
      Sheriff 
        Personal Services 232,217 232,014 203
        Materials and Supplies 1,223 1,223 0
        Contractual Services 145,915 141,166 4,749
        Capital Outlay 7,345 7,345 0

Total Expenditures 386,700 381,748 4,952

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (15,442) (60,555) (45,113)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances In 0 43,433 43,433

Net Change in Fund Balance (15,442) (17,122) (1,680)

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 15,442 15,442 0

Fund Balance (Deficit) End of Year $0 ($1,680) ($1,680)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Tax Administration Negotiated Lien Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues $0 $0 $0

Expenditures 0 0 0

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 0 0

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 22,459 22,459 0

Fund Balance End of Year $22,459 $22,459 $0
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Sheriff's Policing Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Charges for Services $1,255,000 $1,277,028 $22,028
Other 5,345 5,343 (2)

Total Revenues 1,260,345 1,282,371 22,026

Expenditures
Current:
    Public Safety:
      Sheriff
        Personal Services 1,311,791 1,305,463 6,328
        Contractual Services 18,241 18,237 4

Total Expenditures 1,330,032 1,323,700 6,332

Net Change in Fund Balance (69,687) (41,329) 28,358

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 96,777 96,777 0

Fund Balance End of Year $27,090 $55,448 $28,358
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Ohio Peace Officer Training Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $88,588 $88,588 $0

Expenditures
Current:
    Public Safety:
      Sheriff
        Personal Services 20,000 19,475 525
        Materials and Supplies 48,588 339 48,249
        Contractual Services 20,000 0 20,000

Total Expenditures 88,588 19,814 68,774

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 68,774 68,774

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 20,044 20,044 0

Fund Balance End of Year $20,044 $88,818 $68,774
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Sheriff's Office Foreclosure Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $40,000 $37,950 ($2,050)
Other 0 266 266

Total Revenues 40,000 38,216 (1,784)

Expenditures
Current:
    Public Safety:
      Sheriff
        Personal Services 69,182 68,096 1,086
        Contractual Services 4,355 4,355 0

Total Expenditures 73,537 72,451 1,086

Net Change in Fund Balance (33,537) (34,235) (698)

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 86,524 86,524 0

Fund Balance End of Year $52,987 $52,289 ($698)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
HAZMAT Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $23,000 $33,983 $10,983
Other 10,000 2,940 (7,060)

Total Revenues 33,000 36,923 3,923

Expenditures
Current:
    Public Safety:
      Administration
        Personal Services 2,384 2,384 0
        Materials and Supplies 13,008 9,083 3,925
        Contractual Services 17,465 9,850 7,615
        Capital Outlay 42,832 21,194 21,638
        Other 7,191 7,191 0

Total Expenditures 82,880 49,702 33,178

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (49,880) (12,779) 37,101

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 27,000 37,882 10,882

Net Change in Fund Balance (22,880) 25,103 47,983

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 79,833 79,833 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 7,032 7,032 0

Fund Balance End of Year $63,985 $111,968 $47,983
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Certificate of Title Administration Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $1,500,000 $1,540,445 $40,445
Other 0 4,652 4,652

Total Revenues 1,500,000 1,545,097 45,097

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Judicial
      Title Administration
        Personal Services 1,039,680 957,310 82,370
        Materials and Supplies 18,304 12,477 5,827
        Contractual Services 121,567 109,566 12,001
        Capital Outlay 11,911 11,835 76
        Other 1,300 878 422

      Total Title Administration 1,192,762 1,092,066 100,696

      Security Deposits
        Personal Services 92,930 91,401 1,529
        Contractual Services 125 118 7

      Total Security Deposits 93,055 91,519 1,536

Total Expenditures 1,285,817 1,183,585 102,232

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 214,183 361,512 147,329

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out (300,000) (300,000) 0

Net Change in Fund Balance (85,817) 61,512 147,329

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,241,525 1,241,525 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 4,069 4,069 0

Fund Balance End of Year $1,159,777 $1,307,106 $147,329
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Recorder Equipment Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $110,000 $106,220 ($3,780)
Other 0 79 79

Total Revenues 110,000 106,299 (3,701)

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive
      Recorder
        Personal Services 53,069 52,934 135
        Materials and Supplies 1,600 0 1,600
        Contractual Services 326,022 247,115 78,907
        Capital Outlay 5,000 0 5,000

Total Expenditures 385,691 300,049 85,642

Net Change in Fund Balance (275,691) (193,750) 81,941

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 236,679 236,679 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 67,488 67,488 0

Fund Balance End of Year $28,476 $110,417 $81,941
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Revolving Loans Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Fees, Licenses and Permits $7,620 $11,930 $4,310
Other 9,701 9,701 0

Total Revenues 17,321 21,631 4,310

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive
      Commissioners
        Contractual Services 10,842 10,842 0

  
Net Change in Fund Balance 6,479 10,789 4,310

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 37,694 37,694 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 12,000 12,000 0

Fund Balance End of Year $56,173 $60,483 $4,310
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Community and Economic Development Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Charges for Services $207,783 $197,741 ($10,042)
Other 839 1,236 397

Total Revenues 208,622 198,977 (9,645)

Expenditures
Current:
   General Government:
    Legislative and Executive
      Commissioners
        Personal Services 268,169 262,564 5,605
        Materials and Supplies 1,791 1,711 80
        Contractual Services 2,569 1,303 1,266
        Other 189,063 125,819 63,244

Total Expenditures 461,592 391,397 70,195
  

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (252,970) (192,420) 60,550

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances Out (400) (398) 2
Transfers In 280,000 263,159 (16,841)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 279,600 262,761 (16,839)

Net Change in Fund Balance 26,630 70,341 43,711

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 11,101 11,101 0

Fund Balance End of Year $37,731 $81,442 $43,711
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Adult Protective Services Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues $0 $0 $0

Expenditures
Current:
   Human Services
      Jobs and Family Services
        Materials and Supplies 350 168 182

Net Change in Fund Balance (350) (168) 182

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 350 350 0

Fund Balance End of Year $0 $182 $182
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Swanston Donations Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Other $0 $70 $70

Expenditures 0 0 0
  

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 70 70

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 8,185 8,185 0

Fund Balance End of Year $8,185 $8,255 $70
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Roads and Bridges Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $9,093,636 $4,164,719 ($4,928,917)
Interest 0 15,699 15,699
Other 49,837 49,912 75

Total Revenues 9,143,473 4,230,330 (4,913,143)

Expenditures
Capital Outlay 11,844,942 6,522,368 5,322,574

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (2,701,469) (2,292,038) 409,431

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 1,776,559 912,467 (864,092)

Net Change in Fund Balance (924,910) (1,379,571) (454,661)

Fund Deficit Beginning of Year (77,019) (77,019) 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,422,123 1,422,123 0

Fund Balance (Deficit) End of Year $420,194 ($34,467) ($454,661)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Vehicle Maintenance Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Charges for Services $641,653 $435,159 ($206,494)

Expenses
Materials and Supplies 646,159 433,249 212,910
Contractual Services 9,000 5,500 3,500
Other 21,000 15,268 5,732

Total Expenses 676,159 454,017 222,142

Net Change in Fund Equity (34,506) (18,858) 15,648

Fund Equity Beginning of Year 22,347 22,347 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 42,485 42,485 0

Fund Equity End of Year $30,326 $45,974 $15,648
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Workers' Compensation Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Charges for Services $845,766 $1,015,590 $169,824
Other 80,612 80,691 79

Total Revenues 926,378 1,096,281 169,903

Expenses
Personal Services 125,554 107,209 18,345
Contractual Services 993,597 511,535 482,062
Claims 355,849 355,849 0

Total Expenses 1,475,000 974,593 500,407

Net Change in Fund Equity (548,622) 121,688 670,310

Fund Equity Beginning of Year 3,600,187 3,600,187 0

Fund Equity End of Year $3,051,565 $3,721,875 $670,310
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Self-funded Hospitalization Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental $39,166 $39,166 $0
Charges for Services 25,830,000 25,673,532 (156,468)
Property Taxes 266,105 266,105 0
Other 0 57,107 57,107

Total Revenues 26,135,271 26,035,910 (99,361)

Expenses
Personal Services 113,269 101,527 11,742
Contractual Services 2,813,978 1,674,921 1,139,057
Claims 22,379,782 22,379,782 0
Debt Service:
   Principal Retirement 215,000 215,000 0
   Interest and Fiscal Charges 90,271 90,271 0

Total Expenses 25,612,300 24,461,501 1,150,799

Net Change in Fund Equity 522,971 1,574,409 1,051,438

Fund Equity Beginning of Year 7,430,387 7,430,387 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 10,100 10,100 0

Fund Equity End of Year $7,963,458 $9,014,896 $1,051,438

- 202 -



Mahoning County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

in Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Telephone/Data Board Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Charges for Services $497,551 $444,430 ($53,121)

Expenses
Contractual Services 504,363 486,947 17,416

Net Change in Fund Equity (6,812) (42,517) (35,705)

Fund Deficit Beginning of Year (7,551) (7,551) 0

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 19,653 19,653 0

Fund Equity (Deficit) End of Year $5,290 ($30,415) ($35,705)
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 2018  2017  2016  2015  

Governmental Activities      
Net Investment in Capital Assets  $102,921,806  $102,337,821  $101,977,095  $104,880,283  
Restricted:      

Capital Projects 8,027,790 11,395,939 10,836,930 12,761,249
Debt Service 461,813 0 0 0
Public Safety 13,238,257 12,473,377 7,961,489 8,579,315
Public Works 9,916,793 8,918,979 8,818,505 6,933,355
Health Services 43,875,308 43,350,170 41,709,134 40,009,775
Human Services 13,490,901 12,776,302 10,767,496 7,572,604
General Government 19,589,796 20,446,744 19,481,780 18,828,696
Unclaimed Monies 545,910 522,751 453,252 564,542

Unrestricted (Deficit)  (108,806,275)  (102,079,674)  (46,793,739)  (49,417,148)  
     

Total Governmental Activities Net Position  103,262,099  110,142,409  155,211,942  150,712,671  
     

Business Type - Activities      
Net Investment in Capital Assets  61,129,538  61,899,721  60,831,136  59,124,842  
Restricted:

Debt Service 11,372,802 10,995,730 10,824,964 10,532,612
Unrestricted  3,575,793  2,100,477  7,503,256  10,020,817  

     
Total Business-Type Activities Net Position  76,078,133  74,995,928  79,159,356  79,678,271  

     
Primary Government      

Net Investment in Capital Assets 164,051,344 164,237,542 162,808,231 164,005,125
Restricted 120,519,370 120,879,992 110,853,550 105,782,148
Unrestricted (Deficit) (105,230,482) (99,979,197) (39,290,483) (39,396,331)

 
Total Primary Government Net Position $179,340,232 $185,138,337 $234,371,298 $230,390,942

 
(1) GASB Statement No.63 and GASB Statement No. 65 were implemented in 2012.

Note: The County reported the impact of GASB Statement No. 68 beginning in 2014.
 

Note: The County reported the impact of GASB Statement No. 75 beginning in 2017.

Mahoning County, Ohio
Net Position By Component

Last Ten Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
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2014  2013(1)  2012(1)  2011  2010  2009

     
$102,647,200  $100,693,379  $102,251,744  $105,436,457  $103,800,107  $105,837,357

     
15,223,440 16,482,068 15,988,064 21,405,318 21,194,406 16,287,858

0 0 0 0 0 0
2,316,308 2,031,458 1,542,631 3,116,336 2,667,985 1,971,754
7,337,863 7,376,307 6,278,575 6,913,979 6,125,209 5,035,422

36,791,140 34,303,503 34,592,025 30,666,928 29,184,576 22,272,037
6,589,182 6,742,989 7,067,963 7,613,780 8,828,195 6,264,431

15,260,442 17,137,100 15,257,143 19,603,535 19,608,309 24,302,480
421,086 450,507 0 0 0 0

(45,917,743)  11,230,770  11,760,418  6,643,075  3,169,362  7,400,652
     

140,668,918  196,448,081  194,738,563  201,399,408  194,578,149  189,371,991
     
     

60,998,456  55,414,313  53,320,745  50,114,060  48,144,464  50,293,677

11,741,157 11,384,862 11,877,870 14,872,863 15,250,948 7,162,067
7,323,762  15,724,414  17,062,549  17,300,292 17,512,055 21,534,050

     
80,063,375  82,523,589  82,261,164  82,287,215  80,907,467  78,989,794

     
     

163,645,656 156,107,692 155,572,489 155,550,517 151,944,571 156,131,034
95,680,618 95,908,794 92,604,271 104,192,739 102,859,628 83,296,049

(38,593,981) 26,955,184 28,822,967 23,943,367 20,681,417 28,934,702

$220,732,293 $278,971,670 $276,999,727 $283,686,623 $275,485,616 $268,361,785
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2018 2017 2016 2015

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:  

Charges for Services and Assessments   
General Government:  

Legislative and Executive   $7,004,603 $6,957,096 $7,142,290 $7,177,799
Judicial  7,279,352 7,411,969 7,398,544 7,021,990

Public Safety  3,442,226 2,786,469 2,878,129 3,925,795
Public Works  134,257 148,291 204,052 201,515
Health  4,260,875 3,903,409 4,034,424 4,425,387
Human Services  2,009,219 1,938,733 2,031,879 1,894,829

Total Charges for Services and Assessments   24,130,532 23,145,967 23,689,318 24,647,315
Operating Grants and Contributions  62,552,851 68,592,436 65,366,347 65,156,016
Capital Grants 2,053,371 4,275,718 2,639,816 4,985,488

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenue  88,736,754 96,014,121 91,695,481 94,788,819

Business-Type Activities: 
Charges for Services and Assessments    

Mahoning County Water  842,419 838,288 790,407 681,419
Mahoning County Sewer  27,539,325 26,191,896 24,896,477 23,576,438

Total Charges for Services and Assessments  28,381,744 27,030,184 25,686,884 24,257,857
Capital Grants and Contributions  422,706 843,234 1,006,059 1,326,036

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenue  28,804,450 27,873,418 26,692,943 25,583,893

Total Primary Government Program Revenues  $117,541,204 $123,887,539 $118,388,424 $120,372,712

Mahoning County, Ohio
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$6,738,883 $6,767,123 $5,942,694 $6,138,992 $5,868,142 $5,858,412
5,568,575 5,662,224 5,496,605 5,738,234 5,618,604 5,275,306
5,852,721 5,870,710 5,154,194 4,527,870 4,709,310 4,296,566

402,778 213,278 159,737 170,932 144,868 180,907
4,798,664 4,498,260 4,695,655 4,787,038 4,977,960 3,501,479
1,884,021 1,883,573 1,765,741 1,934,935 1,741,689 1,857,974

25,245,642 24,895,168 23,214,626 23,298,001 23,060,573 20,970,644
62,141,088 61,410,982 72,408,390 78,695,348 87,111,613 101,408,097

4,177,023 2,505,708 6,399,688 5,260,990 3,056,458 2,221,132

91,563,753 88,811,858 102,022,704 107,254,339 113,228,644 124,599,873

628,692 525,149 472,744 433,795 542,440 496,189
22,819,113 20,608,295 20,611,234 21,132,254 20,635,860 23,348,025

23,447,805 21,133,444 21,083,978 21,566,049 21,178,300 23,844,214
816,222 933,776 1,021,992 1,722,636 1,997,482 748,452

24,264,027 22,067,220 22,105,970 23,288,685 23,175,782 24,592,666

$115,827,780 $110,879,078 $124,128,674 $130,543,024 $136,404,426 $149,192,539

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015

Expenses  
Governmental Activities:  

General Government:  
Legislative and Executive   $26,663,721 $26,144,160 $23,990,469 $23,050,539
Judicial  26,180,753 25,867,202 24,310,698 23,075,087

Public Safety  37,253,625 38,448,697 34,381,681 31,088,021
Public Works  14,824,344 13,985,860 15,480,125 14,205,410
Health  39,762,049 39,310,148 38,370,842 37,031,027
Human Services  45,823,401 45,416,756 41,123,931 39,850,859
Interest and Fiscal Charges  1,502,582 1,462,654 1,423,096 1,899,467

Total Governmental Activities Expenses  192,010,475 190,635,477 179,080,842 170,200,410

Business-Type Activities:  
Mahoning County Water    1,718,843 1,484,665 1,496,075 1,621,113
Mahoning County Sewer    28,182,735 27,230,508 25,717,354 24,440,240

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses  29,901,578 28,715,173 27,213,429 26,061,353

Total Primary Government Program Expenses  221,912,053 219,350,650 206,294,271 196,261,763

Net (Expense)/Revenue  
Governmental Activities  (103,273,721) (94,621,356) (87,385,361) (75,411,591)
Business-Type Activities  (1,097,128) (841,755) (520,486) (477,460)

Total Primary Government Net Expense  ($104,370,849) ($95,463,111) ($87,905,847) ($75,889,051)

Mahoning County, Ohio
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Years (continued)
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$28,900,811 $27,035,225 $25,890,863 $27,519,947 $25,322,205 $25,975,485
22,249,706 20,946,103 20,087,881 20,253,413 20,051,505 20,816,554
25,656,854 23,793,549 25,488,019 22,455,341 21,803,392 24,421,449
14,147,583 12,640,556 21,596,642 13,543,364 13,462,169 15,292,168
37,970,439 36,155,871 47,472,081 50,833,349 53,158,099 48,815,843
39,560,161 37,781,584 36,691,886 38,508,481 45,491,138 56,211,415

1,892,225 2,166,770 2,310,764 2,349,871 1,896,879 2,154,822

170,377,779 160,519,658 179,538,136 175,463,766 181,185,387 193,687,736

1,334,615 1,276,542 1,860,851 1,286,544 1,959,933 1,865,509
21,567,811 20,561,245 21,332,223 21,192,217 19,830,300 22,197,325

22,902,426 21,837,787 23,193,074 22,478,761 21,790,233 24,062,834

193,280,205 182,357,445 202,731,210 197,942,527 202,975,620 217,750,570

(78,814,026) (71,707,800) (77,515,432) (68,209,427) (67,956,743) (69,087,863)
1,361,601 229,433 (1,087,104) 809,924 1,385,549 529,832

($77,452,425) ($71,478,367) ($78,602,536) ($67,399,503) ($66,571,194) ($68,558,031)

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position  
Governmental Activities:  

Property Taxes Levied for:  
General Purposes  $4,877,357 $4,512,373 $3,662,630 $1,986,258
General Obligation Bond Retirement   2,339,418 2,514,570 4,048,256 3,792,671
Children Services Board  8,138,126 8,126,958 8,599,799 8,490,515
Board of Developmental Disabilities  14,616,935 14,466,928 15,237,989 14,223,631
Board of Mental Health  3,665,774 3,631,508 3,822,813 3,567,489
Senior Citizens 3,800,912 4,553,599 0 0
Self-funded Hospitalization 266,105 271,910 0 0

Sales Tax Levied for:  
General Purposes  15,081,000 15,468,357 17,001,113 34,186,420
Criminal and Administrative Justice  25,277,996 25,836,588 26,525,325 5,484,247
Road Improvement Equipment 0 35,125 0 0
General Obligation Bond Retirement 1,105,022 1,264,255 433,141 1,758,561
Buildings and Equipment 668,567 491,502 274,184 0

Hotel/Lodging Taxes 1,716,294 1,463,522 0 0
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted    

to Specific Programs  6,529,551 7,444,594 5,612,066 5,751,011
Conveyance Taxes  2,448,831 2,329,412 1,902,728 1,940,022
Interest  1,664,451 863,839 457,598 977,013
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 702,957 629,585 609,135 0
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets  0 82,550 30,377 0
Other  3,282,115 2,926,900 3,394,278 3,085,506
Transfers  212,000 (332,253) 273,200 212,000

Total Governmental Activities  96,393,411 96,581,822 91,884,632 85,455,344

Business-Type Activities:  
Interest  206,384 69,813 74,087 50,311
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets  0 717 0 0
Other  2,184,949 97,994 200,684 254,045
Transfers  (212,000) 332,253 (273,200) (212,000)

Total Business-Type Activities  2,179,333 500,777 1,571 92,356

Total Primary Government General  
Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position  98,572,744 97,082,599 91,886,203 85,547,700

Change in Net Position  
Governmental Activities  (6,880,310) 1,960,466 4,499,271 10,043,753
Business-Type Activities  1,082,205 (340,978) (518,915) (385,104)

Total Primary Government Change in Net Position  ($5,798,105) $1,619,488 $3,980,356 $9,658,649

Note: Expenses are first impacted by the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 beginning in 2015.

Note: Expenses are first impacted by the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 beginning in 2018.

Mahoning County, Ohio
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Years (continued)
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$3,017,749 $5,297,879 $1,974,972 $8,945,439 $7,546,732 $7,481,675
3,975,496 1,515,889 4,288,832 0 0 0
4,952,827 4,869,189 4,720,439 4,988,594 4,911,419 4,894,162

13,898,401 13,691,556 13,289,321 14,067,091 13,859,914 13,818,219
3,482,494 3,429,022 3,327,222 3,520,543 3,467,814 3,457,020

0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

33,297,009 30,438,298 30,636,548 30,392,085 27,168,574 25,825,362
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

840,000 1,400,000 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

6,622,413 6,783,824 5,768,962 6,950,031 9,601,640 10,840,691
1,782,152 1,853,653 1,696,113 1,373,069 1,305,659 1,282,347

436,809 180,089 838,035 1,109,454 905,562 2,190,058
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 3,078 0

4,259,245 3,655,919 4,134,143 3,761,310 4,385,541 3,128,219
212,000 302,000 180,000 (76,930) 0 (95,438)

76,776,595 73,417,318 70,854,587 75,030,686 73,155,933 72,822,315

39,351 76,827 159,468 268,360 507,037 555,796
0 9,150 0 0 0 0

471,945 249,015 1,081,585 224,534 25,087 447,702
(212,000) (302,000) (180,000) 76,930 0 95,438

299,296 32,992 1,061,053 569,824 532,124 1,098,936

77,075,891 73,450,310 71,915,640 75,600,510 73,688,057 73,921,251

(2,037,431) 1,709,518 (6,660,845) 6,821,259 5,199,190 3,734,452
1,660,897 262,425 (26,051) 1,379,748 1,917,673 1,628,768

($376,534) $1,971,943 ($6,686,896) $8,201,007 $7,116,863 $5,363,220
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2018 2017 2016 2015
General Fund
   Nonspendable $545,910 $522,751 $453,252 $564,542
   Restricted 2,209,847 2,194,573 2,230,859 2,118,587
   Committed 505,345 174,590 178,600 258,024
   Assigned 691,539 985,398 1,722,495 2,265,751
   Unassigned 15,578,611 13,215,775 9,285,767 5,964,407

Total General Fund 19,531,252 17,093,087 13,870,973 11,171,311

All Other Governmental Funds
   Restricted 88,355,932 86,344,894 80,284,005 78,144,955
   Unassigned (Deficit) (5,412,753) (6,205,544) (6,624,474) (1,502,064)

Total All Other Governmental Funds 82,943,179 80,139,350 73,659,531 76,642,891

Total Governmental Funds $102,474,431 $97,232,437 $87,530,504 $87,814,202

Note: The County reported the impact of GASB 54 beginning in 2009.

Mahoning County, Ohio
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$421,086 $450,507 $467,191 $732,981 $0 $0
1,889,510 1,696,947 2,403,449 2,439,605 1,538,536 1,547,574

102,233 575,148 499,663 1,116,180 470,209 527,630
2,121,022 1,849,239 1,465,304 1,312,696 1,184,077 1,201,489
7,800,527 7,814,324 7,553,202 8,179,228 9,392,999 5,511,125

12,334,378 12,386,165 12,388,809 13,780,690 12,585,821 8,787,818

71,377,952 68,546,202 69,676,529 77,726,651 74,877,427 57,422,364
(3,282,688) (4,150,097) (3,863,862) (7,901,864) (8,470,204) (8,438,515)

68,095,264 64,396,105 65,812,667 69,824,787 66,407,223  48,983,849

$80,429,642 $76,782,270 $78,201,476 $83,605,477 $78,993,044 $57,771,667
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2018 2017 2016 2015

Revenues
Property Taxes $38,407,141 $39,027,923 $33,697,139 $33,166,681
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 702,957 646,976 609,135 0
Permissive Sales Tax 42,142,629 43,419,456 44,234,168 40,445,450
Hotel/Lodging Taxes 1,716,294 1,482,288 0 0
Intergovernmental 73,152,094 79,198,342 71,217,912 76,354,344
Conveyance Taxes 2,448,831 2,329,412 1,902,728 1,940,022
Interest 1,664,451 863,864 457,598 977,013
Fees, Licenses and Permits 13,991,770 13,894,145 13,887,195 14,434,632
Fines and Forfeitures 2,424,474 2,592,754 2,709,026 2,792,235
Rentals and Royalties 2,000,211 1,950,539 2,008,922 2,064,740
Charges for Services 5,452,104 4,402,538 4,789,104 5,057,653
Contributions and Donations 6,872 8,016 16,785 105,734
Special Assessments 284,806 300,318 305,629 286,359
Other 3,157,346 2,893,937 3,233,763 3,085,506

Total Revenues 187,551,980 193,010,508 179,069,104 180,710,369

Expenditures
General Government:

Legislative and Executive 24,222,624 24,011,822 22,035,892 21,169,999
Judicial 24,166,441 23,734,147 23,047,092 22,422,241

Public Safety 32,490,961 32,087,263 29,828,685 29,323,034
Public Works 9,312,269 9,007,406 8,901,666 9,687,423
Health 38,329,134 37,720,470 37,672,105 36,399,668
Human Services 42,620,507 41,880,979 39,872,275 38,475,214
Capital Outlay 7,050,249 11,786,587 11,057,992 11,964,135
Debt Service

Principal Retirement 2,831,699 3,538,228 3,589,223 3,683,687
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,431,719 1,369,410 1,386,753 1,771,312
Bond Issuance Costs 76,388 358,205 466,109 30,018

Total Expenditures 182,531,991 185,494,517 177,857,792 174,926,731

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 5,019,989 7,515,991 1,211,312 5,783,638

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assets 10,005 607,718 30,377 47,770
Inception of Capital Lease 0 0 0 0
OPWC Loans Issued 0 0 280,673 1,341,152
General Obligation Bonds Issued 0 6,975,000 9,305,000 0
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent 0 (6,202,468) (11,590,477) 0
Premium on Bonds Issued 0 593,692 206,217 0
Transfers In 4,280,446 5,799,130 4,318,660 25,616,008
Transfers Out (4,068,446) (5,587,130) (4,045,460) (25,404,008)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 222,005 2,185,942 (1,495,010) 1,600,922

Net Change in Fund Balances $5,241,994 $9,701,933 ($283,698) $7,384,560

Debt Service as a Percentage of
Noncapital Expenditures 2.43% 2.84% 2.95% 3.36%

Mahoning County, Ohio
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Years 
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$29,496,715 $29,316,661 $29,118,104 $29,133,310 $29,005,633 $28,898,320
0 0 0 0 0 0

33,971,827 31,772,187 30,560,904 29,699,553 27,477,880 25,971,964
0 0 0 0 0 0

73,380,200 69,841,703 86,118,204 92,323,512 104,546,050 107,447,575
1,782,152 1,853,653 1,696,113 1,373,069 1,305,659 1,282,347

436,809 180,089 838,035 1,109,454 905,562 2,190,058
14,740,318 14,724,268 14,558,833 14,025,888 14,646,974 13,669,630

2,813,224 2,875,748 2,987,979 2,935,163 2,754,849 2,249,020
2,441,270 2,066,661 891,515 1,075,835 1,109,880 1,221,677
4,950,697 4,939,168 4,470,446 4,954,358 4,239,614 3,476,495

2,000 4,606 103,556 5,796 4,565 4,597
299,096 284,995 288,135 284,225 291,269 355,030

4,447,587 3,467,577 4,134,143 3,761,310 4,385,541 3,128,219

168,761,895 161,327,316 175,765,967 180,681,473 190,673,476 189,894,932

25,600,909 25,721,975 25,132,729 26,451,267 25,065,900 24,881,632
21,116,351 20,514,682 19,997,869 20,279,327 19,402,665 20,391,628
23,457,577 22,062,581 24,379,271 21,297,256 21,217,388 22,654,327
10,078,380 10,019,137 9,584,953 9,970,120 9,083,394 11,043,197
36,637,137 35,442,806 48,395,040 50,569,263 51,680,046 47,905,806
37,552,748 36,814,061 36,394,957 38,249,170 44,597,570 56,956,278
10,209,144 6,402,106 11,135,286 11,122,227 7,706,310 8,911,584

3,899,711 3,627,081 3,714,329 3,942,854 2,908,765 7,602,306
1,755,245 1,892,639 2,153,440 2,085,584 1,688,258 2,021,423

161,342 307,093 172,213 292,754 445,685 175,518

170,468,544 162,804,161 181,060,087 184,259,822 183,795,981 202,543,699

(1,706,649) (1,476,845) (5,294,120) (3,578,349) 6,877,495 (12,648,767)

0 17,625 0 0 24,800 0
0 0 0 1,270,853 0 0
0 0 40,912 221,753 0 0

5,020,000 6,021,146 0 6,790,000 14,176,000 3,015,000
0 (5,934,092) 0 0 0 0

122,021 72,161 0 85,327 143,082 0
6,276,483 4,639,110 8,286,788 10,485,794 9,212,290 7,518,014

(6,064,483) (4,758,311) (8,437,581) (10,662,945) (9,212,290) (7,613,452)

5,354,021 57,639 (109,881) 8,190,782 14,343,882 2,919,562

$3,647,372 ($1,419,206) ($5,404,001) $4,612,433 $21,221,377 ($9,729,205)

3.57% 3.60% 3.62% 3.54% 2.63% 5.01%
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2018 2017 2016 2015

Sales Tax Payments $8,850,205 $8,466,442 $8,551,227 $7,471,321

Direct Pay Tax Return Payments 552,960 4,105,317 4,902,703 3,958,955

Seller's Use Tax Return Payments 5,424,257 5,030,056 4,826,255 3,973,784

Consumer's Use Tax Return Payments  818,169 692,927 707,870 648,457

Motor Vehicle Tax Payments 5,589,621 5,139,166 4,851,579 4,655,453

Watercraft and Outboard Motors 54,323 48,274 46,809 37,838

Department of Liquor Control 226,486 209,791 207,812 175,721

Sales/Use Tax Voluntary Payments 78,897 66,847 80,045 27,835

Sales/Use Tax Assessment Payments 171,511 242,415 157,992 237,887

Managed Audit Sales/Use Tax Payments  5,560 41,043 78,548 275,044

Sales Tax on Motor Vehicle Fuel Refunds  15,419 12,423 15,337 16,461

Certified Assessment Payments 286,575 223,166 203,471 186,387

Statewide Master Numbers 15,806,913 15,503,494 15,512,763 13,912,134

Streamlined Sales Tax Payments 65,312 63,889 26,021 32,779

Non-Resident Motor Vehicle Tax Payments  31,245 33,403 34,354 31,859

Non-Resident Watercraft Tax Payments 0 41 318 792

Transient Sales 3,965,220 4,108,613 3,813,702 3,557,906

Use Tax Amnesty Payments 5,296 135 977 1,197

Administrative Rotary Fund Fee (418,791) (439,204) (439,500) (391,463)

Sales/Use Tax Refunds Approved (68,899) (67,045) (67,761) (55,537)

Total $41,460,279 $43,481,191 $43,510,523 $38,754,809

Sales Tax Rate 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.00%

(1) Cash basis 

(2) Detailed historical sales tax information from the Ohio Department of Taxation was only available
      as far back as 2015.

Source:  Ohio Department of Taxation 

Note: Sales tax is remitted to the Ohio Department of Taxation. The portion pertaining to the County is
remitted on a monthly bases approximately three months after collection at the source.

Mahoning County, Ohio
Taxable Sales by Type (1)

Last Four Years (2)
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Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Years



Tangible Personal Property Weighted
Average

Totals Tax Rate
(per 1,000

Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated of Assessed
Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Ratio Value)

$0 $0 $4,186,310,990 $11,480,048,555 36.5% $12.88212

0 0 4,108,549,590 11,292,225,868 36.4 12.87165

0 0 4,094,166,420 11,281,167,281 36.3 11.84700

0 0 4,005,403,140 11,057,203,064 36.2 12.16378

0 0 3,961,069,810 10,982,370,423 36.1 12.15509

0 0 3,942,280,100 10,963,889,532 36.0 11.48735

0 0 3,911,758,640 10,895,039,622 35.9 11.47871

0 0 4,131,667,780 11,536,922,634 35.8 11.35746

0 0 4,126,239,240 11,530,858,978 35.8 9.37089

12,166,960 194,671,360 4,100,353,680 11,627,495,700 35.3 9.29600
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Unvoted Millage
Operating $1.35000 $1.25000 $1.00000 $1.00000 $1.00000
Debt Service 0.75000 0.85000 1.10000 1.10000 1.10000

Voted Millage - by levy
1976 Mental Health Board Current Expense

Residential/Agricultural Real 0.19103 0.19358 0.19349 0.19330 0.19330
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.28048 0.28153 0.27803 0.27597 0.27597
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000

2004 Mental Health Board Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.78762 0.79811 0.79773 0.79696 0.79696
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.81079 0.81382 0.80372 0.79776 0.79776
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000

1983 Children Services Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.29019 0.29405 0.29391 0.29363 0.29363
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.33663 0.33789 0.33370 0.33122 0.33122
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000

1976 Mahoning County Library Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.93760 0.93760
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.93854 0.93854
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 1.00000 1.00000

2015 Mahoning County Library Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.59211 0.60000 0.60000 0.00000 0.00000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.59776 0.60000 0.60000 0.00000 0.00000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.60000 0.60000 0.60000 0.00000 0.00000

1976 Tuberculosis Clinic Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.03821 0.03872 0.03870 0.03866 0.03866
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.56095 0.05631 0.05561 0.05519 0.05519
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.10000 0.10000 0.10000 0.10000 0.10000

1976 Children Services Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 1.80887 1.83297 1.83209 1.83032 1.83032
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 1.84310 1.85000 1.85000 1.85000 1.85000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 1.85000 1.85000 1.85000 1.85000 1.85000

1986 Mental Retardation Developmental and Disabilities Current Expense - 5 years (1)
Residential/Agricultural Real 2.77982 2.81687 2.81551 2.81279 2.81279
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 2.86161 2.87232 2.83666 2.81561 2.81561
General Business and Public Utility Personal 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000

1992 Mental Retardation Developmental and Disabilities Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 1.19679 1.21274 1.21215 1.21098 1.21098
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 1.38501 1.39020 1.37294 1.36275 1.36275
General Business and Public Utility Personal 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000

1995 Children Services Current Expense
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000

2010 Mahoning County Library
Residential/Agricultural Real 1.75998 1.78343 1.78257 1.78085 1.78085
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 1.79329 1.80000 1.80000 1.80000 1.80000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 1.80000 1.80000 1.80000 1.80000 1.80000

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments

(Per $1,000 Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$1.55000 $1.00000 $2.10000 $2.10000 $2.10000
0.55000 1.10000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000

0.19520 0.19525 0.18180 0.18163 0.18166
0.27229 0.27200 0.27512 0.27239 0.27229
0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000

0.80480 0.80502 0.74957 0.74886 0.74897
0.78712 0.78628 0.79530 0.78740 0.78712
0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000

0.29652 0.29660 0.27617 0.27591 0.27595
0.32681 0.32645 0.33020 0.32692 0.32680
0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000 0.50000

0.94682 0.94709 0.88184 0.88102 0.88114
0.92603 0.92503 0.93565 0.92635 0.92602
1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000

0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000

0.03904 0.03905 0.36360 0.03633 0.03633
0.05446 0.05440 0.05502 0.05448 0.05446
0.10000 0.10000 0.10000 0.10000 0.10000

0.33184 0.33193 0.30907 0.30878 0.30882
0.46289 0.46240 0.46770 0.46305 0.46289
0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000

2.84046 2.84126 2.64553 2.64305 2.64342
2.77808 2.77510 2.80694 2.77905 2.77807
3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000

1.22289 1.22324 1.13897 1.13790 1.13806
1.34459 1.34314 1.35855 1.34505 1.34458
2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000

0.72790 0.72810 0.67795 0.67731 0.67741
0.79568 0.79482 0.80395 0.79596 0.79568
1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000

1.79949 1.80000 1.80000 0.00000 0.00000
1.78149 1.77958 1.80000 0.00000 0.00000
1.80000 1.80000 1.80000 0.00000 0.00000

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

2016 Senior Citizen 
Residential/Agricultural Real $0.98685 $1.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.99627 1.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 1.00000 1.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000

Total Voted Millage by type of Property
Residential/Agricultural Real $10.43146 $10.57047 $9.56615 $9.89509 $9.89509
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 11.46590 11.00207 9.93066 10.22704 10.22704
General Business and Public Utility Personal 12.20000 12.20000 11.20000 11.60000 11.60000

Total Millage by type of Property
Residential/Agricultural Real $12.53146 $12.67047 $11.66615 $11.99509 $11.99509
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 13.56590 13.10207 12.03066 12.32704 12.32704
General Business and Public Utility Personal 14.30000 14.30000 13.30000 13.70000 13.70000

Total Weighted Average Tax Rate $12.88212 $12.87165 $11.84700 $12.16378 $12.15509

Overlapping Rates by Taxing District
Cities
Alliance

Residential/Agricultural Real $3.30000 $3.30000 $3.30000 $3.30000 $3.30000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000

Campbell
Residential/Agricultural Real 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000 12.70000

Canfield
Residential/Agricultural Real 6.65774 6.90000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 6.84529 6.90000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 6.90000 6.90000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000

Columbiana
Residential/Agricultural Real 6.80000 6.79133 5.65000 6.79937 6.79937
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 6.41503 6.43148 6.64753 6.62728 6.62728
General Business and Public Utility Personal 6.80000 6.80000 6.80000 6.80000 6.80000

Salem
Residential/Agricultural Real 4.49648 4.19339 4.24240 4.24054 4.24054
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 4.70059 4.39927 4.43242 4.38808 4.38808
General Business and Public Utility Personal 4.90000 4.60000 4.60000 4.60000 4.60000

Struthers
Residential/Agricultural Real 7.00000 7.00000 7.00000 7.00000 7.00000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 7.00000 7.00000 6.99651 6.99801 6.99801
General Business and Public Utility Personal 7.00000 7.00000 7.00000 7.00000 7.00000

Youngstown
Residential/Agricultural Real 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000

(Per $1,000 Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (continued)
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000

$9.20496 $9.20754 $9.02450 $6.89079 $6.89176
9.52944 9.51920 9.62843 7.75065 7.74791

11.60000 11.60000 11.60000 9.80000 9.80000

$11.30496 $11.30754 $11.12450 $8.99079 $8.99176
11.62944 11.61920 11.72843 9.85065 9.84791
13.70000 13.70000 13.70000 11.90000 11.90000

$11.48735 $11.47871 $11.35746 $9.37089 $9.29600

$3.30000 $3.30000 $3.30000 $3.30000 $3.30000
3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000
3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000 3.30000

12.70000 9.70000 5.93761 5.63407 5.63287
12.70000 9.70000 6.47829 6.17356 6.16830
12.70000 9.70000 6.50000 6.20000 6.20000

3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000
3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000
3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000 3.00000

6.80000 6.80000 4.00000 4.78398 4.78688
6.61637 6.80000 3.79459 4.79794 4.80000
6.80000 6.80000 6.80000 4.80000 4.80000

4.18781 4.18267 4.17656 4.14620 4.14412
4.25900 4.26410 4.26107 4.28851 4.34529
4.60000 4.60000 4.60000 4.60000 4.60000

4.00000 4.00000 4.00000 4.00000 4.00000
4.00000 4.00000 4.00000 4.00000 4.00000
4.00000 4.00000 4.00000 4.00000 4.00000

3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000
3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000
3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000 3.70000

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Villages
Beloit

Residential/Agricultural Real $22.68336 $22.61436 $22.61856 $22.61580 $22.61580
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 22.58943 22.94143 22.80204 22.80204 22.80204
General Business and Public Utility Personal 23.50000 23.50000 23.50000 23.50000 23.50000

Craig Beach
Residential/Agricultural Real 9.51573 6.95139 6.94982 6.93776 6.93776
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 10.73753 7.91964 7.91964 7.87881 7.87881
General Business and Public Utility Personal 11.20000 8.20000 8.20000 8.20000 8.20000

Lowellville
Residential/Agricultural Real 4.99259 4.99425 4.99289 4.99044 4.99044
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 5.67185 5.65735 5.68693 5.87803 5.87803
General Business and Public Utility Personal 8.00000 8.00000 8.00000 8.00000 8.00000

New Middletown
Residential/Agricultural Real 16.64512 17.37131 15.36855 15.36751 15.36751
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 16.79696 16.89993 14.89993 14.89993 14.89993
General Business and Public Utility Personal 17.40000 17.40000 15.40000 15.40000 15.40000

Poland
Residential/Agricultural Real 10.00614 10.41199 8.40662 8.40380 8.40380
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 10.45749 10.37956 8.37956 8.37901 8.37901
General Business and Public Utility Personal 10.60000 10.60000 8.60000 8.60000 8.60000

Sebring
Residential/Agricultural Real 7.31452 7.25270 7.23821 7.23830 7.23830
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 7.74602 7.95885 7.95885 7.95517 7.95517
General Business and Public Utility Personal 8.40000 8.40000 8.40000 8.40000 8.40000

Washingtonville
Residential/Agricultural Real 12.23513 12.09475 12.03183 12.03419 12.03419
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 14.84037 14.65519 14.66894 14.39651 14.39651
General Business and Public Utility Personal 19.70000 19.70000 19.70000 19.70000 19.70000

Townships
Austintown

Residential/Agricultural Real 15.86243 16.03531 15.53777 15.53192 15.53192
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 16.27747 16.63777 16.05116 16.00987 16.00987
General Business and Public Utility Personal 19.50000 19.50000 19.00000 19.00000 19.00000

Beaver
Residential/Agricultural Real 12.62462 13.00773 13.01770 13.02221 13.02221
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 13.48151 13.78732 14.04430 14.03781 14.03781
General Business and Public Utility Personal 18.30000 18.30000 18.30000 18.30000 18.30000

Berlin
Residential/Agricultural Real 7.69021 5.07058 5.06896 6.95335 6.95335
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 7.97282 5.25211 5.25586 7.08808 7.08808
General Business and Public Utility Personal 8.60000 5.80000 5.80000 7.80000 7.80000

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (continued)

(Per $1,000 Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$22.77551 $22.77532 $16.22966 $18.65110 $12.64935
22.79856 22.79856 16.18314 18.70331 12.71107
23.50000 23.50000 17.11000 22.00000 16.00000

6.90087 6.90260 6.85700 6.78921 6.76080
7.06173 7.06173 7.57415 7.57415 7.57415
8.20000 8.20000 8.20000 8.20000 8.20000

4.98747 4.98747 5.12311 5.12073 5.12078
5.86507 5.86506 6.01102 5.91200 5.91200
8.00000 8.00000 8.00000 8.00000 8.00000

15.36598 15.37599 13.34248 13.36183 13.36222
15.18568 15.15872 13.34020 13.34020 13.34287
15.40000 15.40000 13.40000 13.40000 13.40000

8.38569 8.38399 8.24238 8.22793 8.22123
8.17840 8.17840 8.05259 8.05259 8.05079
8.60000 8.60000 8.60000 8.60000 8.60000

7.23507 7.23569 6.88452 6.88413 6.88293
7.95670 7.90322 7.99050 7.99048 7.99049
8.40000 8.40000 8.40000 8.40000 8.40000

11.86985 11.84127 11.88548 11.78994 11.83599
14.39533 14.39533 13.98936 14.18844 14.18512
19.70000 19.70000 19.70000 19.70000 19.70000

15.52630 12.28578 11.28373 11.27543 11.28050
15.98184 13.21968 12.88706 12.88029 12.86161
19.00000 18.60000 18.10000 18.10000 18.10000

13.32219 13.34687 13.41501 13.39495 13.39483
13.88960 13.84130 13.75981 13.80410 13.86359
18.30000 18.30000 18.30000 18.30000 18.30000

7.19989 7.19785 7.18927 5.18898 5.19124
7.08961 7.08961 7.46857 5.46857 5.46857
7.80000 7.80000 7.80000 5.80000 5.80000

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Boardman
Residential/Agricultural Real $15.21011 $15.38457 $15.37632 $15.36765 $15.36765
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 15.34225 15.31763 15.17293 15.06303 15.06303
General Business and Public Utility Personal 21.10000 21.10000 21.10000 21.10000 21.10000

Canfield
Residential/Agricultural Real 2.69625 2.70032 2.70043 2.70048 2.70048
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 2.71710 2.71796 2.71850 2.71827 2.71827
General Business and Public Utility Personal 2.75000 2.75000 2.75000 2.75000 2.75000

Coitsville
Residential/Agricultural Real 14.66773 14.30604 14.28609 14.24837 14.24837
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 16.36675 16.20796 16.20995 14.91555 14.91555
General Business and Public Utility Personal 21.00000 21.00000 21.00000 21.00000 21.00000

Ellsworth
Residential/Agricultural Real 3.92441 3.97109 3.97153 3.97790 3.97790
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 4.19463 4.32297 4.24983 4.24983 4.24983
General Business and Public Utility Personal 4.70000 4.70000 4.70000 4.70000 4.70000

Fairfield
Residential/Agricultural Real 1.74953 1.74750 1.77437 1.77399 1.77399
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 1.81103 1.81356 1.86839 1.86070 1.86070
General Business and Public Utility Personal 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000

Goshen
Residential/Agricultural Real 10.16698 10.18061 10.18170 10.17677 10.17677
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000

Green
Residential/Agricultural Real 9.00254 9.01268 8.14717 8.66216 8.66216
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 9.50977 9.62549 9.10586 9.76402 9.76402
General Business and Public Utility Personal 9.70000 9.70000 9.70000 10.40000 10.40000

Jackson
Residential/Agricultural Real 8.38896 8.59007 8.59215 8.58033 8.58033
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 8.60224 8.95000 8.84286 8.81804 8.81804
General Business and Public Utility Personal 8.95000 8.95000 8.95000 8.95000 8.95000

Milton
Residential/Agricultural Real 8.33978 8.69103 8.68698 8.69018 8.69018
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 9.01632 9.02800 9.00620 8.82702 8.82702
General Business and Public Utility Personal 9.20000 9.20000 9.20000 9.20000 9.20000

Perry
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000

Poland
Residential/Agricultural Real 4.84927 5.02407 5.02614 5.02673 5.02673
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 6.04699 5.84718 5.69776 5.72287 5.72287
General Business and Public Utility Personal 9.00000 9.00000 9.00000 9.00000 9.00000

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (continued)

(Per $1,000 Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$15.35450 $15.35353 $10.78226 $10.77538 $10.77261
14.87157 14.85547 11.41811 11.37645 11.36505
21.10000 21.10000 17.25000 17.25000 17.25000

2.70077 2.70080 2.69922 2.69918 2.69914
2.71749 2.71744 2.71529 2.71448 2.71467
2.75000 2.75000 2.75000 2.75000 2.75000

14.62025 10.99029 10.71219 10.70960 10.68867
15.12503 11.74445 11.89976 11.76286 11.74711
21.00000 19.50000 19.50000 19.50000 19.50000

4.06299 4.06401 4.07758 4.07677 4.07804
4.24973 4.24973 4.28022 4.28022 4.28022
4.70000 4.70000 4.70000 4.70000 4.70000

1.76591 1.76619 1.75603 1.74900 1.75004
1.85837 1.85873 1.85419 1.93895 1.94027
2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000 2.00000

10.86401 10.86233 10.87455 10.87646 10.88350
10.99960 11.00000 10.94486 10.94060 10.94060
11.00000 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000 11.00000

9.08631 9.08727 9.15527 9.15194 6.93421
9.68379 9.61232 9.55859 7.45857 7.45857

10.40000 10.40000 10.40000 10.40000 8.60000

8.93656 8.94690 8.85728 7.95553 8.05360
8.76500 8.76524 8.94999 7.93404 7.92076
8.95000 8.95000 8.95000 8.95000 8.95000

8.81262 8.06655 8.55912 8.55806 8.55405
8.72277 8.41300 8.69159 8.69825 9.05346
9.20000 9.20000 9.20000 9.20000 9.20000

0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000
0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000
0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000 0.20000

5.04083 5.04490 4.91971 4.91748 4.91725
5.74462 5.74470 5.71273 5.76431 5.76562
9.00000 9.00000 9.00000 9.00000 9.00000

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Smith
Residential/Agricultural Real $7.03047 $6.74862 $6.74689 $6.75121 $6.75121
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 10.37735 10.39618 10.23122 9.74033 9.74033
General Business and Public Utility Personal 12.80000 12.80000 12.80000 12.80000 12.80000

Springfield
Residential/Agricultural Real 9.84056 10.18779 10.64298 10.18834 10.18834
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 10.62405 10.66531 10.66531 10.66060 10.66060
General Business and Public Utility Personal 14.40000 14.40000 14.40000 14.40000 14.40000

Special Districts
Boardman Township Park

Residential/Agricultural Real 0.92852 0.93994 0.93965 0.93934 0.93934
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.94798 0.94708 0.93893 0.93163 0.93163
General Business and Public Utility Personal 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000

Cardinal Joint Fire District
Residential/Agricultural Real 4.64356 5.01360 5.01915 5.02036 5.02036
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 4.90864 4.97414 4.99463 4.97593 4.97593
General Business and Public Utility Personal 5.92000 5.92000 5.92000 5.92000 5.92000

Mill Creek Park Metro District
Residential/Agricultural Real 1.86827 1.89317 1.64238 1.64079 1.64079
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 1.91834 1.92552 1.65472 1.64244 1.64244
General Business and Public Utility Personal 2.00000 2.00000 1.75000 1.75000 1.75000

Western Reserve Joint Fire District
Residential/Agricultural Real 2.57605 2.73105 2.73220 2.73243 2.73243
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 2.98362 2.91131 2.86008 2.87188 2.87188
General Business and Public Utility Personal 3.80000 3.80000 3.80000 3.80000 3.80000

Western Reserve Transit Authority
Residential/Agricultural Real 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
General Business and Public Utility Personal 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000

Joint Vocational School
Mahoning County Career and Technical Center

Residential/Agricultural Real 2.01795 2.07319 2.07523 2.07406 2.07406
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 2.04749 2.06460 2.03773 2.02455 2.02455
General Business and Public Utility Personal 2.10000 2.10000 2.10000 2.10000 2.10000

Schools
Alliance City

Residential/Agricultural Real 34.94362 35.29589 35.70856 37.49782 37.49782
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 41.15080 41.53349 41.92484 42.50173 42.50173
General Business and Public Utility Personal 61.10000 61.20000 61.60000 62.20000 62.20000

Austintown Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 35.10441 35.37949 35.28307 35.35340 35.35340
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 39.09026 39.75164 39.32058 39.29032 39.29032
General Business and Public Utility Personal 60.40000 60.40000 60.30000 60.40000 60.40000

(Per $1,000 Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (continued)
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$7.14024 $7.13724 $6.93969 $6.94035 $6.94354
9.79321 9.76578 9.69116 9.69221 9.71438

12.80000 12.80000 12.80000 12.80000 12.80000

10.44574 10.44884 10.60787 10.65041 9.18572
10.92582 10.93081 11.43036 11.14661 9.67107
14.40000 14.40000 14.40000 14.40000 14.40000

0.93887 0.93884 0.91333 0.56842 0.56823
0.91890 0.91783 0.94526 0.59359 0.59291
1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000

3.78254 3.78482 3.70212 3.69958 3.69751
3.68377 3.68231 3.68621 3.55961 3.56819
4.67000 4.67000 4.67000 4.67000 4.67000

1.65693 1.65740 1.54323 1.54178 1.54200
1.62055 1.61881 1.63738 1.62111 1.62054
1.75000 1.75000 1.75000 1.75000 1.75000

2.74174 2.74466 1.67630 1.67446 1.67399
2.84693 2.84693 1.81740 1.83165 1.83170
3.80000 2.80000 2.80000 2.80000 2.80000

0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 3.63759
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 4.43966
0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 5.00000

2.09933 2.10000 2.00100 2.00000 2.00000
2.00249 2.10000 2.01838 2.00330 2.00431
2.10000 2.10000 2.10000 2.10000 2.10000

37.37888 33.55584 33.30340 33.65598 32.66194
41.97546 36.44059 35.67334 35.77899 35.21895
62.10000 60.60000 60.40000 60.80000 60.70000

35.52582 35.52546 33.72260 30.80382 30.81508
39.42646 39.43338 39.63453 36.71238 36.64809
60.60000 60.60000 60.40000 57.50000 57.50000

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Boardman Local
Residential/Agricultural Real $39.18082 $39.48217 $39.46082 $39.43751 $39.43751
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 40.42875 40.24928 39.93429 39.70942 39.70942
General Business and Public Utility Personal 58.15000 58.15000 58.15000 58.15000 58.15000

Campbell City
Residential/Agricultural Real 47.35000 42.65000 42.65000 42.17224 42.17224
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 46.30259 41.44905 41.32773 40.85438 40.85438
General Business and Public Utility Personal 47.35000 42.65000 42.65000 42.20000 42.20000

Canfield Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 34.78878 37.11952 37.14981 37.15771 37.15771
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 36.52318 36.98500 37.10457 36.99185 36.99185
General Business and Public Utility Personal 59.80000 59.90000 59.90000 59.90000 59.90000

Columbiana Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 24.83822 24.97682 25.10257 25.08679 25.08679
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 24.60002 24.60002 24.74451 24.64437 24.64437
General Business and Public Utility Personal 33.50000 33.50000 33.50000 33.50000 33.50000

Hubbard Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 41.59008 37.99944 38.24776 38.02917 38.02917
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 47.39009 43.00291 42.59818 42.32697 42.32697
General Business and Public Utility Personal 62.85000 58.55000 58.80000 58.60000 58.60000

Jackson Milton Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 32.47665 32.81448 32.90364 32.79148 32.79148
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 32.97968 34.24444 33.42384 33.15638 33.15638
General Business and Public Utility Personal 44.65000 44.95000 45.05000 44.95000 44.95000

Leetonia Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 33.38299 33.38198 33.78628 33.78603 33.78603
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 33.42843 33.42065 33.83299 33.82874 33.82874
General Business and Public Utility Personal 33.51000 33.51000 33.91000 33.91000 33.91000

Lowellville Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 26.77587 27.14792 27.13718 27.03889 27.03889
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 40.80825 40.72064 41.08618 37.20251 37.20251
General Business and Public Utility Personal 61.20000 61.60000 61.60000 61.50000 61.50000

Poland Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 38.63826 41.18251 41.38910 41.38925 41.38925
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 39.65088 41.56726 41.52951 41.49796 41.49796
General Business and Public Utility Personal 51.40000 53.20000 53.40000 53.40000 53.40000

Sebring Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 26.85510 26.44939 26.46744 28.06782 28.06782
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 39.23163 40.64666 40.74666 42.32122 42.32122
General Business and Public Utility Personal 54.60000 57.60000 57.70000 59.30000 59.30000

South Range Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 36.25702 37.36627 37.56802 38.06657 38.06657
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 36.50237 38.08830 38.09110 38.61225 38.61225
General Business and Public Utility Personal 55.10000 56.20000 56.40000 56.90000 56.90000

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (continued)

(Per $1,000 Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$38.81204 $34.91210 $32.16046 $32.13118 $32.11773
38.78400 34.84360 35.39078 35.24222 35.22561
58.15000 54.25000 53.95000 53.95000 53.95000

41.61928 40.61907 35.79206 36.76894 36.76122
39.40966 38.38981 36.82576 37.79910 37.76946
41.70000 40.70000 39.45000 40.45000 40.45000

31.33631 32.35032 33.06431 32.88616 32.87574
30.83505 31.86585 33.49962 32.51091 32.56466
54.00000 55.00000 56.60000 56.60000 56.60000

24.85243 24.85162 25.69285 25.50000 25.50002
24.60001 24.60002 25.50020 25.67612 25.69803
33.50000 33.50000 34.40000 34.40000 34.40000

38.15477 38.45930 36.21122 37.09909 37.07610
42.32367 42.32518 41.64287 42.44615 41.93289
58.75000 59.10000 57.95000 58.90000 58.85000

33.20079 33.40097 33.45738 33.51406 33.55729
33.25867 33.45868 33.66809 33.56785 33.57077
45.35000 45.55000 45.55000 45.65000 45.65000

33.79027 33.79004 33.19062 33.18734 33.18753
33.82670 33.82545 33.22289 33.25853 33.25883
33.91000 33.91000 33.31000 33.31000 33.31000

27.27454 27.27169 27.62487 27.59771 27.60366
37.07300 37.07299 38.35541 37.38706 37.37953
61.50000 61.50000 61.50000 61.50000 61.50000

41.33681 35.45433 35.62209 35.60390 35.59875
40.94487 35.00119 35.99584 35.93609 35.88326
53.30000 47.40000 48.30000 48.30000 48.30000

28.05254 28.05521 26.06622 26.06456 26.05944
42.33030 41.95984 42.38815 42.38804 42.38804
59.30000 59.30000 59.30000 59.30000 59.30000

38.08951 38.28998 38.31471 38.39510 38.49530
38.20819 38.28360 38.47210 38.38470 38.94858
56.90000 57.10000 57.10000 57.20000 57.30000

(continued)
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Springfield Local
Residential/Agricultural Real $25.46040 $25.48801 $25.48723 $25.48319 $25.48319
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 25.48175 25.49384 25.49384 25.48419 25.48419
General Business and Public Utility Personal 36.00000 36.00000 36.00000 36.00000 36.00000

Struthers City
Residential/Agricultural Real 39.95553 38.26224 38.22732 38.19371 38.19371
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 50.95745 50.44478 48.10241 48.12208 48.12208
General Business and Public Utility Personal 63.70000 63.50000 63.50000 63.50000 63.50000

Weathersfield Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 36.14353 38.45909 38.37868 38.60932 38.60932
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 43.32511 46.18603 46.07915 45.78075 45.78075
General Business and Public Utility Personal 60.40000 62.00000 62.00000 62.25000 62.25000

West Branch Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 23.29968 23.05909 23.06586 23.06453 23.06453
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 24.75771 24.22226 23.98728 23.82240 23.82240
General Business and Public Utility Personal 33.30000 33.20000 33.20000 33.20000 33.20000

Western Reserve Local
Residential/Agricultural Real 39.01991 39.26395 39.16026 38.96252 38.96252
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 39.19183 39.81758 39.32930 39.12521 39.12521
General Business and Public Utility Personal 53.00000 53.20000 53.10000 52.90000 52.90000

Youngstown City
Residential/Agricultural Real 60.45436 54.70094 54.59313 53.84281 53.84281
Commercial/Industrial and Public Utility Real 64.59043 62.55319 62.14280 61.11409 61.11409
General Business and Public Utility Personal 64.85000 63.60000 63.60000 63.00000 63.00000

(1) The 1986 Mental Retardation Developmental and Disabilities current expense levy was renewed in 1991, 1996, 2001, 2006 and 2011.

The rates presented for a particular calendar year are the rates that, when applied to the assessed
values presented in the Assessed Value Table, generated the property tax revenue billed in that year.

The County's basic property tax rate may be increased only by a majority vote of the County's 
residents.  

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to
property owners within the County.

Real property tax rates for voted levies are reduced so that inflationary increases in value do not
generate additional revenue.

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (continued)

(Per $1,000 Assessed Value)
Last Ten Years
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$23.00001 $23.00002 $21.00001 $23.40002 $23.40002
23.00001 23.00002 22.28082 24.06364 23.90272
33.50000 33.50000 33.50000 35.90000 35.90000

39.33846 39.34130 37.43349 37.41311 37.40719
49.04156 49.04673 48.81571 48.67761 48.68232
64.70000 64.70000 64.70000 64.70000 64.70000

39.42399 31.86830 30.68784 30.70707 30.65144
45.00236 37.07968 36.20919 36.25075 36.41787
63.05000 55.55000 55.15000 55.20000 55.15000

23.21725 23.21590 23.08321 23.08462 23.08421
23.43064 23.39298 23.12249 23.12943 23.12947
33.20000 33.20000 33.20000 33.20000 33.20000

38.93286 38.93007 40.53684 40.56153 40.53243
39.02541 39.06541 40.69840 40.69840 40.69840
52.80000 52.80000 54.40000 54.40000 54.40000

53.67222 53.15291 44.67962 44.61049 44.58543
60.01445 59.48434 56.21043 55.46919 55.31420
63.00000 62.50000 60.50000 60.50000 60.50000
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Percent of
Current Tax
Collections

Current Tax Current Tax to Current Delinquent Tax Total Tax
Year Levy Collections (1) Tax Levy Collections (3) Collections (1)

2018 $53,405,951 $51,666,833 96.74 % $1,599,952 $53,266,785

2017 52,844,376 50,904,992 96.33 2,002,567 52,907,559

2016 48,322,577 46,292,271 95.80 1,570,137 47,862,408

2015 48,724,973 46,813,538 96.08 1,786,935 48,600,473

2014 45,397,945 45,203,872 99.57 1,415,222 46,619,094

2013 45,205,259 43,055,369 95.24 1,673,433 44,728,802

2012 44,871,888 42,684,022 95.12 1,765,397 44,449,419

2011 45,893,093 42,882,931 93.44 1,635,879 44,518,810

2010 38,281,229 35,700,800 93.26 1,389,273 37,090,073

2009 37,883,186 35,395,783 93.43 1,397,812 36,793,595

(1) Includes state reimbursements of homestead and rollback exemptions.

(2) Penalties and interest are included, since by Ohio law they become part 
      of the tax obligation as assessment occurs.

(3) The County's current reporting system does not track delinquency tax collections by tax year.
      Outstanding delinquencies are tracked in total by the date the parcel is first certified delinquent.
      Penalties and interest are applied to the total outstanding balance. The presentation will be updated 
      as new information becomes available.

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Real and Public Utility Taxes
Last Ten Years
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Percent of Percent of
Current Total Accumulated Outstanding

Tax Collections Outstanding Delinquent Taxes
to Current Delinquent to Current
Tax Levy Taxes (2) Tax Levy

99.74 % $6,229,379 11.66 %

100.12 6,497,094 12.29

99.05 6,458,672 13.37

99.74 6,226,986 12.78

102.69 5,890,441 12.98

98.95 6,060,189 13.41

99.06 6,573,315 14.65

97.01 8,090,633 17.63

96.89 5,653,012 14.77

97.12 4,777,831 12.61
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Percent of
Current Tax
Collections

Current Tax Current Tax to Current Delinquent Tax Total Tax
Year Levy (1) Collections (2) Tax Levy Collections (3) Collections

2018 $0 $0 0.00 % $26 $26

2017 0 0 0.00 0 0

2016 0 0 0.00 665 665

2015 0 0 0.00 0 0

2014 0 0 0.00 12,160 12,160

2013 0 0 0.00 0 0

2012 0 0 0.00 51,448 51,448

2011 0 0 0.00 5,508 5,508

2010 70,094 70,094 100.00 12,454 82,548

2009 158,175 142,140 89.86 54,180 196,320

(1) Under House Bill 66, tangible personal property taxes were phased out over a five year period
      ending collection year 2010.

(2) Penalties and interest are included, since by Ohio law they become part 
      of the tax obligation as assessment occurs.

(3) The County's current reporting system does not track delinquency tax collections by tax year.
      Outstanding delinquencies are tracked in total by the date the parcel is first certified delinquent.
      Penalties and interest are applied to the total outstanding balance. The presentation will be updated 
      as new information becomes available.

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor

Mahoning County, Ohio
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Tangible Personal Property Taxes

Last Ten Years
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Percent of Percent of
Current Total Accumulated Outstanding

Tax Collections Outstanding Delinquent Taxes
to Current Delinquent to Current
Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy

0.00 % $1,701,993 0.00 %

0.00 1,707,899 0.00

0.00 1,659,212 0.00

0.00 1,688,593 0.00

0.00 1,688,593 0.00

0.00 1,708,714 0.00

0.00 1,731,720 0.00

0.00 1,815,135 0.00

117.77 1,613,572 2,302.01

124.12 1,519,694 960.77
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Principal Real Property Taxpayers

2018 and 2009

2018

Real Property Percentage of  Real
Taxpayer Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation

Corrections Corp of America $22,536,350 0.58 %
Southern Park Mall LLC 15,802,350 0.40
GLP Capital LP 10,527,920 0.27
T Southland Crossing Oh LLC 6,413,740 0.16
Copeland United Methodist 6,009,240 0.15
WAOP Properties LLC 5,369,140 0.14
Boardman Plaza Asociates LLC 5,288,400 0.14
Jackson Acquisition Corporation 4,736,940 0.12
Central Park West LTD 4,687,770 0.12
Austintown Plaza LTD 4,124,530 0.11

Total $85,496,380 2.19 %

Total Real Property Assessed Valuation $3,906,879,450

2009

Real Property Percentage of  Real
Taxpayer Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation

Simon Capital GP $16,017,450 0.41 %
GS Boardman LLC (Lowes) 11,401,790 0.29
CTW Development Corporation 10,054,040 0.25
WP Boardman Associates LP 8,287,280 0.21
Copeland United Methodist 6,170,010 0.16
WAOP Properties LLC 5,153,510 0.13
COCCA Development LTD 5,011,330 0.13
MB Canfield Main LLC 4,684,620 0.12
Jackson Acquisition Corporation 4,443,110 0.11
P & S Equities Inc. 3,966,450 0.10

Total $75,189,590 1.91 %

Total Real Property Assessed Valuation $3,944,234,990

NOTE: Property Assessed at 35 percent of Fair Market Value

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Principal Public Utility Property Taxpayers

2018 and 2009

2018

Public Percentage of
Utility Property Public Utility

Taxpayer Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation

Ohio Edison Co First Energy $127,408,630 45.60 %
American Transmission Systems Inc 76,733,590 27.46
East Ohio Gas Co 25,736,590 9.21

Total $229,878,810 82.27 %

Total Public Utility Assessed Valuation $279,431,540

2009

Public Percentage of
Utility Property Public Utility

Taxpayer Assessed Valuation Assessed Valuation

Ohio Edison $89,643,770 62.27 %
American Transmissions Systems, Inc. 17,350,440 12.05
East Ohio Gas 15,167,460 10.54
Aqua Ohio 14,718,220 10.23

Total $136,879,890 95.09 %

Total Public Utility Assessed Valuation $143,951,730

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor
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Business-

General Oakhill General
Obligation Long-Term Renaissance Capital OPWC Revenue Obligation

Year Bonds Notes Loan Lease Loans Bonds Bonds

2018 $31,976,467 $0 $0 $0 $1,418,716 $30,994,271 $3,193,278

2017 34,918,242 0 0 0 1,590,416 29,837,473 1,223,847

2016 36,924,351 48,881 0 0 1,762,116 18,726,781 1,170,928

2015 41,740,910 96,361 0 20,975 1,644,270 19,794,787 1,197,312

2014 45,340,818 142,480 0 175,830 377,890 20,877,393 1,237,428

2013 43,755,280 187,277 0 518,230 516,316 21,934,799 1,286,398

2012 46,867,363 230,790 205,820 614,653 577,955 22,961,805 1,317,660

2011 50,306,145 273,056 248,725 944,429 561,296 23,969,311 1,352,776

2010 42,770,923 314,110 299,313 0 388,049 24,870,527 1,387,892

2009 31,227,930 353,987 354,117 0 436,555 15,978,200 1,290,000

(1)  Personal Income and population are located on S48

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor

Ratio of Outstanding Debt to
Mahoning County, Ohio

Total Personal Income and Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Years 

Governmental Activities
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Type Activities

Special Percentage
Assessment OWDA OPWC Total of Personal Per

Bonds Loans Loans Debt Income (1) Capita (1)

$45,000 $646,988 $4,592,262 $72,866,982 0.73% $317

50,000 895,704 4,307,983 72,823,665 0.76 317

34,054 1,155,515 4,095,499 63,918,125 0.67 278

36,188 1,790,739 3,860,550 70,182,092 0.73 303

38,322 2,402,562 4,160,133 74,752,856 0.78 320

40,457 2,992,393 3,556,019 74,787,169 0.77 318

59,999 3,561,283 3,659,494 80,056,822 0.83 337

69,943 4,359,384 3,559,849 85,644,914 0.87 360

79,737 5,313,199 3,838,390 79,262,140 0.84 332

89,231 7,038,185 3,237,628 60,005,833 0.69 250

$3
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$3
17

$2
78 $3

03 $3
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$3
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2018 2017

Total Debt Total Unvoted Total Debt Total Unvoted
Limit (1) Debt Limit (2) Limit (1) Debt Limit (2)

Assessed Value of County $4,221,394,560 $4,221,394,560 $4,186,310,990 $4,186,310,990

Debt Limitation 104,034,864 42,213,946 103,157,775 41,863,110

Total Outstanding Debt:
General Obligation Bonds 33,439,999 33,439,999 36,355,000 36,355,000
Special Assessment Bonds 45,000 45,000 50,000 50,000
Revenue Bonds 37,597,300 37,597,300 40,355,600 40,355,600
OWDA Loans 646,988 646,988 895,704 895,704
OPWC Loans 4,203,504 4,203,504 4,603,599 4,603,599
Department of Development Loan 0 0 0 0
Long-Term Note 0 0 0 0
Notes 7,245,000 7,245,000 3,960,000 3,960,000

Total 83,177,791 83,177,791 86,219,903 86,219,903

Less Exemptions:
General Obligation Bonds

County Jail Facilities 1,954,999 1,954,999 2,375,000 2,375,000
Road and Bridge Improvements 3,615,000 3,615,000 3,945,000 3,945,000
Water System Improvement 985,000 985,000 1,025,000 1,025,000
Sewer 1,735,000 1,735,000 1,780,000 1,780,000
Tax Increment Financing (Road and Sewer) 1,385,000 1,385,000 1,565,000 1,565,000
Health Benefits 3,335,000 3,335,000 3,550,000 3,550,000
Hazardous Waste Transfer 0 0 0 0

Special Assessment Bonds 0 0 0 0
Revenue Bonds 37,597,300 37,597,300 40,355,600 40,355,600
OWDA Loans 646,988 646,988 895,704 895,704
OPWC Loans 4,203,504 4,203,504 4,603,599 4,603,599
Department of Development Loan 0 0 0 0
Notes 3,215,000 3,215,000 885,000 885,000
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 1,020,346 1,020,346 3,470,260 3,470,260

Totals 59,693,137 59,693,137 64,450,163 64,450,163

Net Debt 23,484,654 23,484,654 21,769,740 21,769,740

Total Legal Debt Margin $80,550,210 $18,729,292 $81,388,035 $20,093,370

Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage 
   of the Debt Limit 77.43% 44.37% 78.90% 48.00%

(1)  The Debt Limitation is calculated as follows:
       Three percent of first $100,000,000 of assessed value $3,000,000 $3,000,000
       1 1/2 percent of next $200,000,000 of assessed value 3,000,000 3,000,000
       2 1/2 percent of amount of assessed value in excess of $300,000,000 98,034,864 97,157,775

$104,034,864 $103,157,775

(2)   The Debt Limitation equals one percent of the assessed value

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor

Mahoning County, Ohio
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Last Ten Years
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2016 2015 2014

Total Debt Total Unvoted Total Debt Total Unvoted Total Debt Total Unvoted
Limit (1) Debt Limit (2) Limit (1) Debt Limit (2) Limit (1) Debt Limit (2)

$4,108,549,590 $4,108,549,590 $4,094,166,420 $4,094,166,420 $4,005,403,140 $4,005,403,140

101,213,740 41,085,496 100,854,161 40,941,664 98,635,079 40,054,031

38,925,645 38,925,645 42,466,077 42,466,077 46,115,140 46,115,140
33,234 33,234 35,293 35,293 37,352 37,352

30,077,600 30,077,600 24,684,389 24,684,389 27,040,778 27,040,778
1,155,513 1,155,513 1,790,736 1,790,736 2,402,562 2,402,562
5,025,720 5,025,720 5,504,820 5,504,820 4,538,023 4,538,023

0 0 0 0 0 0
48,880 48,880 96,361 96,361 142,480 142,480

4,130,000 4,130,000 5,320,000 5,320,000 955,000 955,000

79,396,592 79,396,592 79,897,676 79,897,676 81,231,335 81,231,335

2,794,999 2,794,999 3,189,998 3,189,998 3,574,999 3,574,999
4,216,766 4,216,766 3,804,707 3,804,707 4,247,648 4,247,648
1,065,000 1,065,000 1,195,000 1,195,000 1,235,000 1,235,000
1,798,234 1,798,234 35,293 35,293 37,352 37,352
1,745,000 1,745,000 1,920,000 1,920,000 1,920,000 1,920,000
3,755,000 3,755,000 3,485,000 3,485,000 3,640,000 3,640,000

45,000 45,000 240,000 240,000 285,000 285,000
0 0 0 0 0 0

30,077,600 30,077,600 24,684,389 24,684,389 27,040,778 27,040,778
1,155,513 1,155,513 1,790,736 1,790,736 2,402,562 2,402,562
5,025,720 5,025,720 5,504,820 5,504,820 4,538,023 4,538,023

0 0 0 0 0 0
3,375,000 3,375,000 4,510,000 4,510,000 955,000 955,000
1,495,482 1,495,482 1,768,395 1,768,395 1,303,523 1,303,523

56,549,314 56,549,314 52,128,338 52,128,338 51,179,885 51,179,885

22,847,278 22,847,278 27,769,338 27,769,338 30,051,450 30,051,450

$78,366,462 $18,238,218 $73,084,823 $13,172,326 $68,583,629 $10,002,581

77.43% 44.39% 72.47% 32.17% 69.53% 24.97%

$3,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

95,213,740 94,854,161 92,635,079

$101,213,740 $100,854,161 $98,635,079

(continued)
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2013 2012

Total Debt Total Unvoted Total Debt Total Unvoted
Limit (1) Debt Limit (2) Limit (1) Debt Limit (2)

Assessed Value of County $3,961,069,810 $3,961,069,810 $3,942,280,100 $3,942,280,100

Debt Limitation 97,526,745 39,610,698 97,057,003 39,422,801

Total Outstanding Debt:
General Obligation Bonds 40,726,730 40,726,730 47,726,837 47,726,837
Special Assessment Bonds 48,264 48,264 58,878 58,878
Revenue Bonds 33,030,200 33,030,200 32,750,400 32,750,400
OWDA Loans 2,992,393 2,992,393 3,561,284 3,561,284
OPWC Loans 4,072,335 4,072,335 4,276,733 4,276,733
Department of Development Loan 0 0 205,820 205,820
Long-Term Note 187,277 187,277 230,790 230,790
Notes 3,545,000 3,545,000 1,530,000 1,530,000

Total 84,602,199 84,602,199 90,340,742 90,340,742

Less Exemptions:
General Obligation Bonds

County Jail Facilities 3,663,262 3,663,262 3,993,579 3,993,579
Road and Bridge Improvements 4,685,175 4,685,175 5,112,543 5,112,543
Water System Improvement 1,275,000 1,275,000 1,315,000 1,315,000
Sewer 48,264 48,264 41,470 41,470
Tax Increment Financing (Road and Sewer) 0 0 0 0
Health Benefits 3,790,000 3,790,000 3,940,000 3,940,000
Hazardous Waste Transfer 330,000 330,000 375,000 375,000

Special Assessment Bonds 0 0 17,408 17,408
Revenue Bonds 29,240,200 29,240,200 28,810,400 28,810,400
OWDA Loans 2,992,393 2,992,393 3,561,284 3,561,284
OPWC Loans 4,072,335 4,072,335 4,276,733 4,276,733
Long-Term Note 0 0 210,036 210,036
Notes 3,545,000 3,545,000 1,530,000 1,530,000
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 1,003,920 1,003,920 3,224,469 3,224,469

Totals 54,645,549 54,645,549 56,407,922 56,407,922

Net Debt 29,956,650 29,956,650 33,932,820 33,932,820

Total Legal Debt Margin $67,570,095 $9,654,048 $63,124,183 $5,489,981

Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage 
   of the Debt Limit 69.28% 24.37% 65.04% 13.93%

(2)  The Debt Limitation is calculated as follows:
       Three percent of first $100,000,000 of assessed value $3,000,000 $3,000,000
       1 1/2 percent of next $200,000,000 of assessed value 3,000,000 3,000,000
       2 1/2 percent of amount of assessed value in excess of $300,000,000 91,526,745 91,057,003

$97,526,745 $97,057,003

(3)   The Debt Limitation equals one percent of the assessed value

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor

Mahoning County, Ohio
Computation of Legal Debt Margin (continued)

Last Ten Years
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2011 2010 2009

Total Debt Total Unvoted Total Debt Total Unvoted Total Debt Total Unvoted
Limit (1) Debt Limit (2) Limit (1) Debt Limit (2) Limit (1) Debt Limit (2)

$3,911,758,640 $3,911,758,640 $4,131,667,780 $4,131,667,780 $4,126,239,240 $4,126,239,240

96,293,966 39,117,586 101,791,695 41,316,678 101,655,981 41,262,392

53,731,253 53,731,253 43,807,535 43,807,535 32,302,113 32,302,113
68,746 68,746 78,465 78,465 87,884 87,884

23,926,120 23,926,120 24,886,800 24,886,800 15,978,200 15,978,200
4,343,399 4,343,399 5,183,633 5,183,633 7,038,185 7,038,185
4,178,140 4,178,140 4,226,437 4,226,437 3,674,183 3,674,183

252,941 252,941 303,529 303,529 354,117 354,117
273,056 273,056 314,109 314,109 353,987 353,987

5,915,000 5,915,000 12,200,000 12,200,000 19,119,000 19,119,000

92,688,655 92,688,655 91,000,508 91,000,508 78,907,669 78,907,669

4,690,882 4,690,882 4,041,756 4,041,756 4,540,560 4,540,560
6,522,179 6,522,179 4,532,324 4,532,324 4,854,521 4,854,521
1,350,000 1,350,000 1,385,000 1,385,000 1,290,000 1,290,000

43,235 43,235 45,000 45,000 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

415,000 415,000 455,000 455,000 0 0
25,512 25,512 33,465 33,465 87,884 87,884

23,926,120 23,926,120 24,886,800 24,886,800 15,978,200 15,978,200
4,343,399 4,343,399 5,183,633 5,183,633 7,038,185 7,038,185
4,178,140 4,178,140 4,226,437 4,226,437 3,674,183 3,674,183

252,941 252,941 303,529 303,529 354,117 354,117
5,915,000 5,915,000 12,200,000 12,200,000 11,998,000 11,998,000

95,486 95,486 935 935 775,637 775,637

51,757,894 51,757,894 57,293,879 57,293,879 50,591,287 50,591,287

40,930,761 40,930,761 33,706,629 33,706,629 28,316,382 28,316,382

$55,363,205 ($1,813,175) $68,085,066 $7,610,049 $73,339,599 $12,946,010

57.49% -4.64% 66.89% 18.42% 72.14% 31.37%

$3,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

90,293,966 95,791,695 95,655,981

$96,293,966 $101,791,695 $101,655,981
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Estimated Ratio of Bonded
True Values Total Debt to Estimated Bonded
of Taxable Business- Primary True Values of Debt Per

Year Population Property Governmental Type Government Taxable Property Capita

2018 229,642 $11,480,048,555 $31,976,467 $3,193,278 $35,169,745 0.31% $153.15

2017 229,796 11,292,225,868 34,918,242 1,223,847 36,142,089 0.32 157.28

2016 229,674 11,281,167,281 36,924,351 1,170,928 38,095,279 0.34 165.87

2015 231,900 11,057,203,064 41,740,910 1,197,312 42,938,222 0.39 185.16

2014 233,823 10,982,370,423 45,340,818 1,237,428 46,578,246 0.42 199.20

2013 235,145 10,963,889,532 43,755,280 1,286,398 45,041,678 0.41 191.55

2012 237,270 10,895,039,622 46,867,363 1,317,660 48,185,023 0.44 203.08

2011 237,809 11,536,922,634 50,306,145 1,352,776 51,658,921 0.45 217.23

2010 238,823 11,530,858,978 42,770,923 1,387,892 44,158,815 0.38 184.90

2009 240,420 11,627,495,700 31,227,930 1,290,000 32,517,930 0.28 135.25

(1) Includes only general obligation bonds.

Sources: 2009 - 2018 Population Estimated by US Census Bureau

Mahoning County, Ohio
Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Estimated True

Values of Taxable Property and Bonded Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Years

Gross Bonded Debt (1)
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

December 31, 2018

Governmental Percentage Amount
Activities Debt Applicable Applicable

Political Subdivision Outstanding To County (1) To County

Direct - Mahoning County
General Obligation Bonds $31,976,467 100.00% $31,976,467
OPWC Loans 1,418,716 100.00 1,418,716

Total Direct - Mahoning County 33,395,183 33,395,183

Overlapping
Townships Wholly Within County 548,000 100.00 548,000
Schools Wholly Within the County 96,799,703 100.00 96,799,703
City of Youngstown 25,091,000 98.25 24,651,908
West Branch LSD 4,068,358 50.05 2,036,213
Mahoning County Career & Technical Center 1,624,999 96.51 1,568,287
Columbiana Exempted Village LSD 624,667 27.38 171,034
City of Columbiana 3,237,300 19.93 645,194
Leetonia Exempted Village LSD 1,205,000 6.30 75,915
Alliance CSD 4,838,250 6.97 337,226
Hubbard Exempted Village LSD 16,930,054 0.47 79,571
City of Alliance 860,000 0.11 946

Total Overlapping 155,827,331 126,913,997

Totals $189,222,514 $160,309,180

(1)  Percentages were determined by dividing the assessed valuation of the political subdivisions 
      located within the boundaries of the County, by the total assessed valuation of the political 
      subdivisions.

(2)  Debt outstanding for School Districts is shown as of June 30, 2018.

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor
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2018 2017 2016 2015
Net Available Revenue:
  Gross Revenues (1) $27,886,614 $26,349,827 $25,147,673 $23,619,157
  Less: Operating Expenses (2) 23,534,141 22,737,463 21,478,094 20,172,279
Net Available Revenue: $4,352,473 $3,612,364 $3,669,579 $3,446,878

Debt - Revenue Bonds:
  Principal $1,132,700 $1,053,620 $1,024,500 $1,041,000
  Interest 936,307 620,462 651,322 673,958

Revenue Bond Coverage 2.10 2.16 2.19 2.01

Debt Service - OWDA Loans
  Principal 237,990 249,085 624,498 601,098
  Interest 9,455 12,610 23,888 61,717

OWDA Coverage 17.59 13.80 5.66 5.20

Debt Service - OPWC Loans
  Principal 200,712 222,740 254,726 333,258

OPWC Coverage 21.69 16.22 14.41 10.34

Total Debt Service:
  Principal 1,571,402 1,525,445 1,903,724 1,975,356
  Interest 945,762 633,072 675,210 735,675

Total Coverage 1.73 1.67 1.42 1.27

(1) Includes other non-operating revenues.

(2) Operating expenses do not include depreciation.

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor

Pledged Revenue Coverage
Mahoning County, Ohio

Mahoning County Sewer
Last Ten Years 
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$23,099,088 $20,664,423 $21,409,913 $21,126,159 $20,813,624 $23,745,476
16,983,722 16,208,846 17,589,884 16,259,618 15,668,527 17,776,645
$6,115,366 $4,455,577 $3,820,029 $4,866,541 $5,145,097 $5,968,831

$1,017,400 $988,700 $970,700 $927,280 $589,370 $542,200
696,544 718,152 739,372 783,876 607,084 516,205

3.57 2.61 2.23 2.84 4.30 5.64

579,106 558,165 795,265 1,014,778 2,319,239 1,761,397
83,710 104,651 142,441 196,275 280,045 370,432

9.23 6.72 4.07 4.02 1.98 2.80

319,971 306,971 302,110 299,059 269,177 206,183

19.11 14.51 12.64 16.27 19.11 28.95

1,916,477 1,853,836 2,068,075 2,241,117 3,177,786 2,509,780
780,254 822,803 881,813 980,151 887,129 886,637

2.27 1.66 1.29 1.51 1.27 1.76
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Years

Personal Population
Total Income Density (1)

Personal Per (Persons per
Year Population (1) Income (2) Capita (1) Square Mile) Employed (3) Unemployed (3)

2018 229,642 $9,932,246,142 $43,251 580.2 97,890 7,264

2017 229,796 9,248,160,688 40,245 580.2 99,064 6,671

2016 229,674 9,577,635,474 41,701 580.2 100,000 6,800

2015 231,900 9,589,065,000 41,350 580.2 101,400 8,000

2014 233,823 9,600,304,734 41,058 580.2 101,000 7,000

2013 235,145 9,667,281,240 41,112 580.2 102,900 8,400

2012 237,270 9,626,043,900 40,570 580.2 102,900 8,200

2011 237,809 9,791,346,023 41,173 580.2 112,900 10,800

2010 238,823 9,403,416,802 39,374 620.6 102,200 11,500

2009 240,420 8,596,558,055 35,756 579.3 98,250 14,929

Source:
(1) 2009 - 2018 Population estimated by US Census Bureau
(2) Computation of per capita personal income multiplied by population
(3) Ohio Job and Family Services, Office of Workforce Development
(4) Mahoning County Auditor
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New Construction (4)
Unemployment Rate (3)

Agricultural/ Commercial/ Total New
County Ohio United States Residential Industrial Construction

7.2% 5.4% 4.4% $15,863,610 $20,938,160 $36,801,770

5.9 4.7 4.1 14,003,350 18,073,820 32,077,170

6.3 4.9 4.9 12,127,790 44,291,590 56,419,380

7.3 4.6 5.0 13,262,230 9,926,210 23,188,440

6.5 7.4 7.4 10,959,360 21,358,140 32,317,500

7.6 7.2 7.8 10,319,990 20,427,500 30,747,490

7.3 6.7 7.8 9,995,720 23,561,260 33,556,980

9.5 7.9 8.5 12,427,010 27,573,880 40,000,890

10.4 9.5 9.4 18,844,350 23,059,970 41,904,320

13.2 10.6 10.0 27,812,510 32,531,680 60,344,190
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2018

Percentage of
Total County

Employer Employees Employment

Mercy Health 3,000
Mahoning County 1,700 1.74
Youngstown State University 1,200 1.23
Youngstown City School District 1,062 1.08
Infocision Management 1,050 1.07
VXI Global Solutions 1,000 1.02
Windsor House 900 0.92
Austintown Local School District 865 0.88
Akron Children's Hospital 800 0.82
City of Youngstown 600 0.61

Total 12,177

Total Employment within the County 97,890

2009

Percentage of
Total County

Employer Employees Employment

HM Health Services 4,218
Youngstown State University 2,155 2.19
Mahoning County 1,957 1.99
Forum Health 1,700 1.73
Youngstown City School District 1,664 1.70
Infocision Management 1,038 1.06
City of Youngstown 828 0.84
U.S. Postal Service 750 0.76
Boardman Local School District 652 0.67
Austintown Local School District 581 0.59

Total 15,543

Total Employment within the County 98,250

Source: Mahoning County Auditor

3.07%

12.44%

4.29%

15.82%
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Mahoning County, Ohio
Capital Assets Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Years 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Governmental Activities
General Government

Legislative and Executive
County Vehicles

Auditor 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 2 2
Facilities 6 6 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6
GIS 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1
Prosecutor 8 7 5 1 2 5 5 5 5 5
Real Estate Assessment 1 1 1 1 1 3 2 2 2 2

Judicial
County Vehicles

Juvenile Justice 16 16 16 16 16 18 19 19 19 13

Public Safety
County Vehicles

Building Inspections 6 5 4 4 5 5 5 4 4 4
Coroner 5 5 4 4 4 3 4 3 3 3
Haz Mat/EMA Operations 8 8 8 6 13 10 22 22 19 17
Sheriff 69 77 76 54 57 66 69 68 76 77

Public Works
County Vehicles

Engineer 63 63 64 68 69 63 101 101 73 80
Sanitary Engineer 50 48 44 48 44 45 59 59 57 58
Recycling 5 6 5 7 7 5 5 6 5 6

Health Services
County Vehicles

MCBDD 55 61 62 56 55 69 65 59 63 66
Dog Kennel 5 5 4 5 6 4 4 4 5 7
Mental Health & Recovery 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2

Human Services
County Vehicles

Childrens Services 4 4 4 3 3 2 3 3 3 3
Public Assistance 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1

Source:  Loss Prevention Department
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Governmental Activities
General Government

Legislative and Executive
Administrative  6 6 7 4 2 1
Auditor 10 11 10 10 9 10
Board of Elections 16 16 26 22 14 16
Commissioners 9 9 9 9 11 13
Data Processing 11 9 9 9 9 9
Facilities Management 27 29 28 27 28 30
Microfilm 4 4 4 3 3 4
Office of Management 
  and Budget 2 2 2 2 1 1
Personnel 3 4 2 2 1 1
Planning Commission 3 3 3 2 2 2
Real Estate 14 14 13 12 12 14
Recorder 6 6 6 5 7 7
Treasurer 12 10 13 10 10 12
Workers Compensation 1 1 1 1 1 1

Judicial
Child Support Administration 56 54 56 56 55 59
Clerk of Courts 42 42 45 43 42 45
Common Pleas 37 38 36 34 37 39
County Courts 37 37 32 33 36 36
Domestic Relations 14 12 12 11 12 12
Jail Medical 0 0 0 0 0 0
Juvenile Court 106 113 116 118 107 111
Law Library 1 1 2 3 3 3
Municipal Courts 16 22 14 14 26 26
Probate 14 13 13 13 11 15
Prosecutor 57 57 56 52 50 52

Public Safety  
Board of Health 61 64 64 57 57 57
Building Regulations 8 9 9 8 7 8
Coroner 8 7 5 6 8 7
Emergency 911 Dispatch 0 0 1 13 16 17
Lead Based 7 7 7 7 6 6
Sheriff 225 223 226 224 220 221

Public Works
Road and Bridge Engineering 66 66 73 73 76 77
Soil and Water Conservation 5 5 5 4 4 4
Solid Waste and Recycling 9 9 9 9 10 10

Health
Child Health Services 108 102 98 113 108 107
Dog and Kennel 10 8 8 8 7 6
Drug and Alcohol Board 0 0 0 0 4 5
Mental Health and 

Recovery Board 9 10 10 10 7 7
Mental Retardation and 

Developmental Disabilities 199 249 275 286 273 281
Human Services

Public Assistance 164 158 163 164 155 160
Soldiers Relief 0 0 0 0 0 0
Veteran Services 15 13 14 13 12 13

Business-Type Activities
Sewer and Water Engineering 90 91 91 92 89 88

Total 1,488 1,534 1,573 1,582 1,548 1,593

Source: Mahoning County Auditor
Method:  Using 1.0 for each full time employee and 0.5 for part-time employees at December 31.

2018

Mahoning County, Ohio
County Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Years

20162017Function/Program 2015 2014 2013
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1 2 2 2
10 10 10 12
14 15 15 14
12 13 12 12

8 8 9 10
31 31 32 38

4 4 4 4

1 1 0 0
1 1 0 0
3 3 3 3

14 13 17 18
6 6 6 7

12 11 14 13
1 1 1 1

60 62 65 69
45 45 47 50
38 36 42 37
36 33 33 37
12 13 13 12

0 0 0 1
106 101 125 135

3 3 3 1
24 13 13 13
15 15 17 17
47 48 49 54

55 40 52 48
7 7 7 7
8 7 7 6

16 16 16 14
7 7 7 6

212 217 218 305

70 72 71 84
4 3 4 4

10 10 11 9

106 104 134 121
6 6 5 6
3 4 4 5

6 8 9 9

256 220 306 303

152 158 175 213
0 0 0 4

11 9 8 8

78 86 89 90

1,511 1,462 1,655 1,802

2010 200920112012
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Function/Program 2018 2017 2016 2015

Governmental Activities
General Government

Legislative and Executive
Board of Elections

Registered Voters 169,619 166,829 166,110 159,060
Voter Turnout in November 92,812 54,805 117,636 70,322
Percentage of Voter Turnout 54.72% 32.85% 70.82% 44.21%

Recorder
Deeds Issued 9,568 8,516 8,191 7,395
Mortgages Issued 7,096 6,416 6,588 5,555

Judicial
Municipal Courts Cases

Boardman Court
Traffic 4,819 5,198 5,200 5,189
Criminal 2,083 2,171 1,994 1,934
Civil 1,397 1,386 1,168 1,040

Sebring Court
Traffic 2,160 1,986 2,230 2,244
Criminal 421 437 368 361
Civil 328 286 218 202

Austintown Court
Traffic 7,341 8,799 9,800 9,808
Criminal 1,040 1,232 1,143 1,142
Civil 1,272 1,391 1,130 1,111

Canfield Court
Traffic 3,175 3,237 3,225 3,892
Criminal 407 429 445 400
Civil 400 311 293 285

Common Pleas Courts Cases
Civil 3,036 3,414 3,474 1,297
Criminal 1,209 1,389 1,464 3,320
Divorce 663 607 640 588
Domestic 835 733 794 735

Health Services
Dog and Kennel

Dogs Licensed 26,160 26,849 26,819 27,433
Number of Penalties Assessed 1,963 860 2,685 2,208
Kennels 379 383 395 405
Number of Kennel Penalties Assessed 26 15 5 0

Business-Type Activities
Mahoning County Sewer

Number of Customers on:
Metered Rate 43,100 45,090 41,000 41,100
Non-Metered Rate 1,100 2,110 1,000 1,000

Mahoning County Water
Number of Customers 1,500 1,473 1,500 1,500

Source:  Mahoning County Auditor 

Mahoning County, Ohio
Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Years
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

167,314 166,020 170,079 182,248 181,759 178,443
69,444 48,924 119,171 80,979 87,414 72,667
41.51% 29.47% 70.07% 44.43% 48.09% 40.72%

6,616 7,077 6,542 6,506 7,239 9,070
6,278 7,724 7,719 6,639 7,209 17,309

4,837 4,732 4,894 5,123 4,277 4,787
1,819 1,816 1,752 1,795 1,544 1,550
1,241 1,119 1,218 1,237 1,365 1,402

2,347 1,973 2,004 1,825 2,431 2,275
414 555 560 526 678 570
193 221 290 352 411 383

8,964 8,545 8,834 8,806 8,337 8,842
1,248 1,338 1,359 1,308 1,351 1,361
1,131 1,049 1,503 1,510 1,609 1,678

3,219 4,801 5,781 4,524 3,998 3,886
461 491 489 515 477 671
308 329 485 507 536 574

1,332 1,340 1,326 1,408 4,787 1,426
3,337 3,656 3,899 4,086 1,442 4,923

640 652 676 745 695 700
794 815 776 794 777 763

27,987 29,087 30,794 28,499 31,327 30,445
2,064 2,146 2,486 719 1,189 1,133

434 276 241 81 155 166
10 22 20 15 10 11

40,950 42,450 40,612 41,160 41,160 38,535
1,000 1,011 1,100 1,126 1,081 963

1,500 1,430 1,376 1,352 1,400 1,300
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Date of Incorporation March 1, 1846

County Seat Youngstown, Ohio

Major Attractions
Hollywood Gaming at Mahoning Valley Race Course
The Covelli Centre
OH WOW Children's Center for Science and Technology
DeYor Performing Arts Center
Youngstown Symphony Orchestra
Youngstown Historical Center of Industry and Labor
The Butler Institute of American Art
The Youngstown Playhouse
Arms Family Museum of Local History
Oakland Center for the Arts
War Vet Museum of Canfield
Tyler History Center
Stambaugh Auditorium
Ballet Western Reserve
Mill Creek Metropolitan Park
Youngstown Phantoms Hockey - United States Hockey League
Lake Milton State Park
9/11 Memorial Park (Austintown)

Higher Education
Youngstown State University
Eastern Gateway Community College

Hospitals
Mercy Health Partners - Located in Youngstown and Boardman
Select Specialty Hospital located in Youngstown and Boardman
Akron Children's Hospital  - Satellite location in Boardman
Surgical Hospital at Southwoods located in Boardman

Communications

 Daily Newspapers: 7 Weekly Newspapers:
The Vindicator Boardman News
The Tribune Chronicle Hometown Journal (Struthers)
The Morning Journal Buckeye Review 
The Salem News Farm and Dairy
The Review Senior News
The Daily Legal News The Town Crier

The Sebring News

Radio Stations: Network Television Stations:
iHeartMedia - WNCD, WAKZ, WFMJ/WBCB (NBC-CW Affiliate)
WMXY, WBBG, WKBN WKBN/WYFX (CBS/FOX Affiliate)
Cumulus Broadcasting, Inc. - WLLF, WWTY/ABC/MYTV Affiliate
WHOT, WYFM, WWIZ, WQXK
Public Radio - WYSU Public Television Station:
Religious - WILB, WYLR, WYTN PBS 45/49

Sources: 
Mahoning County Auditors Office
Youngstown Warren Regional Chamber

Mahoning County, Ohio
Miscellaneous Statistics

December 31, 2018
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